
 
 
 

Shadow Health and Well Being Board 
 
Date: Wednesday, 13 March 2013 
Time: 
 

4.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 2 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Fiona Johnstone 
Tel: 0151 691 8210 
e-mail: fiona.johnstone@wirral.nhs.uk 
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES  
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
3. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 Minutes of the last meeting (12 December 2012) are attached 

 
4. REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE/MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING (FOR APPROVAL) (Pages 9 - 24) 
 
 (Julie Webster) 

 
5. HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY (DRAFT FOR APPROVAL) 

(Pages 25 - 58) 
 
 (Helen Bromley) 

 
6. PROPOSAL FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A FOOD PLAN FOR 

THE BOROUGH (Pages 59 - 62) 
 
 (Julie Webster) 

 
7. UPDATE - CHESHIRE, WARRINGTON AND WIRRAL NATIONAL 

COMMISSIONING BOARD - AREA TEAM  
 
 (Moira Dumma) 

 

Public Document Pack



8. WIRRAL CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP - STRATEGIC PLAN 
(Pages 63 - 122) 

 
 (Dr Phil Jennings) 

 
9. WIRRAL BOROUGH COUNCIL - CORPORATE PLAN (Pages 123 - 

144) 
 
 (Councillor Phil Davies) 

 
10. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES DIRECTORATE - PREVENTIVE 

SERVICES REVIEW  
 
 Presentation (Julia Hassall) 

 
11. UPDATE ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTHWATCH (Pages 145 

- 150) 
 
 (Graham Hodkinson) 

 
12. FOR INFORMATION (Pages 151 - 152) 
 
 (a) Spotlight on Series: 

Asset Based Community Development Masterclass 
led by Cormac Russell, Managing Director of Nurture 
Development 
 
1.30pm – 4.30pm 16 May 2013 
 
(Julie Webster) 

 
13. DATE OF NEXT BOARD MEETING  
 
 Formal Board 10 July 2013 

4.00pm in Committee Room 1, Wallasey Town Hall 
 

 
 



 

1 of 7 

WIRRAL SHADOW HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 
 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 

12 December 2012 
Committee Room 2 Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
 

Present: 
Cllr P. Davies  Leader of Wirral Council (Chair) 
Cllr C. Jones  Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care & Public Health
  
Cllr T. Harney  Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group, Wirral 
Cllr T.Smith  Portfolio Holder for Children’s & Young People’s 
Services 
Ms F. Johnstone Director of Public Health, Wirral 
Mrs J. Webster Deputy Director of Public Health 
Mr G. Hodkinson Director of Adult Social Services, Wirral Council 
Mrs D.Hill  Chair, LINks 
Dr A. Mantgani Interim Chief Officer, NHS Wirral CCG (late arrival) 
Dr P. Naylor  Chair, Wirral Health Commissioning Consortium 
Mr S. Gilbey  Chief Executive, NHS Community Trust (late arrival) 
Mrs S. Cumiskey Chief Executive, Cheshire & Wirral Partnership Trust 
Mrs A. Roberts Chief Executive, VCAW 
Mr R. Smith Director of Operations & Performance, Clatterbridge 

Cancer Centre (representing Andrew Cannell) 
Ms J. Hassall  Acting Director of Children’s Services, Wirral Council 
 
 
Apologies: 
Cllr J. Green  Leader of the Conservative Group, Wirral 
Mr G. Burgess  Chief Executive, Wirral Council 
Mr D. Armstrong Assistant Chief Executive, Wirral Council 
Mr D. Allison  Chief Executive, Wirral University Trust Hospital 
Dr M. Green  GP Chair, Wirral NHS Alliance 
Mr A. Cannell  Chief Executive, Clatterbridge Canter Centre 
Dr P. Jennings  Designate Chair NHS Wirral CCG 
Mrs E. Degg  Head of Communication & Engagement, Wirral 
Council 
 
 
In attendance: 
Mr T. Kinsella Head of Performance & Intelligence, NHS Wirral 
Mr K. Carbery Public Health Business Manager & Head of 

Emergency Planning, NHS Wirral 
Mrs T. Woodhouse Executive Assistant, NHS Wirral 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

2 of 7 

 
 
 
1. Welcome and apologies 
Cllr Phil Davies welcomed the members to the meeting and apologies 
were duly recorded. 
 
2. Declarations of Interest 
Members were asked to consider whether they had any personal or 
prejudicial interest in any matters to be considered at the meeting.  No 
declarations of interest were recorded.   
 
3. Minutes of the 4 September 2012 Board meeting 
These were accepted as a true record of the proceedings and signed 
by the Chair. 
 

Actions arising from the meeting of 4 September 2012: 
 

Item 2 : Declarations of Interest 
Fiona Johnstone to establish the register of interest.  This will be 
progressed for in preparation for the next Board Meeting. 

 
Item 7.3 : Public Health: Integrated Wellbeing  
Copies of the workshop report were requested. Fiona Johnstone 
will circulate the Cabinet paper to members. Fiona Johnstone 
(complete) 

 
Item 4b. Extending Public Engagement 
Emma Degg to submit a proposal at the next meeting on a joint 
way forward for engagement for the January development 
session.  Emma Degg 

 
4d. Joint Commissioning and Integrated Delivery : Update 
Graham Hodkinson advised the members that a brief summary 
of the key outcome around Joint Commissioning had been 
prepared.  This will be circulated post meeting.  Graham 
Hodkinson (complete) 

 
Item 6 :  Transition from LINk to Wirral HealthWatch : Update  
Diane Hill provided a verbal update to members in that the 
consultation process ended on 30 November.  There were a 
great many comments received and a report will be produced 
in due course.  

 
Annette Roberts went on to say that HealthWatch Wirral would 
be part of the new national HealthWatch network currently 
being established. From April 2013 this network will replace the 
current LINks organisation.  The organisation will be a Community 

Page 2



 

3 of 7 

Interest Company (CIC) with a Board of Directors appointed in 
the first instance by VCA Wirral.  Working very closely with all 
partners, HealthWatch Wirral will enable members to influence 
and shape local health and social care services. 

 
  Item 8 : Place Based leadership Development Activity (Board 
Behaviour) 

A copy of Professor McMahon’s report would be circulated 
ahead of the March 2013 meeting.  Fiona Johnstone 

 
Agenda item 4 merged into agenda 5a 
5a: Health & Wellbeing Strategy – Development of a Vision and Values 
The members received the above report, which called upon the Board 
to define its Mission, Vision and Values, which could perhaps be 
integrated into the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
A further document was tabled titled “Vision for Health & Wellbeing”, 
which was the previous mission and values for the Health and 
Wellbeing group that had existed to support the Local Area 
Agreement. 
 
Following discussion it was agreed that a project group to develop the 
Vision and Values would be established, and following nominations 
would include Julie Webster (lead), Annette Roberts, Graham 
Hodkinson, Pete Naylor and Julie Hassall. 
 
Members were asked to consider the document and forward 
comments; an update would be prepared for the January 
development meeting. 
 
It was resolved that: 
• Julie Webster to lead the project group and prepare an update 

report for the January development session. 
 
5b Health & Wellbeing Board Strategy Prioritisation Process Update 
The members received the above report and the presentation from 
Tony Kinsella.  The members were advised that the prioritisation process 
focused on two areas. 
 
• The key health and social care needs of the population 
• The actions/interventions needed to address the key health and 

social care needs of the population 
 
The group was further advised that feedback from the recent JSNA 
questionnaire identified the following as key priority issues for the 
population of Wirral. 
 
• Alcohol 

Page 3



 

4 of 7 

• Ageing population 
• Mental Health 
• Poverty 
• Life Skills 
 
In discussions Rob Smith remarked on the fact that cancer had not 
featured as a priority given that Wirral has a high prevalence of cancer 
and cancer related illness in the North West. 
 
Tony Kinsella advised that cancer had been included in the process 
and that the prioritisation process adopted is in continuous 
development and a reflection of the evidence contained in the JSNA.   
 
It was also acknowledged that many health issues such as cancer 
would remain a priority for partners in their commissioning strategies, 
but that the Health & Wellbeing Strategy would focus first on those 
areas where the Board could develop a multi-agency response.  The 
priorities should be seen as a rolling programme which will be reviewed 
year on year. 
 
In further discussions it was commented that there is possibly a higher 
number of underlying issues relating to each of the identified issues 
above.  For example, alcohol consumption in the elderly could be a 
reflection of social isolation. 
 
In summary, the Chair thanked Tony Kinsella for the work carried out to 
date.  The Board was then asked to consider and agree on the issues, 
which could be included in the Strategy and form a rolling programme 
of work for the coming year. The Board was also asked to ensure that 
any work undertaken should be able to demonstrate outcomes at the 
end of the process. 
  
It was therefore agreed that the Strategy would initially focus on the 
following 3 areas: 
 
• Ageing Population 
• Mental Health 
• Alcohol 
 
It was also agreed that for each issue task and finish groups would be 
set up and guidance on the areas of work will be issued. 
 
It was resolved that: 
 
• The H&WB Strategy focus on the areas of Alcohol, Ageing 

Population and Mental Health 
• Task and finish groups would be established and coordinated by 

Julie Webster  

Page 4



 

5 of 7 

 
 
6.  Director of Public Health : Annual Report 2012 
The members received the presentation from the Director. 
 
Fiona Johnstone stated that the report for 2012 emphasised the need 
for sustainability due in the main to the unprecedented pressures on 
budgets. 
 
The group was further advised that the report would be distributed 
electronically to all members and groups within the next week or so.  
An invitation to present the report at any partner meetings was also 
extended to members of the group. 
 
The report was welcomed by the Group and the recommendations 
endorsed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.  Alcohol 
 
7a) Alcohol Strategy 
 
The Board considered the report on the local Alcohol Strategy, and 
recognised that it will be a key strategic document for the Health & 
Wellbeing Board in setting the direction for tackling alcohol.   
 
 
7b) Alcohol Consultation 
 
Fiona Johnstone advised that the national strategy had now been 
formally launched.  This follows awareness of the proposed consultation 
being raised at the focus on alcohol at the November development 
session.  Board partners were requested to consider responding to the 
consultation, and it was agreed that the views of partners would be 
collated and a response would be sent on behalf of the Board, 
following agreement at its January meeting.  Julie Webster was asked 
to co-ordinate the group’s response ahead of the 6th February 
deadline for submission. 
 
It was resolved that: 
 
• The Board would endorse the Strategy to tackle alcohol related 

harm in Wirral 2013-16  

Page 5



 

6 of 7 

• Julie Webster to co-ordinate the group’s response to the alcohol 
consultation with a draft response ready for discussion at the 
January 2013 development session. 

 
8. Operational Issues 
 
8a) Membership 
 
It had previously been agreed that membership of the Board would be 
reviewed, and a report was received which requested that Members 
consider requests that had come from a number of agencies to be 
Members of the Board.  They were also requested to consider the 
membership by the CCG given that this is now operating as a 
federated model.   
 
It was agreed, therefore, that the Chair and the Accountable Officer 
of the Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group (WCCG) would be the 
formal representatives at the Wirral Health & Wellbeing Board and that 
the Divisional Chairs would be invited to attend in relation to the review 
of the WCCG’s Commissioning Plans.  It was also recognised that the 
Divisional Chairs would be involved in the workstreams underpinning 
the functions of the Health & Wellbeing Board. 
 
In summarising the discussions it was agreed that the Membership of 
the Group should stay largely as it currently is but that other 
stakeholders would be invited to take part in discussions on such issues 
as housing and health and safeguarding.  It was also agreed that a 
formal report on Safeguarding should be received at least annually by 
the Board.   
 
 
It was resolved that: 
 
• The membership would be amended to reflect the above. 
 
9.  Any Other Business 
 
Dr Mantgani took the opportunity to remind the group that the draft 
WCCG Constitution is now published and all comments would be 
welcome.  Also as the authorisation visit is imminent could all members 
submit their 360° feedback.  It is anticipated that the authorisation 
process would be completed by the end of February. 
 
The consortia is also developing a 5 year plan with the first draft being 
available at the end of December and this will also go out to public 
consultation.  Work is also ongoing with providers and stakeholders. 
 
10.  Date of next Formal Board meeting 

Page 6



 

7 of 7 

 
This will be held on Wednesday 13 March 2013 at 4.00 pm in Wallasey 
Town Hall. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
Meeting Date 13 March 2013 Agenda Item 4 
 
Report Title Memorandum of Understanding and revised terms of reference for 

approval by the Health and Wellbeing Board 
Responsible Board 
Member 

Director of Public Health 

 
Board development  
   

x 

JSNA/JHWS  

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No x N/A  

Purpose For 
approval 

x To note  To 
assure 

 

Summary of Paper The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to ensure that 
the structure and governance arrangements of the Wirral Health and 
Wellbeing Board provide an effective and transparent framework with 
clarity of roles and responsibilities and that effective use is made of 
public resources for the benefit of local people.  
 
The memorandum of understanding includes a revised terms of 
reference and updated vision, mission and values set based on the 
debate at the December 2012 and January 2013 meetings of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

£ None £  £  

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

The Memorandum of understanding has been developed to provide a 
governance framework within which risk can be managed. 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

Healthwatch and the voluntary, community and faith sector are 
represented on the Health and Wellbeing Board 

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

Board to approve the proposed memorandum of understanding and 
revised terms of reference with a view to adopting the documents from 
the 1st April 2013. 

Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
Shadow Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

December 
2012 

Revision of membership of terms of reference 

Shadow Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

January 2013 Revision to vision, mission and values set, 
memorandum of understanding and terms of 
reference 

List of 
Appendices 

 

Yes x Yes  Publish On 
Website No  

Private Business 
No x 

  
Report Author:  Julie Webster ; Contact details: 0151 643 5392 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



Memorandum of Understanding and revised terms of reference  
 
1. Background 
 
Under the Health and Social Care Act, 2012 all upper tier and unitary local authorities in 
England will take on a new duty in April 2013 to take such steps as they consider 
appropriate for improving the health of the population of their area. An important step in 
exercising this duty is the establishment of a Health and Wellbeing Board as a statutory 
committee of the Council.  

 
2. Purpose of memorandum of understanding 
 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to establish the Wirral Health and 
Wellbeing Board arrangements for governance, integrated working, joint planning and 
accountabilities in order to deliver improved outcomes for the health and wellbeing of local 
people.  
 
Specifically the document has been developed to provide the Board with an effective and 
transparent framework with clarity of roles and responsibilities and to ensure effective use is 
made of public resources for the benefit of local people.  
 
3. Revised vision, mission and values 
 
Following debate at the January 2013 board meeting the vision, mission and values set for 
the board have been revised to ensure they are easier to read and reflect that board 
members remain accountable to their own organisations for decisions made at the board.  
 
The revised vision, mission and values set are as follows: 
 
Vision: “To enable local people to live healthy lives, tackle health inequalities and increase 
wellbeing in the communities and people of Wirral” 
 
Mission statement: “To work across professional and agency boundaries to drive 
innovation and make a difference to the health and wellbeing of local people by; 
 

• agreeing priorities and actions to reduce health inequalities and promote health and 
wellbeing. 

• developing a Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
• developing a framework for the effective performance monitoring of the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy  
• discussing and evaluating joint performance 

 
Values set: The following list details the values for the Health and Wellbeing Board to adopt 
as a framework for behaviour and decision making:  

• putting local people first in everything we do, putting the needs of local people and 
communities before organisational boundaries 

• valuing excellence and professionalism wherever it is found  
• mutual trust and respect – valuing each person as an individual, taking what others 

have to say seriously 
• being honest about our point of view and what we can and cannot do 
• creative and innovative solutions to problems 
• removal of barriers to equality of access and opportunity  

 
 
 
 

Page 10



4. Revised terms of reference 
 
A revised terms of reference is included in the document based on the debate at the 
December 2012 and January 2013 meetings and to reflect the changes to the vision, 
mission and values set of the board. 
 
5. Action required 
 
The Board is asked to debate and approve the Memorandum of Understanding including the 
revised vision, mission and values set for the board and terms of reference with a view to 
adopting the framework from the 1st April 2013. 
 
Report Author:  Julie Webster 

Deputy Director of Public Health 
 
Contact details: Julie.webster@wirral.nhs.uk 

Tel: 0151 651 3914 
. 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

 

Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board 

  Memorandum of Understanding  

March 2013 
 
  

Version 2 

Page 13



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

2 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

Memorandum of Understanding  

Contents          Page 

  Foreword         3 

1.0      Introduction 4      
 
2.0  Statement of Commitment       4   
 
3.0      Vision & mission of the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board  4 
 
4.0      Partnership Principles 4 
 
5.0      Governance and Accountability Arrangements  5   
 
6.0      Decision Making  5   
 
7.0      Challenge Process  5   
 
8.0      Partner Roles and Responsibilities  6   
 
9.0      The Scope of Involvement  6   
 
10.0     Leadership  6   
 
11.0     Performance Management  7   
 
12.0     Information Sharing  7   
 
13.0     Risk Assessment  7   
 
14.0     Equalities and Inclusion  7   
 
15.0     Dispute and Conflict Resolution  7  
 
16.0     Review of the Memorandum of Understanding   7     

17.0     Terms of reference 8 
 
18.0     Task and finish groups 11 
 
19.0     Support to the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board   11 
 
 
Figure 1 Structure of Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board    12 

Page 14



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

3 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

 
Foreword  
 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to ensure that the structure and 
governance arrangements of the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board provide an effective and 
transparent framework with clarity of roles and responsibilities and that effective use is made 
of public resources for the benefit of local people.   
 
 
 
Councillor Phil Davies  
Chair 

 

Page 15



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

4 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

 Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board - Memorandum of Understanding  

1.0  Introduction  

1.1  Under the Health and Social Care Act, 2012 all upper tier and unitary local authorities 
in England will take on a new duty to take such steps as they considers appropriate 
for improving the health of the population of their area. An important step in exercising 
this duty is the establishment of a Health and Wellbeing Board as a statutory 
committee of the Council.  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board has a prescribed core membership but is free to 
operate with a wider constituency to promote the health and wellbeing of its area. This 
Memorandum establishes the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board arrangements for 
governance, integrated working, joint planning and accountabilities in order to deliver 
improved outcomes for the health and wellbeing of local people.  

 

2.0  Statement of Commitment  
 
2.1  The member organisations of Health and Wellbeing Board are committed to working 

together at every level to improve the quality of life and wellbeing of the residents of 
Wirral.  

 
3.0  Vision and mission of the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
3.1  The vision of the Wirral Health Wellbeing Board is to enable local people to live 

healthy lives, tackle health inequalities and increase wellbeing in the communities and 
people of Wirral  

 
3.2  The mission of the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board is to work across professional 

and agency boundaries to drive innovation make a difference to the health and 
wellbeing of local people by; 

 
• agreeing priorities and actions to reduce health inequalities and promote health 

and wellbeing 
• developing a Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
• developing a framework for the effective performance monitoring of the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy  
• discussing and evaluating joint performance 

 
4.0  Partnership Principles  
 
4.1.1 Members agree to work together actively to achieve the vision and mission of the    

Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board on the basis of the following values, which will be 
reflected in Board members behaviour and decision making framework. 
 
• putting local people first in everything we do, putting the needs of local people and 

communities before organisational boundaries 
• valuing excellence and professionalism wherever it is found  

Page 16



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

5 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

• mutual trust and respect – valuing each person as an individual, taking what others 
have to say seriously 

• being honest about our point of view and what we can and cannot do 
• creative and innovative solutions to problems 
• removal of barriers to equality of access and opportunity  
 

5.0  Governance and Accountability Arrangements  
 
5.1  The Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board requires each partner agency to retain full 

responsibility for its statutory duties and functions at all times and allows for these 
duties and functions to be carried out through a system of joint planning and 
commissioning.   

 
5.2  The Board will take responsibility for setting the strategic direction for action to tackle 

health inequalities and promote health and wellbeing. This includes setting priorities, 
joint planning, alignment of resources at strategic level and agreeing service models 
based on service performance and agreed service specifications.  

 
5.3  The Board is committed to working with other strategic partnerships in the borough 

e.g.  Wirral Children’s Trust, Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group to ensure activity is 
aligned to deliver effective partnership working.  

 
5.4  Members of the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board remain accountable to their own 

organisation and will be responsible for ensuring that approval for all decisions made 
by the Board is gained from their organisation as appropriate. It is recognised that 
there are different levels of accountability and risk for individual agencies and 
organisations.  

 
6.0  Decision Making  
 
6.1  Each partner agency accepts collective responsibility for all decisions made by the 

Board, within the context of their own organisations accountability framework.  All 
decisions will be transparent and informed by open debate, advice, performance 
reporting and analysis, best practice, risk assessment and option appraisal. 

    
6.2  Decision making will be by consensus, wherever possible, but if a consensus cannot 

be reached, decisions will be taken on a simple majority of those present and voting 
will be by a show of hands. In the event of a tied vote, the person chairing the meeting 
may exercise a second or casting vote. 

  
6.3  Task and finish groups will be responsible for providing advice to the Board to support 

the decision-making processes.    
 
7.0  Challenge Process  
 
7.1  In exercising collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board each partner 

agency will be open to challenge and scrutiny through the formal processes of the 
accountable body (the Council) and of the other agencies.  

Page 17



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

6 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

7.2  Progress on the delivery of the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Strategy will be 
performance managed by the Board and an annual review will be published which is 
open to challenge by any interested party.  

 
8.0  Partner Roles and Responsibilities  
 
8.1  The Local Authority (Council) is responsible for leading the Wirral Health and 

Wellbeing Board and the Council in the improvement of outcomes for all local people. 
In this respect the Council is the accountable body for the Wirral Health and Wellbeing 
Board. The Health and Wellbeing Board is responsible for the development and 
implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy as the single agreement 
between the board members on priorities and actions to improve the health and 
wellbeing of local people.  

 
8.2  National Health Service commissioning organisations are responsible for ensuring 

that health provision meets the identified needs of local people. Partner health 
organisations are responsible for ensuring health provision is aligned to the priorities 
agreed in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

 
8.3  The Voluntary Community and Faith Sector has  a significant expertise in the delivery 

of services and in engaging local people in identifying needs, innovative service 
models and commissioning priorities. The Voluntary Community and Faith Sector 
representation is responsible for informing the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board on 
these areas of expertise and for ensuring the sector has a voice in identifying priorities 
and actions in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

 
9.0  The Scope of Involvement  
 
9.1  The Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board will demonstrate clear links to the Local 

Strategic Partnership (LSP) and other strategic partnerships e.g. Wirral Children’s 
Trust to ensure that strategies are not fragmented and that different services share 
priorities and thinking.  

 
9.2  The views of local people are at the centre of strategic planning and service design. 

The Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board will ensure ongoing high quality consultation 
with local people is undertaken to empower and engage the wider community. 
Specific consultation will be carried out during the preparation of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy.  

 
10.0 Leadership  
 
10.1  Each Board member will act on behalf of their organisation as an ambassador for to 

promote the health and wellbeing of the people of Wirral locally, regionally and 
nationally.  Board members will take responsibility for ensuring the agreed actions are 
carried out and their agency/sector is fully informed about the work of the Wirral 
Health and Wellbeing Board and engaged in the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. 

 
 

Page 18



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

7 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

 
11.0 Performance Management  
 
11.1  Each member of the Board will take full responsibility and accountability for the 

delivery of the outcomes agreed for the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
 
11.2  The Board will review progress in achieving improved outcomes on a regular basis. 

Management information reports will inform the Board of the progress being made in 
achieving the outcome measures set out in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

 
12.0 Information Sharing  
 
12.1  The Board will ensure that information sharing protocols are designed to enable 

intelligence gathering for effective needs analysis to be carried out on a continuous 
basis  

 
13.0 Risk Assessment 
  
13.1  Risks associated with the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy will be  

managed by the Public Health Team and escalated to the Board for formal 
assessment when necessary.  

 
14.0 Equalities and Inclusion  
 
14.1  The Health and Wellbeing Board will operate on the basis of principles that actively 

value the benefits of diversity and ensure fair treatment and equality of opportunity.   
 
14.2  On an annual basis an equalities impact assessment will be carried out through a 

review of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
 
15.0 Dispute and Conflict Resolution  
 
15.1  Members of the partnership:  

• Must not use their position improperly, confer on, or secure for themselves or any 
other person, an advantage or disadvantage  

• Must not unduly influence any person in the paid employment of any of the partner 
agencies  

• Must ensure that activities are not undertaken for political purposes  
 
15.2  Issues of conflict within the partnership will be resolved initially by informal discussion. 

If this is not successful the issue will be referred to the Chief Executive of each 
agency who will meet to attempt to resolve the issue. If the issue is still not resolved 
appropriate alternative dispute resolution (ADR) will be considered.  

 
16.0  Review of the Memorandum of Understanding  
 
16.1  This Memorandum of Understanding will be reviewed on an annual basis.  

Page 19



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

8 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

 
17.0 Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board - Terms of Reference 
 
17.1 Vision 
 

To enable people to live healthy lives, tackle health inequalities and increase 
wellbeing of the communities and people of Wirral  

 
17.2 Mission 
 

To work across professional and agency boundaries to drive innovation make a 
difference to the health and wellbeing of local people by; 

 
• agreeing priorities and actions to reduce health inequalities and promote health 

and wellbeing 
• developing a Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
• developing a framework for the effective performance monitoring of the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy  
• discussing and evaluating joint performance 

 
17.3 Purpose 
 

The Health & Wellbeing Board will not be responsible for directly commissioning 
services, but will provide oversight, strategic direction and coordination of the 
following activities: 
 
• To develop a shared understanding of the needs of the local community through 

the development of an agreed Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
 

• To seek to meet those needs through leading on the on going development of a 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy 

 
• To provide a local governance structure for local planning and accountability of 

health and wellbeing related outcomes 
 

• To work with HealthWatch in Wirral to ensure appropriate engagement and 
involvement within existing patient and service user involvement groups takes 
place 

 
• To drive a collaborative approach to commissioning of improved health and care 

services which improve the health and wellbeing of local people 
 

• To consider and take advantage of opportunities to more closely integrate health 
and social care services in commissioning and provision 

 
• To review the financial and organisational implications of joint and integrated 

working across health and social care services, ensuring that performance and 

Page 20



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

9 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

quality standards of health and social care services are met, and represent value 
for money across the whole system 

 
• To establish a key forum for local democratic accountability relating to 

commissioning against agreed health outcomes 
 

• To establish a productive working relationship with the Local Strategic Partnership 
to ensure there is no duplication of activity 

 
17.3 Core Membership 
Organisation Representative 
Wirral Borough Council 
 

• All three party leaders 
• Chief Executive 
• Director of Public health 
• Director of Adult Social Services 
• Director of Children and Young 

Peoples services 
 

Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

• Chair 
• Accountable Officer 
 

HealthWatch 
 

• Representative 
 

National Commissioning Board – 
Local Are Team; Cheshire, Warrington 
and Wirral 
 

• Representative 
 

 
17.4 Co-opted members 
Wirral Borough Council 
 

• Portfolio holder for Social Care and 
Inclusion 

• Portfolio holder for Children’s 
Services and Lifelong Learning 

 
Voluntary, community and faith sector 
 

• Chief Executive, Voluntary & 
Community Action Wirral 

 
NHS 
 

• Chief Executive, Wirral University 
Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust 

• Chief Executive, Wirral Community 
NHS Trust 

• Chief Executive, Cheshire & Wirral 
Partnership Trust  

• Chief Executive, Clatterbridge Centre 
for Oncology NHS  Foundation Trust 

• Representatives from the three 
divisions of the Clinical 

Page 21



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

10 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

Commissioning Group to present 
annual commissioning plan 

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board 
 

• Chair – to present annual report 
 

Local Safeguarding Adults Board • Chair – to present annual report 
 

 
17.5 Representatives of other bodies may be invited to participate in Board discussions, or 

co-opted, to support effective decision-making.  Such representatives should be 
invited bearing in mind the principles of fairness, equality and transparency. 

 
17.6 Meetings 
 

Formal meetings will be held quarterly.  Development sessions will also be held for 
Board members during the year as required. 

 
Agendas and minutes of formal meetings of the Board will be published on the 
Council website. 

 
17.7 Chair 
 

The Leader of the Council will chair the Health & Wellbeing Board.  
 
17.8 Decisions 
 

Where a decision is required, that decision will be made by agreement among a  
majority of members present.  Where a decision needs to be ratified by one or more of 
the statutory agencies, the ratification process will be in accordance with the agreed 
process within that particular agency. 

 
17.9 Minutes 
 

Minutes of the proceedings of each meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Board will be 
drawn up, circulated and agreed as a correct record at the subsequent meeting, once 
any required amendments have been incorporated. 

 
17.10 Support to the Health & Wellbeing Board 
 

The Policy, Performance & Public Health Directorate will provide the following key  
functions to Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board:  

 
• Agenda preparation in consultation with the chair and board 
• Minute taking and distribution  
• Performance management reporting arrangements  
• Seek appropriate contributions from partners to support the Health and Wellbeing 

Board governance framework  
• If required, send representation to advise groups in terms of processes relating to 

governance reporting and standard agenda items  
 

Page 22



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 

11 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board – Memorandum of Understanding 
March 2013 

17.11 Review 
 

The membership and terms of reference of the Health & Wellbeing Board will be 
regularly reviewed (at least annually) to ensure that they remain relevant and up to 
date. 

 
18.0  Task and finish groups  
 
18.1  Multi agency task and finish groups will be established as appropriate to progress the  

work of the Board and Health and Wellbeing Strategy. They will be accountable to the 
Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 
18.2  Task and finish groups are responsible for:  
 

• The monitoring and reporting on progress  
• Receiving information from and responding to requests from other groups and 

stakeholders  
• Making quarterly performance progress reports highlighting areas of poor 

performance, issues and risk  
• Developing opportunities for multi-agency involvement and networking to share 

best practice  
• Providing support and information to other groups within the Borough.  
• Maintaining effective arrangements to consult with local people act on the results 

of the consultation and provide feedback  
 
18.3 The membership and chair of the groups will be agreed by the Health and Wellbeing  

Board. Meeting arrangements will be agreed by each group to meet the timescale set 
by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 
19.0 Support to the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board   
 
19.1  The Policy, Performance & Public Health Directorate will provide the following key  

functions to Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board:  
 

• Agenda preparation  
• Minute taking and distribution  
• Performance management reporting arrangements.  
• Seek appropriate contributions from partners to support the Health and Wellbeing 

Board governance framework.  
• If required, send representation to advise groups in terms of processes relating to 

governance reporting and standard agenda items  
 
 
 
Insert logos of member organisations of the HWB 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 
    
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Structure of the Wirral Health & Wellbeing Board 

               12 

Figure 1: The Structure of the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board   
 

P
age 24



WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
Meeting Date 13 March 2013 Agenda Item 5 
Report Title Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
Responsible Board 
Member 

Director of Public Health 

Board development  
   

X 

JSNA/JHWS X 

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

X 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

  

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No  N/A Not yet done 

Purpose For 
approval 

X To note  To 
assure 

 

Summary of Paper Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, Health and Wellbeing 
Boards will be established. One of their key roles is the production of a 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Strategy set outs how the Board intends to 
achieve its vision to enable local people to live healthy lives, tackle 
health inequalities and increase wellbeing in the communities and 
people of Wirral 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 
(none at this stage) £  £  £  

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

The production of the strategy is a statutory requirement.  Failure to 
deliver the strategy may mean that community needs are not 
addressed appropriately and the board is not meeting its statutory duty. 
 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

There has been extensive engagement and consultation with the public 
and all stakeholders regarding the development of the Strategy, 
including a questionnaire to the public (over 600 responses) and a 
number of stakeholder events.   

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

The Board is asked to approve the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
for Wirral, note that further work is required on the action plans, with 
further amendments to the plan being developed in conjunction with the 
borough’s partnership planning arrangements. 

Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
Health and Wellbeing Shadow 
Board meeting  

12.12.2012 Health and wellbeing priorities for 2013/14 
agreed, allowing progression to the next 
stage of Strategy development (individual 
work streams action planning) 

Health and Wellbeing Shadow 
Board meeting  

25.01.2012 Update on progress 

List of 
Appendices 

 

Yes X Yes  Publish On 
Website No  

Private Business 
No X 

  
Report Author:  Helen Bromley  Contact details: helen.bromley@nhs.net 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 
Background 
 
1. Under the Health and Social Care Act, 2012 all upper tier and unitary local authorities in 

England will take on a new duty in April 2013 to take such steps as they consider 
appropriate for improving the health of the population of their area. An important step in 
exercising this duty is the establishment of a Health and Wellbeing Board as a statutory 
committee of the Council and the production of a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

 
2. The Health and Wellbeing Strategy sets out how the Board intends to achieve its vision 

to enable local people to live healthy lives, tackle health inequalities and increase 
wellbeing in the communities and people of Wirral 
 

Purpose of report 
 
3. The purpose of this report is to appraise the Board of work undertaken to produce the 

first Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Wirral and to obtain approval for publication 
of the strategy. 
 

Development of the strategy 
 
4. The Strategy sets out the overarching framework that describes how the public, private 

and voluntary sectors will work together with Wirral residents to improve the health and 
wellbeing of local people.  The strategy provides a basis for the commissioning of health, 
social care and wellbeing services in Wirral. The development of this strategy has 
provided an opportunity for partnership working and builds on previous work of 
organisations that form the Health and Wellbeing Board.   

 
5. This strategy does not replace existing commissioning plans; rather it is aligned with 

them.  It is intended to support the commissioning of health, social care and wellbeing 
services. Key priorities and outcomes have been developed in consultation with 
stakeholders and will be evaluated and updated every year in the light of progress and 
feedback from stakeholders, including local residents.   

 
6. The strategy is based on: 

• National and local evidence of health needs.  The local evidence comes from our 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment which includes a wide range of health and 
wellbeing issues 

• Existing local strategies and plans that impact on health and wellbeing  
• Public and stakeholder consultation 
• Benchmarking our own plans against those we have reviewed in other local 

authorities  

7. To address the challenges identified in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, three 
priority programme areas for shared action have been agreed by the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, based on public and stakeholder consultation and evidence of what 
works. The priority programme areas agreed for year one of this strategy are:  

• Mental Health 
• Older people 
• Alcohol misuse 

 
8. The Board will focus on these priority areas in year one of its operation to improve the 

health and wellbeing of local people. In each of the priority areas the board will work to 
improve the health of the worst off fastest through greater improvements in more 
disadvantaged communities and vulnerable groups. 

Page 26



 
9. For each priority area we have identified a number of key outcomes to demonstrate the 

difference being made locally, by delivery of this strategy and all the other plans and 
actions it influences. 

 
How will the strategy be delivered? 
 
10. The Health and Wellbeing Board will review the strategy on a six monthly basis with an 

annual revision.  The action plans developed for the priority areas set out a programme 
of activities to address the priorities and achieve outcomes. Further work is required on 
the action plans to ensure that they are SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, 
Realistic and Timely). 

 
11. The Strategy is not a static document; to date we have focused on year one of the 

operation of the Board. The strategy is an iterative document and will be developed in 
the light of the developing partnership planning agenda in the borough as illustrated 
thorough the development of the Public Sector Board.  

 
Action required 
 
12. The Board is asked to approve the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Wirral and 

note that further work is required on the action plans, with further amendments to the 
plan being developed in conjunction with the borough’s partnership planning 
arrangements. 

 
 
 
 
Report Author:  Helen Bromley 
   Specialist Registrar in Public Health 
 
Contact details: helen.bromley@nhs.net 

Tel: 0151 643 5392 

 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft  

Page 1 of 30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wirral  

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Strategy 2013/14 
 

 

 

Page 29



Draft  

Page 2 of 30 

 

 

 

Contents 
Foreword.......................................................................................................................... 3 

Introduction/background .................................................................................................. 4 

Context and challenges ................................................................................................... 4 

The vision for health and wellbeing in Wirral.................................................................... 6 

The social determinants of health .................................................................................... 6 

Principles ......................................................................................................................... 9 

How the Health and Wellbeing Strategy was developed.................................................. 9 

Why and how we identified the health and wellbeing prioirties for this strategy............... 9 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy on a page...................................................................... 11 

Our priority areas ........................................................................................................... 12 

Priority Area 1: Mental health......................................................................................... 12 

Priority area 2: Older people .......................................................................................... 13 

Priority area 3: Alcohol................................................................................................... 15 

How will the Strategy be delivered?............................................................................... 17 

Local strengths and assets ............................................................................................ 17 

Appendix 1: Local strategies related to health and wellbeing ........................................ 18 

Appendix 2: Health and  Wellbeing Strategy 2013/14 action plan ................................. 19 

 

 

 

Page 30



Draft  

Page 3 of 30 

 

Foreword 
 
 
Good health and wellbeing is at the heart of a happy and fulfilling life.  It is the Health 
and Wellbeing Board’s duty to make sure that local people are given every 
opportunity to live healthy lives and tackle health inequalities.There are  many 
resources and ideas present in our borough promoting health and wellbeing and we 
have an opportunity to build on these.  We need to use evidence and local 
knowledge to get resources in the right place at the right time.   
 
The Department of Health estimates that health services, although important to our 
health and wellbeing, only contribute about 20% of our health status.  The other 80% 
is determined by access to employment and education opportunities, our income, 
good housing, education, transport links and supportive social networks.  We know 
that there are strong links between poverty, including lack of work, and poor health 
and wellbeing.   
 
From April 2013, Wirral’s Health and Wellbeing Board will be a statutory committee of 
Wirral Borough Council.  It will provide the opportunity for elected members, the 
NHS, Local Authority officers , and voluntary and community representatives to agree 
how to work together to achieve better health and wellbeing for all residents of Wirral.  
One of the responsibilities of the Health and Wellbeing Board is to prepare this Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  The strategy sets out a framework for achieving our 
goal of better health and wellbeing in Wirral, with a particular emphasis on those who 
need support most. 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Strategy includes actions for improving health both within 
and outside of NHS services, promoting better integration of services based around 
people’s needs rather than traditional organisational boundaries.  The Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy will be managed through the Health and Wellbeing Board.  The 
priorities will guide action and shape our local commissioning decisions.   
 
Preventing problems and intervening early when problems occur will be a real test for 
how well we do.  We already have a strong sense of community in Wirral with real 
pride in the many local activities and groups that have been built by local people for 
local people.  There is a strong sense of what needs to be done and a determination 
to see change happen.  The value of the Health and Wellbeing Board is that it can 
identify and act on issues that single agencies have struggled to address in the past.  
We believe that working together in this way will improve the health and wellbeing of 
Wirral’s citizens.   
 
 

Cllr Phil Davies 

Chair of the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board  

Page 31



Draft  

Page 4 of 30 

 

Introduction/background 
This is the first Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Wirral.  It sets out the overarching 
framework that describes how the public, private and voluntary sectors will work 
together with Wirral residents to improve the health and wellbeing of local people.  
The strategy provides a basis for the commissioning of health, social care and 
wellbeing services in Wirral.  It has been developed during a time of transition, as the 
Council prepares to take on new statutory health responsibilities from April 2013.  
The development of this strategy has provided an opportunity for partnership working 
and builds on previous work of organisations that form the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.   

This strategy does not replace existing commissioning plans; rather it is aligned with 
them.  It is intended to support the commissioning of health, social care and 
wellbeing services.  Key priorities and outcomes have been developed in 
consultation with stakeholders and will be evaluated and updated every year in the 
light of progress and feedback from stakeholders, including local residents.   

Context and challenges 
• Wirral is a unique place, home to approximately 319,800 people, including 
190,000 people of working age and over 8,000 businesses providing 
employment for 105,800 people.  The population grew by 2.4 percent and by 
7,500 households between 2001 and 2011. 

• Wirral it is the ninth largest metropolitan Council in England in terms of 
population.  It is also the second largest local authority in Liverpool’s City 
Region (LCR) and bigger than many cities such as Newcastle, Derby, 
Leicester and Nottingham.  Were Wirral in the North East or East Midlands, it 
would be the largest metropolitan council in that region. 

• The borough of Wirral forms the northernmost part of the peninsula between 
the Dee and Mersey estuaries on the opposite bank of the Mersey from 
Liverpool, between Liverpool and North Wales.  As a land area, Wirral extends 
to 60 square miles, with 25 miles of coastline.  It is an area of outstanding 
natural beauty, packed full of spectacular scenery, with a rich mixture of 
culture and heritage. 

• Wirral functions as part of a wider sub-region centred around Liverpool and is 
bordered to the south by the district of Cheshire West and Chester. 

• Wirral’s economy today has a total value of around £3 billion per year and is 
home to some international businesses.   The visitor economy in Wirral was 
estimated to be worth £289 million in 2011, up by 3% since 2010.  Wirral has 
contributed 34% of the overall total increase in the number of enterprises 
across Merseyside since 2011. 

Page 32



Draft  

Page 5 of 30 

 

• The borough’s economy has challenges, including the lowest GVA per head in 
England (at £10.736) and the second highest concentration of economic 
inactivity in England.  Although performing well against the Liverpool City 
Region authorities and regionally in respect of Job Seekers Allowance (JSA), 
Wirral continues to have a higher percentage of people claiming out-of-work 
benefits than the regional and national averages at 17.7%. Wirral has high 
concentrations in deprived areas at 34.3%.   18-24 JSA remains higher than 
regional and national averages at 10.3%, but good performance over the last 
quarter means Wirral is now in line with the LCR average.  Wirral has the 
lowest job density ratio in the LCR with 57 jobs per 100 residents.  Wirral is 
heavily public sector dependant making up 39% of employee jobs in the 
borough; this is above the national average. 

• Many of the people who live in Wirral enjoy an outstanding quality of life, with 
excellent housing, schools and a high quality environment.  However, there is 
a strong contrast between the older, highly urbanised areas of Birkenhead and 
Wallasey, which contain some of the poorest communities in England and the 
wealthier commuter settlements in the west of Wirral.  Wirral’s 
neighbourhoods range from the most deprived in the country (around St 
James Church in Birkenhead) to one of the most affluent, or least deprived, in 
South West Heswall less than six miles away.  15 areas in Wirral fall into the 
highest 3% in England in terms of levels of child poverty, with a total of 56 
areas in the highest 20%.  

• The most deprived parts of the borough generally have a younger population 
profile than the Wirral average.   Educational achievement at Key Stage Four 
is below the Wirral average compared to outcomes for children living in the 
more affluent areas which tends to be above average.   There have been 
reductions in the number of 16-18 year olds overall in Wirral not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET) at 9.15%; however concentrations of NEET in 
deprived areas can reach up to 19% in some areas. 

• The wealthier west of the borough (including Bebington and Clatterbridge, 
Heswall, Pensby and Thingwall and West Wirral) has an older population 
profile.  Life expectancy in these areas is above the Wirral average, with 
people living as much as 11.6 years longer than those in the east of borough.  
Life expectancy varies hugely in Wirral, with differences of up to 11.6 years for 
people living in different parts of the borough.  

• The older population in Wirral as a whole (aged 65 years and above) is 
expected to increase at the fastest rate (than any other age group) over the 
next decade; between 2011 and 2021 it is estimated that this population group 
will have increased by 17.4%. The population of over 85’s is projected to 
increase from 8,460 in 2011 to 10,985 in 2021, which equates to a 29.9% 
increase.  

Page 33



Draft  

Page 6 of 30 

 

• The contrast between the most affluent and most deprived areas is also 
apparent in the neighbourhood issues that matter to residents such as levels 
of anti-social behaviour and the quality of the local environment.  However, 
although the quality of the environment can be poor in the most deprived 
areas, every part of the borough is well served by public parks and open 
spaces.   

• House prices are lower than the Wirral average in the more deprived areas 
although this does mean that there is greater availability of affordable housing. 
In the west, house prices tend to higher than the Wirral average and there is 
limited availability of affordable housing.     

• As well as there being high levels of car ownership, access to services via 
public transport in the west is also relatively good.  There are generally low 
levels of car ownership in the more deprived areas but there is good access to 
services by public transport. 

The vision for health and wellbeing in Wirral 
The Health and Wellbeing Board’s vision is to enable local people to live healthy 
lives, to tackle health inequalities and increase wellbeing in the people and 
communities of Wirral. Its mission is to work across professional and agency 
boundaries to drive innovation and make a difference to the health and wellbeing of 
local people.  The Board is committed to maximising the health and wellbeing of 
Wirral residents and will do this by: 

• agreeing priorities and actions to reduce health inequalities and promote 
health and wellbeing 

• developing a Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
• developing a framework for the effective performance monitoring of the Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy  

• discussing and evaluating joint performance 

This Strategy is the vehicle through which the Board’s vision will be achieved.   

The social determinants of health  
The Board recognises that health and wellbeing are influenced by a multiplicity of 
factors which impact on the health of individuals.  This is shown in the diagram 
below.  In the centre, there are factors which a person has little control over, 
including gender, age, ethnicity and their genetic make-up.  The second layer shows 
behavioural lifestyle factors – for example, smoking, diet, physical activity and alcohol 
intake.  The third layer shows broader factors, such as family, friends and 
community.  The fourth layer shows the so-called wider determinants of health, 
including education, housing and employment.  The fifth, outermost layer shows 

Page 34



Draft  

Page 7 of 30 

 

general socio-economic conditions, including economic, political, cultural and 
environmental conditions present in society as a whole.   

Tackling health inequalities requires action across all the layers of influence.  The 
wider determinants of health and wellbeing such as the early years environment, 
housing, economic development, crime and spatial planning are well evidenced, and 
Wirral’s Health and Wellbeing Board is seizing the opportunity to make a positive 
difference to all of them.   

Page 35



Draft  

Page 8 of 30 

 

 
Figure 1: The wider social determinants of health  

 

(Source: Dahlgren and Whitehead 1991) 

There is now strong evidence that taking purposeful, systematic and scaled up action 
to promote positive wellbeing helps create resilience in individuals and communities 
which offers protection from the harmful health effects of deprivation and social 
inequality.  The Five Ways to Wellbeing offers a route for us all improve our metal 
wellbeing, by building the following steps into our daily routines:  

• Connect with others - whether it is at home, work, school or within the local 
community. Taking the time to develop these relationships can enhance 
everyday life 

• Be active - finding something suitable for your level of fitness and most 
importantly, which you enjoy; anything from gardening to walking to work. 

• Take notice of the world around you - noticing the simple things whilst going 
about your daily routine, such as a change in season or a piece of artwork and 
savouring the moment will help put things in perspective and allow you to be 
more appreciative 

Page 36



Draft  

Page 9 of 30 

 

• Keep learning - trying something different such as learning a new instrument 
or language will set a challenge, and increase motivation and confidence 

• Give - do something nice for a friend or stranger… help out in your local 
community. Or even just smile at someone!  

Principles 
The following list details the Health and Wellbeing Board’s principles for working 
together.  They provide the basis for decision making and will drive the work of the 
board.    

• putting local people first in everything we do, putting the needs of local people 
and communities before organisational boundaries 

• valuing excellence and professionalism wherever it is found  
• mutual trust and respect – valuing each person as an individual, taking what 
others have to say seriously 

• being honest about our point of view and what we can and cannot do 
• creative and innovative solutions to problems 
• removal of barriers to equality of access and opportunity  

How the Health and Wellbeing Strategy was developed 
This strategy is based on: 

• National and local evidence of health needs.  The local evidence comes from 
our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment which includes a wide range of 
information about health and wellbeing issues 

• Evidence about what works 
• Existing local strategies and plans that impact on health and wellbeing (see 
appendix 1) 

• Public and stakeholder consultation 
• Benchmarking our own plans against those we have reviewed in other local 
authorities  

The priorities in this strategy were agreed by Health and Wellbeing Board members 
and wider stakeholders, including local residents.   

Why and how we identified the health and wellbeing priorities for this strategy 
The aim of the prioritisation process was to identify the key topic areas that would get 
the best health and wellbeing outcomes for local people.  Key areas were identified 
from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and in consultation with Wirral residents 
and other stakeholders.  The key areas were subjected to a rigorous, transparent and 
inclusive prioritisation process.  The priority programme areas agreed for this 
Strategy were (in no particular order):  

Page 37



Draft  

Page 10 of 30 

 

• Mental Health 
• Older people 
• Alcohol  

In each of the priority areas, we will work to improve the health of the worst off, 
fastest, through greater improvements in more disadvantaged communities and 
vulnerable groups.   

Page 38



Draft  

Page 11 of 30 

 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy on a page 
To address the challenges identified, as part of our vision for better health and wellbeing, three priority areas for shared action, across 
partners have been agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  These were identified through public and stakeholder consultation and 
evidence of what works.  The Board will focus on these three areas to improve the physical and mental health and wellbeing of Wirral’s 
residents, using the approach and principles described earlier.  In each of these areas we will work to improve the health of the worst-
off fastest through greater improvements in more disadvantaged communities and vulnerable groups.  For each priority area we have 
also identified a number of key outcomes, such as increased wellbeing and reduced alcohol-related harm, improvements which will 
demonstrate the difference being made locally by delivery of this strategy and all the other plans and actions it influences.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Priority area 1: Mental health  
Tackling social isolation leading to 
enhanced quality of life 
Developing effective links with 
housing providers 
Enhanced employment 
opportunities 
Increased amount of and 

• Continuing 
poverty, 
deprivation and 
disadvantage 

• Unemployment 
and worklessness 

• Differential access 
to high quality 
housing  

• High levels of fuel 
poverty 

• Increasing aging 
population 
needing support 
to remain socially 
included and 
independent 

• Increasing levels of 
long term 
conditions and 
disability  

• Significant sections 
of the population 

Challenges Principles  Priority actions Key outcomes 

Priority area 2: Older people  
Tackling social isolation to enable 
older people to maintain 
independence and wellbeing  
Keeping warm and well 
Falls prevention 
Early support for people with signs 
and symptoms of Dementia 

Priority area 3: Alcohol  
Identification, prevention, 
treatment and recovery  
Crime and disorder 
Children and young people  

• Putting local 
people first in 
everything we do, 
putting the needs 
of local people and 
communities 
before 
organisational 
boundaries 

• Valuing excellence 
and professionalism 
wherever it is found 

• Mutual trust and 
respect – valuing 
each person as an 
individual, taking 
what others have 
to say seriously 

• Being honest about 
our point of view 
and what we can 
and cannot do 

• Increased wellbeing 
• Increase employment for those with 
Long Term Conditions 

• Reduced work sickness 
absence  

• Increased quality of life of people 
with Long Term Conditions 

• Increased wellbeing 
• Reduced excess winter deaths 
• Reduction in fuel poverty 
• Reduced hospital admissions  
• Increased engagement in local 
schemes 

• Reduced admissions to residential 
and nursing care homes 

• Reduced income deprivation 
affecting older people  

• Reduced alcohol-related harm 
and in particular its impact on liver 
disease 

• Reduced alcohol related 
admissions 

P
age 39



Draft  

Page 12 of 30 

 

Our priority areas 

Priority Area 1: Mental health 
Challenges 

The 2011 strategy ‘No health without mental health’ places a firm emphasis on 
early intervention to stop serious mental health issues developing, and on 
tackling inequalities.  The strategy recognises the importance of addressing the 
wider social determinants of mental health, for example with measures such as 
providing face-to-face debt advice.   

Areas of socio-economic deprivation are most likely to have low mental wellbeing 
and Wirral is no exception.  Wirral has a lower mental health wellbeing score 
than the North West average.  In Wirral, there is a significantly higher rate of 
hospitalisation for mental health conditions than across the rest of Merseyside, 
and the rate is more than twice that for England.  Factors such as poor quality 
housing, unemployment and deprivation can contribute to mental ill health or can 
make an episode of mental distress more difficult to manage.   

Supporting people with dementia and their carers is a key local priority (see also 
the Older People’s section of this Strategy).  The prevalence of dementia 
increases with age and is estimated to be approximately 20 per cent at 80 years 
of age.  In a third of cases, dementia is associated with other psychiatric 
symptoms such as depressive disorder and alcohol related problems.  Many 
people with dementia are undiagnosed, and may not have the access to care 
that could be available to them.   

What we will do to address these challenges? (For full details please see 
Action Plan) 

• Address  social isolation and provide practical help for people with mental 
health issues 

• Develop stronger links with housing providers 
• Promote employment opportunities for people with mental health issues 
• Promote accessibility to community-based interventions   

How will we know we are making a difference - key outcomes (for full details 
please see Action Plan) 

• Improved self-reported wellbeing 
• Improved social contentedness 

Page 40



Draft  

Page 13 of 30 

 

• Increased numbers of people receiving secondary mental health services 
in settled accommodation 

• Increased employment for those with a long-term health condition 
including mental illness 

• Improved health-related quality of life for older people  
• Reduced suicide rates 

Priority area 2: Older people 
Challenges 

Older people are valuable and positive contributors to our communities.  Many 
are active citizens, participating in a variety of local community and voluntary 
associations and other actives, both paid and unpaid.  But life expectancy at age 
65 is lower for men and women in Wirral compared to the North West and 
England overall.  The number of older people is set to increase over the next two 
decades and by 2032 it is estimated that 27% of the Wirral population will be 
aged 65 or above.  This will have a considerable impact on health and social 
care services, as the number of older people presenting with health related 
problems increases.  It will also have a considerable impact on the number of 
family carers in Wirral and carers themselves will also be ageing.  In certain 
areas of Wirral, a large percentage of older people are living in deprivation 
(between 50% and 70%).  Fuel poverty is a major issue for many older people 
and has a serious impact on their health and wellbeing.  On average, there are 
around 189 more deaths than anticipated in the older population in Wirral each 
year.  Wirral has a higher rate of older people in nursing homes compared to 
both the North West and England.  Rates of older people in residential care 
homes are above those of England but below those in the North West.  It is not 
fully clear why this is, but may be affected by a lack of sufficiently flexible 
intermediate care, community nursing and domiciliary support.  In 2011/12, 438 
people aged 65+ in Wirral fractured their hip as the result of a fall. The projected 
rise in the older population may mean the number of falls resulting in serious 
consequences will also rise in Wirral (resulting in more admissions to care 
homes).  Hospital admissions for hip and knee replacements in Wirral are high.  

In 2010/11, 1,902 people were recorded on GP registers as having dementia; 
however, nationally, only around 45% of people with dementia are on a GP 
register.  This means a significant number of people with dementia are unknown 
to services and not receiving the care they may need.  Emergency hospital 
admissions for dementia in Wirral are approximately 54% higher than the 
national average, which could indicate unmet need in the community.  There are 

Page 41



Draft  

Page 14 of 30 

 

around 30,000 people aged 65+ in Wirral who report that they have a Limiting 
Long-Term Illness.   

We need to ensure that people in later life can get the care and support they 
need at an early stage to prevent problems getting worse.  The Local Authority 
and the NHS are currently working closely together to develop integrated 
services and this work is being led through a Long Term Conditions Integration 
Programme.  This whole system redesign programme is aimed jointly at 
providing interventions and services that are more personalised, preventative 
and outcome focused.  The primary aim is to promote and maintain people’s 
capacity to remain independent, by taking control of their own situations.  This 
move away from a ‘crisis management’ approach to one that focuses on 
prevention and early intervention services is consistent with promoting health, 
wellbeing and good quality of life.  Redesigned services will provide responsive 
and more flexible, innovative and person-centred services.   

There is a wealth of information and support available through the Council, 
doctor’s surgeries and local websites.  We could, however, improve people’s 
awareness of what is available by promoting these information sources better.   

What will we do to address these challenges?  (For full details please see 
Action Plan) 

• Address social isolation by providing practical help to older people via 
information, advice and advocacy services 

• Help older people to keep warm and well 
• Promote falls prevention messages 
• Early detection of dementia 
• Develop joint commissioning and better integration of services 
 

How will we know we are making a difference - key outcomes (for full details 
please see Action Plan) 

• Improved health-related quality of life for older people  
• Improved social contentedness 
• Improved older people’s perception of community safety 
• Increased self reported wellbeing   
• Reduced fuel poverty 
• Reduced excess winter deaths 
• Dementia and its impacts 
• Reduced falls and fall injuries in the over 65 

Page 42



Draft  

Page 15 of 30 

 

• Reduced hip fractures in the over 65 
• Reduction in emergency readmissions within 30 days of discharge 
• Reduction in residential/nursing care home admissions  

 Priority area 3: Alcohol 
Challenges 

Lifestyle behaviours, including drinking too much alcohol, contribute to health 
inequalities and these behaviours are more prevalent in Wirral’s most deprived 
areas.  Alcohol is the largest contributor to the rise in mortality from liver disease 
and other digestive disorders and it is a significant contributor to the life 
expectancy gap locally.  Alcohol-related hospital admissions on Wirral have 
doubled since 2002/3 and are significantly higher in Wirral than the regional and 
national averages.  Alcohol-specific hospital admissions in the under-18s in 
Wirral is also higher than both the North West and England averages, but, like 
the rest of England, over the last few years, has shown a downward trend.  
Although alcohol-related crime in Wirral decreased between 2008/09 and 
2011/12, the volume of alcohol-related domestic violence in Wirral has increased.  
Alcohol-related youth violence in Wirral has increased by nearly 35% since 2008.  
Locally, there is evidence of alcohol misuse on Wirral amongst the Irish and 
Polish communities, with links to social isolation, poverty and mental health.   

There is a wide range of help and treatment options available in Wirral, focusing 
on prevention, identification, treatment and recovery.  Alcohol services are 
targeted to those ‘most at risk’ so that services are more accessible and 
appropriate, addressing the needs of the local population.  They include self-
help; brief advice; counselling; abstinence; detoxification; residential rehabilitation 
and practical support services, which assist with issues such as childcare, 
education, employment and housing.  The developing “Alcohol Shared Care” 
Scheme will ensure every General Practice on Wirral has access to a specialist 
alcohol treatment practitioner.  

There is also a range of initiatives addressing crime, disorder and communities, 
such as appropriate support, advice or treatment for victims or offenders and 
projects to reduce alcohol-related (re-)offending; such as the “Prison Through-
Care Scheme”.  Local work is being undertaken with licensees including training 
and education programmes and they are being encouraged to adopt of the 
locally developed Charter for Licensed Premises.   

Page 43



Draft  

Page 16 of 30 

 

What will we do to address these challenges? (For full details please see 
Action Plan) 

A local alcohol strategy has been developed with involvement of local partners.  
The strategy has three strands of activity: 

• Identification,  prevention, treatment and recovery (to reduce alcohol-
related harm and in particular, its impact on liver disease) 

• Crime and disorder (to reduce alcohol-related crime, disorder and other 
types of harm to communities)  

• Children and young people (to reduce the number of young people (under 
18) who are drinking in excess and indulging in alcohol related risk taking 
behaviour 

 
How will we know we are making a difference - key outcomes (for full details 
please see Action Plan) 

• Reduced hospital admissions as a result of self-harm 
• Reduced alcohol-related admissions to hospital  
• Reduced under 75 mortality rate from liver disease 
• Reduced emergency readmissions within 30 days of discharge from 
hospital Fewer suicides 

Page 44



Draft  

Page 17 of 30 

 

 

How will the Strategy be delivered?  
The Health and Wellbeing Board will be the partnership through which this 
Strategy will be managed and monitored.  It will be reviewed on a six monthly 
basis by the Board.  Priorities will be revised annually where appropriate, based 
on need.  It is accompanied by an action plan which sets out a programme of 
activities – and progress against each one – to address priorities and achieve 
outcomes (see Appendix 2).   

Local strengths and assets 
Effective local delivery of this Strategy requires effective participatory decision-
making at the local level.  This can only happen by empowering individuals and 
local communities.  All of our communities and the people that live in them have 
social, cultural and material assets.  Assets are factors or resources which 
enhance the ability of individuals, communities and populations to maintain and 
sustain health and wellbeing.  An asset can be any of the following: 

• The practical skills, capacity and knowledge of local residents 
• The networks and connections (‘social capital’) in a community, including 
friendships and neighbourliness 

• The effectiveness of local community and voluntary associations 
• The resources of public, private and third sector organisations that are 
available to support a community 

• The physical and economic resources of a place that enhance wellbeing 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board recognises and values the capacity, skills, 
knowledge, connections, and potential in our communities.  Identifying and 
mobilising these assets can help individuals and communities’ overcome the 
health and wellbeing challenges that they face.  People and communities can 
bring fresh perspectives and solutions to addressing the problems identified.  
Recognising this, the Council is currently working with individuals, communities 
and organisations to develop effective ways of neighbourhood working, exploring 
resources within communities that may help to address needs.   

 

Page 45



Draft  

Page 18 of 30 

 

Appendix 1: Local strategies related to health and wellbeing 
 
Cross Cutting 
Wirral 2025: More equal, more prosperous.  A sustainable community strategy 
Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group Strategic Plan 2013-2016 
Wirral Children and Young People’s Strategic Plan  
Wirral Council Corporate Plan 2012/13 
Wirral Enterprise Strategy 
Wirral Full Employment Strategy 2006 
Wirral Investment Strategy 
Wirral Local Development Framework 
 
Mental health 
A Strategy for Services for Older People with Mental Health Needs 2009 and 
Beyond 
Mental Health and Wellbeing Commissioning Strategy, NHS Wirral & Wirral 
DASS 2008-2013  
A Strategic Joint Commissioning Framework for Children and Young People in 
Wirral 2007  
Joint Commissioning Strategy for Carers DASS 2008  
Shaping Tomorrow,  Wirral Adult Social Care Services  
 
Older people 
A Strategy for Services for Older People with Mental Health Needs 2009 and 
Beyond 
Joint Commissioning Strategy for Carers DASS 2008  
Wirral Prevention and Early Intervention Commissioning Plan (in development) 
 
Alcohol 
A strategy to tackle alcohol-related harm in Wirral 2013-2016  
Teenage Pregnancy Strategy 
 

 

Page 46



Draft  

Page 19 of 30 

 

Appendix 2: Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013/14 action plan 
Priority area  Key activities By when Lead responsibility High-level outcome indicator 
Mental health     

Build community capacity, 
ensuring that measures such as 
reducing social isolation and debt 
advice are available and 
accessible 

Ongoing  
 
 

WBC:VCAW; CCG 
 

Reduce stigma by implementing 
an ‘early’ awareness programme 
in schools to promote good mental 
health and recognise when 
someone is not coping 

March 2014 
 
 
 

Children’s Trust Board 
Local schools 
Public Health 

Run a mental health campaign to 
reduce stigma and promote early 
diagnosis in areas of the borough 
with high rates of mental illness 
e.g. ‘Time to Change’  

March 2014 
 
 
 

WBC 
 
 
 

Promote and integrate the ‘5 ways 
to wellbeing’ into the design of 
community programmes 

Ongoing  
 
 

CCG/CT 
 
 

Deliver Mental Wellbeing Impact 
Assessments (MWIA) on projects 
and programmes  

Ongoing  
 
 

WBC 
 

Address social 
isolation by 
providing 
practical help 
for people with 
mental health 
issues 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Services commissioned to include 
the assessment of wellbeing pre- 
and post- intervention) e.g. 
WEMWBs 

March 2014 Public Health  

1.18 Social contentedness 
2.23 Self-reported wellbeing 
(WEMWS) 
4.10 Suicide 
4.13 Health-related quality of 
life for older people 

P
age 47



Draft  

Page 20 of 30 

 

Obtain a greater understanding of 
local and regional housing policy 

September 
2013 

WBC/VCAW Develop 
stronger links 
with housing 
providers 

Investigate opportunities for 
greater integrated working 
between health and housing 
colleagues 

September 
2013 

WBC 

1.6ii People receiving 
secondary mental health 
services in settled 
accommodation 

Recruit and support employers to 
register and work towards 
achieving ‘Mindful Employer’ 

March 2014 
 

WBC/PH/Wirral 
Chamber of Commerce 

Encourage local employers to 
support and publicise the ‘Time to 
Change’ campaign  

March 2014 
 

WBC/PH/Wirral 
Chamber of commerce 

Promote  
employment 
opportunities 
for people with 
mental health 
issues 

Provide mental health awareness 
training for frontline staff and 
community members e.g. Mental 
Health First Aid 

March 2014 
 

CWP/CCG/WUTH 

1.8 Employment for those with 
a long term health condition 
including those with a mental 
illness 

Encourage interagency working 
so that mental health is a 
consideration in all activities and 
interventions and duplication of 
services or other efforts is 
minimized 

Ongoing  WBC 
 
 

Improve uptake of physical health 
checks for people with mental 
health problems 

March 2014 CCG/CWP/PH 

Promote 
accessibility to 
community-
based 
interventions   

Support mental health service 
users to give up smoking and 
understand how better to support 
them in smoking cessation 

Ongoing  CWP/NHS/PH/relevant 
providers 

1.18 Social contentedness  
2.18Alcohol-related admissions 
to hospital 
2.23 Self-reported wellbeing 
(WEMWS) 
4.13 Health-related quality of 
life for older people 

P
age 48



Draft  

Page 21 of 30 

 

Ensure access to appropriate low 
level community based 
interventions (e.g. befriending) are 
available to those who need them 

June 2013 WBC/CCGs/VCAW/NHS 

Evidence-based mental health 
awareness training (including 
suicide awareness) e.g. Time to 
change 

March 2014 CCGs 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49



Draft  

Page 22 of 30 

 

 

Priority area  Key activities By when Lead responsibility High-level outcome 
indicator 

Older people     
Use local press and publicity 
and  Wirral Well website to 
disseminate information 

Ongoing  Older people’s partnership 
WBC/VCAW 

Provide comprehensive 
advice on the full range of 
benefits and entitlements and 
increase take-up of these 

Ongoing  WBC/VCAW 
 

Implement the Prevention and 
Early Intervention Strategy  

April 2013 WBC (DASS) 
 

Extend the benefits for 
independence and quality of 
life of assistive and digital 
technologies, aids and 
adaptations, to a broader 
range of people 

April 2013 WBC (DASS_ 
 
 
 

Address social 
isolation by 
providing 
practical help to 
older people via 
information, 
advice and 
advocacy 
services 

Appropriate housing for older 
people:  
Integrate housing needs 
assessment into Health and 
Social Care  services 
assessment with established 
pathways to the WBC Home 
Improvement Agency 

April 2014 WBC (Housing/DASS/PH) 
 
 

1.17 Fuel poverty  
1.18 Social 
contentedness 
1.19 Older people’s 
perception of 
community safety  
2.23 Self-reported 
wellbeing 
(WEMWBS) 
2.24 Falls and fall 
injuries in the over 
65s 
4.11 Reduced 
emergency 
readmissions within 
30 days of discharge 
from hospital  
4.13 Health-related 
quality of life for older 
people 
4.14 Hip fractures in 
the over 65s 
4.15 Excess winter 

P
age 50



Draft  

Page 23 of 30 

 

Work with Merseyside Fire 
Brigade to enable them to 
undertake home fire safety 
visits for vulnerable people 

April 2013 WBC 
 

Explore the opportunity for an 
asset-based model to assist 
with handyperson tasks and 
energy efficiency advice (e.g. 
through use of a time bank / 
volunteering etc.) 

April 2013 WBC/VCAW 
 
 
 

deaths 
4.16 Dementia and its 
impacts 
Local outcome: 
Decreased 
admissions to care 
and nursing homes 
 
 
 
 

Promote uptake of seasonal 
flu vaccination 

Annually WBC (PH)/NHS/VCAW 

Promote insulation schemes  Ongoing  WBC/VCAW 
Choose Well campaign Ongoing  WBC (PH) 

Help to keep 
older people 
warm and well 

Benefits advice Ongoing  WBC/VCAW 

1.17 Fuel poverty 
1.18 Social 
contentedness 
2.23 Self-reported 
wellbeing 
(WEMWBS) 
4.13 Health-related 
quality of life for older 
people 
4.15 Excess winter 
deaths 
 

Promote falls 
prevention 
advice 
 

Falls prevention promotion: 
Prevent frailty, preserve bone 
health, and reduce accidents 
through preserving physical 
activity, healthy lifestyles and 
reducing environmental 
hazards 

Ongoing  
 

WBC 
(PH/DASS)/VCAW/NHS/other 
providers 
 

1.17 Fuel poverty  
1.18 Social 
contentedness 
1.19 Older people’s 
perception of 
community safety  
2.23 Self-reported 

P
age 51



Draft  

Page 24 of 30 

 

Offer early intervention to 
restore independence 
amongst those at risk of falls  

Ongoing  
 

Community Trust/WBC (PH) 

Respond to first fractures in 
order to prevent further 
fractures  

Ongoing  
 

CCG/CT/WUTH 

Improve the outcome and 
improve the efficiency of care 
after hip fractures 
 

Ongoing  
 

CCG/CT/WBC 

wellbeing 
(WEMWBS) 
2.24 Falls and fall 
injuries in the over 
65s 
4.11 Reduced 
emergency 
readmissions within 
30 days of discharge 
from hospital  
4.13 Health-related 
quality of life for older 
people 
4.14 Hip fractures in 
the over 65s 
4.15 Excess winter 
deaths 
4.16 Dementia and its 
impacts 
Local outcome: 
Decreased 
admissions to care 
and nursing homes 

Improve public and 
professional awareness and 
understanding of dementia  

Ongoing  
 

VCAW/CCG/GP Practices 
 

Dementia  
 

Develop public 
communications plan, making 
use of national materials, 
taking into account ‘hard to 

December 
2013 
 
 

VCAW/WBC/NHS 
 
 

1.18 Social 
contentedness 
2.23 Self-reported 
wellbeing (WEMWS) 
2.24 Falls and fall 
injuries in the over 
65s 
4.11 Reduced 

P
age 52



Draft  

Page 25 of 30 

 

reach’ groups, e.g. BME 
community or patients with 
Learning Disabilities 

Provide information to carers 
and people living with 
dementia about where to go 
for support and advice 

April 2013 
 

CWP/Primary 
care/CWP/CT/WUTH/VCAW 
 

Participate in National 
Dementia Friends Scheme  

tbc 
 

WBC 
 

Good quality early diagnosis 
and interventions for all 

April 2013 CCG 

Providers incentivised 
through CQUIN to work 
together on a dementia 
assessment pathway 

March 
2014 

CCG/CWP 

Promote health checks to 
those eligible 

April 2013 Primary care 

Continue to review capacity of 
Memory Assessment Service 
to ensure that capacity meets 
demand, with a target for 
patients to receive their first 
appointment within 8 weeks 
of referral 

Ongoing  CWP 
 
 
 

Implement the Carer’s 
Strategy 

tbc CCG/DASS 

 

Highlight the importance and 
role of carers to the public 
and professionals as part of 

 VCAW/CCG/GP Practices 
 

emergency 
readmissions within 
30 days of discharge 
from hospital  
4.13 Health-related 
quality of life for older 
people 
4.15 Hip fractures in 
the over 65s 
4.15 Excess winter 
deaths 
4.16 Dementia and its 
impacts 
Local outcome: 
Decreased 
admissions to care 
and nursing homes 

P
age 53



Draft  

Page 26 of 30 

 

the Dementia Strategy 
communications plan 

Consider and support health 
needs of carers – mental and 
physical health 

 Primary care/Community 
Trust/CCGs/VCAW/WUTH/CWP 

Training and education for 
carers around the needs of a 
person with dementia 

October 
2013 

VCAW 

Develop integrated health and 
social care systems for 
patients with long-term 
conditions including dementia 
across Wirral, for example, 
working with WUTH, CCGs  
and other providers to pilot 
this approach 

Ongoing  CCG/NHS/Primary care/WBC 
 
 
 
 

Continue to increase co-
ordination of personal care by 
commissioning and delivering 
health, social care and 
housing services in a more 
joined up way 

Ongoing  CCG and all stakeholders  
 

Joint 
commissioning 
and better 
integration of 
services 

Continue to offer more 
choice, control and greater 
independence through 
personal budgets to support 
those living with long term 
conditions (LTCs). 

Ongoing WBC (DASS)  
 

P
age 54



Draft  

Page 27 of 30 

 

 
 
Priority area  Key activities By when Lead responsibility Outcome 

indicator 
Alcohol     

Provide information, advice and 
guidance to enable people to make 
informed choices about alcohol 
consumption. 

Ongoing  WBC/Wirral 
CCG/WUTH 
 

Identify and implement the most 
effective interventions to 
reduce/prevent liver disease 
through programmes of early 
identification and detection and 
prompt treatment for those groups 
most at risk 

Ongoing WBC(PH)/Primary 
care/CT 

Continue to include alcohol 
screening in the NHS Healthchecks 
programme  

Ongoing CCG/Primary care 

Improve and extend the range and 
quality of delivery of the alcohol 
screening and brief advice 
programme, ensuring that the right 
people are identified and engaged 
in the right places 

Ongoing CCG/Primary 
care/VCAW 

Identification, 
prevention 
treatment and 
recovery 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Train staff working in non-medical 
settings who are likely to come into 
contact with people with alcohol 
problems, such as staff working in 
sexual health, safeguarding and 

 WBC 
(PH/DASS)/VCAW/ 

1.19 Older people’s 
perception of 
community safety  
2.18 Alcohol-
related admissions 
to hospital  
2.23 Self-reported 
wellbeing 
(WEMWS) 
4.10 Suicide 
4.11 Reduced 
emergency 
readmissions within 
30 days of 
discharge from 
hospital  
 

P
age 55



Draft  

Page 28 of 30 

 

with the Irish and Polish 
communities 

Continue to develop and deliver the 
“Alcohol Shared Care” scheme and 
ensure every General Practice on 
Wirral has access to a specialist 
alcohol treatment practitioner 

March 2014 
 

CCG/Primary care 

Expand the target group of 
identified alcohol related repeat 
attendees at the emergency 
department, to continue to reduce 
future presentations and 
admissions to hospital 

March 2014  
and ongoing  
 

WBC (PH)/WUTH 

Continue to ensure alcohol 
treatment services target those 
groups ‘most at risk’ so that 
services are more accessible and 
address the needs of the local 
population 

Ongoing  WBC 
(PH)/CCG/Primary 
care/  

Campaign for and support the 
increase in the price of alcohol and 
control the ready availability of 
alcohol 

Ongoing  WBC (PH)/Wirral 
CCG/NHS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Develop a range of bespoke 
programmes of activities for a 
variety of audiences  

Ongoing  WBC(PH)/CCG 

P
age 56



Draft  

Page 29 of 30 

 

Develop and improve links with the 
third sector in relation to the 
delivery of substance misuse 
education 

Ongoing  WBC(PH)/VCAW 

Work with specialist services to 
increase the availability of, and 
improve the routes to, age sensitive 
support and treatment for older 
people i.e. drinkers in the 55-74 
year age group 

March 2014 WBC/Wirral CCG 
 

Develop clear, robust alcohol 
misuse responses and implement 
specific alcohol related actions that 
respond to the local Homelessness 
Review (2012) 

July 2013 WBC/CCG/WUTH 
 

Establish a “Community Alcohol 
Partnership” scheme to contribute 
to the reduction of underage 
drinking, proxy sales and youth 
street drinking 

October 2013 
 

WBC(PH) 

Crime, disorder 
and communities 

Develop a comprehensive data 
collection system, inclusive of 
health data, that can be utilised to 
inform and support the licensing 
application process 

March 2014 WBC(PH) 

1.19 Older people’s 
perception of 
community safety  
2.27 Hospital 
admissions caused 
by unintentional 
and deliberate 
injuries in under 
18s  
 

P
age 57



Draft  

Page 30 of 30 

 

Increase enforcement activity to 
address young people drinking in 
public places, through the delivery 
of police-led multi agency 
operations that target anti social 
and risk taking behaviour, 
particularly that relate to children 
and young people and alcohol 

April 2013 Police 

Provide interventions for young 
people admitted to the emergency 
department, addressing the 
presenting issues and reducing the 
likelihood of future presentations 

April 2013 and 
ongoing  

WUTH/WBC(PH)/CWP 

Increase the opportunities for 
Accident and Emergency staff to 
access training aimed at improving 
the identification of alcohol-related 
attendances and support the 
delivery of brief harm-reduction 
interventions 

Tbc  WUTH 

Young people, 
families and 
carers 
 
 

Recruit a Schools Substance 
Misuse Advisor  

tbc WBC(PH) 

2.18 Alcohol-
related admissions 
to hospital  
2.23 Self-reported 
wellbeing 
(WEMWBS) 
4.6i Reduced under 
75 mortality rate 
from liver disease 
4.10 Suicide 
 

 

P
age 58



WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
 
Meeting Date 13 March 2013 Agenda Item 6 
 
Report Title Wirral Food Plan – A proposal 

Responsible Board 
Member 

Director of Public Health 

 
Board development  
   

x 

JSNA/JHWS x 

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

  

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No  N/A x 

Purpose For 
approval 

x To note  To 
assure 

 

 
Summary of Paper The purpose of this report is to outline the rationale for, and to propose 

the development of, a Food Plan for Wirral. 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

£ N/A £  £  

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

The impact of food on the health of the local population and 
environment is significant. Proactively and positively addressing the 
food system and culture is complex. This proposal adopts a broad 
perspective which advocates infrastructure and policy as a means to 
influence outcomes rather than a reliance on services or issue led 
responses. 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

Any subsequent development of a Wirral Food Plan would need to 
engage representatives from across Wirral including the community, 
partner public and third sector organisations as well as relevant private 
commercial interests in Wirral. 

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

The Board is asked to consider endorsing the development of a Wirral 
Food Plan. 

 
Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
   
   
List of 
Appendices 

 

 
Yes x Yes  Publish On 

Website No  
Private Business 

No x 
  
Report Author:  Rachael Musgrave, Public Health Specialty Registrar  
 
Contact details: 0151 651 0011 (Ex 1951) or email Rachael.Musgrave@wirral.nhs.uk 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 59



Wirral Food Plan – A proposal 
 
1. Background 
 
Food is an intimate and integral part of daily life. However, there are long standing 
concerns about environmental inefficiency in the food system, economic 
vulnerabilities, the role of food in health and inequalities; and most recently the 
integrity of food production. Access, availability, quality and cultural attitudes to food 
impact unequivocally on both the health of the population and the local environment. 
Furthermore since the start of the global recession, food poverty has increased 
significantly resulting in the emergence of a UK wide network of food banks. It is 
anticipated that the imminent programme of welfare reform will further exacerbate 
the problem.  
 
This paper outlines a proposal for the development of a Food Plan for Wirral. It 
advocates a broader perspective to food issues linking health, health inequalities, the 
local environment and local economy; focusing on addressing ‘upstream’ causes 
rather than issue led responses and treatment services. 
 
2. Introduction 
 
A poor diet is directly related to coronary heart disease, obesity and some cancers 
(e.g. bowel, oesophageal, gastric, oral and breast) and the food system is a major 
environmental threat locally and internationally. In Wirral, CVD is a major contributor 
to premature deaths and is a leading cause of health inequalities. Rates of 
overweight and obesity amongst children and adults in Wirral are higher than the 
England average and of the six main causes of death in Wirral, cancer accounts for 
the most deaths in both men and women.  
 
Older people and young families, especially those on low incomes, are particularly 
vulnerable to the adverse impact of food culture on health. In Wirral, the local food 
bank has supported 6177 residents since its inception last year. Just over one in 
three of these recipients are children, providing real evidence of the levels of food 
poverty locally. 
 
Food, and its relationship to the population and environment, is however multifaceted 
and requires an approach which appreciates this complexity. A local food plan can 
transform food culture, enabling economic growth and prosperity as well as 
improving population health. 
 
3. Wirral Food Plan - Principles 
 
The Wirral Food Plan would focus on fostering a healthy food culture built on a 
sustainable local food system. This ambition relates to the priorities of the HWB and 
contributes to the aspirations of key stakeholder organisations including the Local 
Authority and Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group. Approaches to achieving this 
include: 
 

• Increasing awareness of healthy and sustainable food, including food 
growing, budgeting and cooking skills. 

• Increasing community food enterprise models. 
• Increasing the availability of sustainable food with local enterprise. 

Page 60



• Ensuring the Public Sector leads by example. 
• Transforming food culture through the role of planning in food access, retail 

food diversity and the creation of new growing spaces. 
• Protecting key infrastructure for local food supply. 
• Increasing markets for local food producers. 
• Redistributing, recycling and composting food waste. 

 
Mirroring the broad perspective of such a plan, and recognising the challenges 
inherent to the current economic climate, a wide range of local stakeholders would 
be engaged to develop the plan, its vision and to deliver its objectives. 
 
4. Next Steps 
 
The Board is asked to consider this proposal and endorse the development of a plan 
sponsored by all Board representatives. In taking forward the principles of this plan, 
a consultation event is proposed and will engage with a wide range of stakeholders 
from across Wirral working with neighbourhoods to identify gaps and action tailored 
to local communities. 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
 
Meeting Date 13 March 2013 Agenda Item 8 
 
Report Title Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group – Strategic Plan 
Responsible Board 
Member 

Chairman, Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Board development  
   

x 

JSNA/JHWS  

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

x 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

  

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No  N/A x 

Purpose For 
approval 

 To note x To 
assure 

 

 
Summary of Paper This document presents the NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group 

(WCCG) Strategic Plan for the period 2013-16. It sets out the group’s 
vision for the future of health and health care in NHS Wirral. 
 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

£  £  £  

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

Risks are identified within the plan. 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

The plan has been developed using data from the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment and stakeholder engagement 

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

The Board is asked to note the NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning 
Group (WCCG) Strategic Plan for the period 2013-16. 

 
Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
WCCG Governing Body 
Board 

5 Feb 2013 Approved 

   
List of 
Appendices 

 

 
Yes x Yes  Publish On 

Website No  
Private Business 

No x 
  
Report Author:  Dr Phil Jennings  
 
Contact details: philip.jennings@nhs.net 

Agenda Item 8

Page 63



 
 
NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group, Strategic Plan 2013-16 
 
1. Background 
 
This document presents the NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group (WCCG) 
Strategic Plan for the period 2013-16. It sets out the group’s vision for the future of 
health and health care in NHS Wirral. 
 
The plan identifies 11 key strategic priorities. These build on and represent a 
commitment to the NHS Constitution and the NHS Outcomes Framework (Everyone 
Counts) and reflect the group’s continuing commitment to local service improvement 
to meet local priorities and needs. 
 
To implement the plan a detailed commissioning/delivery/operational plan for each of 
the financial years 2013-16 have been developed. This includes a series of 
timetabled programme and project plans. The document aims to provide a 
comprehensive statement of direction and intent for Wirral CCG and 
highlight the priorities for service improvement which in turn will require a detailed 
programme of investment and disinvestment to support service transformation. 
 
2. Action required 
 
The Board is asked to note the NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group (WCCG) 
Strategic Plan for the period 2013-16. 
 
 
Report Author:  Dr Phil Jennings 

Chair NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group (WCCG)  
 
Contact details: philip.jennings@nhs.net   
 
 
 

Page 64



2013–2016
Strategic Plan

February 2013

Page 65



2

Table of Contents

1 Introduction – Our Mission and Values 3
2 Executive Summary – NHS Wirral in the FutureExecutive Summary – NHS Wirral in the Future 6
3 The Context 1 - How the strategy was developed and the next stepsThe Context 1 - How the strategy was developed and the next steps 9

4

The Context 2 - Health Economy Profile

4.1 Population
4.2 Deprivation
4.3  Life Expectancy
4.4 Diversity
4.5 Other Key JSNA Issues
4.6 Local Health Environment and Practice Profile
4.7 Provider Profile
4.8 NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
4.9 Quality Outcomes Framework Disease Prevalence

12

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

5

Resources

5.1 2013-14 CCG Financial Allocation 
5.2 2013-14 to 2015-16 Financial Planning Assumptions
5.3 Programme Expenditure by type
5.4 2011-12 PCT Programme Budgeting Spend
5.5 Financial Risk
5.6 Activity
5.7 Programme Budget Spend vs. Outcomes 2010/11

21

21
21
22
23
24
24
25

6 Quality, Innovation Productivity and  Prevention (QIPP)Quality, Innovation Productivity and  Prevention (QIPP) 26
7 Partnership Working and EngagementPartnership Working and Engagement 30

8

Strategic Priorities – Our Plans to achieve our Objectives

8.1 Delivering High Quality Planned Care (including services for Older People)
8.2 Managing Urgent Care (including unplanned admissions and attendances and 

services for Older People) 
8.3 Adult Mental Health Services (Including Learning Disability Services)
8.4 Children’s Mental Health Services (Including Learning Disability Services)
8.5 Dementia 
8.6 Effective Medicines Management 
8.7 Improving Access to Community services
8.8 Management of Long Term Conditions and Chronic Disease Management
8.9 Improving Cancer and End of Life care
8.10 Women’s and Children’s Services 
8.11 Improving Primary Care Services at practice level

31

34
35

36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

9 Strategic Delivery and Transition – How we will move forward 45

10

Appendices

Appendix 1   NHS Wirral Contract Portfolio
Appendix 2   The National Context
Appendix 3   Clinical Engagement
Appendix 4   Rights and pledges from the NHS Constitution 2013-14

48

48
49
54
55

Page 66



3

1. Chairman and Chief Clinical Officer’s Introduction
This document presents the NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group (WCCG) Strategic Plan 
for the period 2013-16. It sets out our vision for the future of health and health care in NHS 
Wirral.   

Our local vision identifies 11 key strategic priorities. These build on and represent a commitment 
to the NHS Constitution and the NHS Outcomes Framework (Everyone Counts) and reflect our 
continuing commitment to local service improvement to meet local priorities and needs. 

To implement our Strategic Plan we will develop a detailed Commissioning/Delivery/Operational 
Plan for each of the financial years contained within it. This will include a series of timetabled 
programme and project plans.   

This document therefore draws together a number of key and significant work programmes. 
It is aimed to provide a comprehensive statement of direction and intent for Wirral CCG and 
highlight the priorities for service improvement which in turn will require a detailed programme 
of investment and disinvestment to support service transformation. 

NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group has developed a strategic vision for a healthier Wirral. 

Our Mission Statement is:

‘Your partner in a healthier future for all’

                   
DrDrDr Abhi MaMantntntgagagani

Chieief f ClClinicicalal Offifficecer
NHS S S S WiWiWirral 

ClClininicicalal C Comommimissssioioningng Groroupupup

DrDr. PhPhPhPhilil J Jennings
Chaiairmrman, , 
NHS WiWiWiWirrrrrrrralal 

Clininicical C Comommimissioioniningng G Groroupup  

Page 67



4

Our Vision and Plans

Our Vision and Plans will be developed through working closely with all our stakeholders and 
partners in the NHS, Local Authority and voluntary sector, as well as through active consultation 
with our patients and the public. 

The vision of the Clinical Commissioning Group is that:

“Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group commits to continue to improve health 
and reduce disease by working with patients, public and partners, tackling 

health inequalities and helping people take care of themselves”

Our aims are to work with our patients, the public in Wirral and our stakeholders to: 

s฀ Improve the health of all Wirral citizens.
s฀ Target inequalities in health experiences and outcomes amongst sections of our population
s฀ Deliver needs based healthcare of the highest quality to all our resident population.
s฀ Promote maximum self care by involving and including our patients in all decisions made 

about them.
s฀ To reduce waste and inefficiency and duplication within the patient journey and between 

partners
s฀ To be a high performance, high reputation organisation with ambition. 

In this context a number of specific goals based on the local health needs expressed in the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy and based on the prioritisation of the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) 2012 are identified throughout this plan.

Our overall goal is to deliver service improvement and change based on our core values of:

!"""Caring, fairness and responsibility
!"""Safety and trust
!"""Person centred carePerson centred care

ThThisis d dococumumenent describes our r 1111 k keyey s strtrategic priorities. Thehey arare e dedesisigned to delivever r ouour r vivisision, 
goals and plans ananand d d sususupppppport the objectives of f ththe e organisation

The concepepept t t ofof Quality, Innonovavavavatitition, Producuctitivivityty a andnd Prevention n (Q(Q(QIPIPP) is foundadatitionononalalal to our 
ststraratetegygygy a and each h ofof itsts programammememes s anand d plans.  

WeWe, , , lilike all o oththerer organisisatatatioions, face s s sigigninificant t finfinancialal p p p preressures. ChChChalallenges f facacaceded by othehehersrs 
willll i impmpacact onon o ourur p plansns. . ThThisis m meansns w wororkingng w with ouour r ststakehehololdeders andnd c cololleagagueue o orgrganisisatatioionsns, 
tototo e e e ensnsure a a a cococollabororatatatative apprprprproaoach, wiwillllllll b be vitatal.l. T This in t t t tururn will e e ensnsure thththe e e e optimal l l l ususe of t thehehehe 
reresoururceces avavaiailalable e to t thehe C Clilininicacal l CoCommmmisissisiononing GrGrououp.p.

Page 68



5

We recognise the value and necessity of partnership working to make our plans a reality.  

Our Strategic Objectives:

s฀ Prevent people from dying prematurely
s฀ Enhance the quality of life for people with long term conditions
s฀ Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or following injury
s฀ Ensuring people have a positive experience of care
s฀ Ensuring people are treated and cared for in safe environment and protected from avoidable 

harm

This will be supplemented by a number of key local priorities, identified through the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and endorsed by the Health and Well Being Strategy (HWBS) 
which are:

s฀ Meeting the needs of the ageing population
s฀ Alcohol prevention and treatment services
s฀ Mental Health services

Our plans represent a significant challenge and programme of change in light of the current 
financial climate. 

Part of our future funding will include a “Quality Premium” if we secure quality improvements 
against certain measures from the NHS Outcomes Framework.

We will be targeting the following areas to secure these additional resources:

s฀ Emergency readmissions within 30 days of discharge from hospital (specifically for the 
elderly population)

s฀ Number of people attending Accident and Emergency Department with alcohol related 
conditions

s฀ Enhancing quality of life for people with dementia

                                                               

Page 69



6

2. Executive Summary
This 2013-2016 Strategic Plan (and its associated Commissioning and Operational Plans) have 
been developed in the context of very demanding requirements from Government both in 
terms of patient and service user expectations and anticipated resource availability. 

The key goal is to continue to deliver high quality services during a time of significant financial 
challenge and a changing NHS landscape. 

The focus of the CCG will be to deliver financial sustainability, to deliver national requirements 
such as those outlined in the 2013-14 Outcomes Framework, and continue to deliver improved 
quality, evidenced by improving safety, effectiveness and patient experience. This will be the 
focus for the CCG during the period of this plan and beyond. 

This will require continuous and significant service review and transformation.

In addition to national developments and priorities we will focus on local service redesign which 
will address the specific health needs in Wirral reflecting the sometimes different requirements 
of its registered population.

In summary we see the Wirral health care system/service in 3 years’ time as one that:

s฀ Is patient and primary care centric and based on high quality primary care, secondary and 
community services. 

s฀ Has made step shifts in our balance of focus away from treatment and towards greater 
investment in prevention.

s฀ Has commissioned services which have a sound evidence base.

s฀ Has redirected investment to services that have been under resourced in the past (e.g. 
dementia care, adult and children’s mental health services, alcohol prevention and 
dependency services).dependency services).

s฀ PrProvovidideses g greater equality y ofof a accccesess s toto allll.

s฀s฀ HaHas rigoroususlyly d develelopoped and a agrgreeeed d care pathwhwayays s woworking totogegether w witith patienentsts t to o 
securere t t t theheheir help, underststanananandiding, ownershihip p anand support of t t thehehehe n needed changeges s s  

s฀ Has s acachihieved optptimimimal admininisistrtrtrtratative and d mamananagegement cosoststs b but has rigigigororous mananagegemement 
anand clinicicalal g g govovernancnce e ararrangememenentsts i in place. 

Page 70



7

What key changes can we expect?

Implementation of our strategies will require change. In delivering such change we will: 

s฀ Insist on a clearer focus on our key strategic priorities, supported by detailed action and 
implementation plans, with clear and defined arrangements (including timescale and 
criteria to monitor) that reflect this. 

s฀ Make clear statements about investment and disinvestment opportunities and service re-
profiling.

s฀ Pursue a more rigorous and timely approach to performance monitoring and management

s฀ Recognise that continuous embedded patient engagement based on robust clinical 
leadership and engagement is key. Appendix 5 indicates the extent to which clinicians are 
involved in our commissioning programmes to date. Clinical leadership will include a role 
for all professional and staff interests in developing our strategies and implementation 
plans together with regular feedback from those patients most affected by these strategies 
and plans.       

How will we get there?

s฀ Our strategy will be refined through a rigorous process of clinical and patient dialogue 
and engagement over the next two months.

s฀ The resulting strategy will then be delivered through a robust process of programme and 
performance management with results fed back into further engagement by clinicians 
with our patients and stakeholders.

s฀ Organisational structures will be established to ensure timely, sound and sensitive decision 
making.

In Summary

s฀ We will embrace the NHS Constitution a as s a a pepervasive philosophy in everything we provide 
s฀ and d cocommmmission.
s฀ Sustain progogreressssss t t thahahat has been made byby t thehe W Wirirral Health communinitytyty i in n n prprevious years
s฀ BuBuilild d onon t thehe excellentnt p prorogrgresess s mamade by predecessor ororgaganinisasatitionons.
s฀ Focus s on t thehe national l anand d d lolocal priorititieses. 

Thesese e arare:e:      

NaNationonalal 
s฀s฀ PrPrevenent t t t PePeople f f f frorom dyinining g g premematatururely.
s฀s฀ EnEnhahahancnce ththe e ququalitity y ofof l life fofofor r peopoplele w with long t tererm cocondndndititionsns
s฀ Helplpining g peopopoplele to rererecocover r frfrfromom e epipisosodes s ofof i illll h heaealtltltlth h oror fololollolowiwingng i i i injnjuryy
s฀ EnEnsususuringng p p peoplple e hahave a a a p posititivivive e expepeperirience of cacarerere
s฀ Ensususuring p people arare treaeaeated ananand cared d for in safe enenenvironmnment ananand protececected frfrfrom avovoidable 

harm. 

Page 71



8

Local
s฀ Meeting the needs of the ageing population
s฀ Alcohol prevention and treatment services
s฀ Mental Health services

Our priorities, programmes, plans and structures are interrelated. The relationships are 
represented diagrammatically as follows:  

Page 72



9

3. How the Strategy was developed
Our strategy and plans have developed taking account of a number of strands of work including:

Legacy Strategies

!"The NHS Wirral Strategic Plan 2008-13
!"The 2012-13 CCG Operational Plans
!"The Federated CCG Strategic and Operational Plan (2012-15)
!"The NHS Constitution

Current Information

!"Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (available at http://info.wirral.nhs.uk)
!"CSU Annual Status Review 
!"Everyone Counts: Planning for Patients 2013/14
!"Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) 2013/14 guidance. 
!"Performance Reports
!"The views of our member practices
!"The views of the public, patients and wider stakeholders based on the CCG’s engagement 
    activity

Recent Policies / Publications

!"The National Commissioning Board Mandate
!"The NHS Outcomes Framework (2013-14)
!"Everyone Counts Planning for Patients 2013/14 
!"Supporting Planning 2013/14 for Clinical Commissioning Groups

Strategies under development and guidance to be adhered to

!"The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy based on the findings of the JSNA
!"!"Planning and Financial Guidance for 2013-14 and future financial yearsPlanning and Financial Guidance for 2013-14 and future financial years

InIn s setettitingng o our strategic objectitiveves s wewe h have soughtht t to provovidide e anan appppropriate balancece b betetweween 
the requiremenentsts o o of f ththe e HeHealalth and Social Care Bill and our own local l inintetetentntntioionsns and objectives 
babasesed on a morore e detailileded assessmenent t ofof l local needsds. 

InIn t the c conontext o of f the e finfinancialal c chahallllenengeges that face ththe e hehealalththcare s sysystetem ththe e deliveveryry o of f itits s 
QIPP t t tarargegets are p pararamamount to o a a susuccessfulul o orgrgananisisation 

ThThe e fofounundatitionon o of our ststraratetegy is s ththe e rececentntlyly refefrereshshed J JSNSNA A and woworkrking in p parartnershshipip w with 
alalalall l stakeheholololders to o acacachieve ththe e vision o o o of f the WiWirrrral Heaealtltltlth and WeWeWell Beingngng S S Strtrategyyy

ThThThThe 202013131313-14 NaNaNaNatititional O O O Oututcomemememes s s Framamewewewework sesetsts out t t t thehehe natioioioionanal popopolilililicycycy requiuiuiuirerementntntnts s s for ththe e e 
healalthththcacarere s sysystetem.m.    ThThe CCCCCCG’G’s cocommmmissionononining planan a andnd strtratatategegicic o objbjectitiveveves s wiwillll n n neeeed toto b be inin 
line w w with thesese outctctcome rererequirememements b but building on thehe l local i i informamamation f f from the e Joint 
Stratetetegic Neededs Assesesessmentntnt.

Page 73



10

The 2013-14 outcomes framework is structured around 5 domains

The strategic priorities developed by the CCG will need to ensure that they meet all the 
following requirements

Page 74



11

Setting Priorities

In arriving at our strategic priorities a rigorous prioritisation process was agreed by the Wirral 
H&WB and the JSNA Executive Group. The prioritisation process was undertaken between 
October and December 2012. It was systematic and transparent. 

The process was supported by public and stakeholder consultation and this helped identify 
the most important priorities for local people. 

These were

s฀ Alcohol
s฀ Ageing Population
s฀ Mental Health
s฀ Poverty
s฀ Life Skills

Subsequently a prioritisation methodology was agreed and working principles established. 
The process identified a priority order and the H&WB subsequently agreed the three strategic 
health priorities for Wirral in 2013-14 to be:

s฀ Ageing Population
s฀ Alcohol
s฀ Mental Health

Next Steps

NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Groups Strategic Plan which embraces these priorities will 
require significant consultation and wider public and partner stakeholder engagement to 
support and guide the shape and pace of change.   

Page 75



12

4. Health Economy Profile
The context in which our Strategy has been developed is described below. 

4.1 Population Profile   
Wirral is a Borough of contrast and diversity in both its physical characteristics and social 
demographics. There are both rural areas and townships and urban and industrialised areas in 
a compact peninsula of 60 square miles. The Borough has a wealth of parks and countryside 
and over 20 miles of coastline.

!"Wirral has a relatively high older population and a relatively low proportion of people in  
  their twenties and thirties compared to England and Wales as a whole.

!"The older population (aged 65 years and above) are expected to increase at the fastest rate 
   (than any other age group) over the next decade; between 2011 and 2021 it is estimated 
   that this population group will have increased by 17.4%. 

!"The population over 85 is projected to increase from 8,460 in 2011 to 10,985 in 2021, which  
   equates to a 29.9% increase.

!"The biggest decrease is in the 35-59 year age group, from 108,548 in 2008 to 82,061 in 2021.

!"Births reached a 15 year high in 2011.

!"The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) places 30 of Wirral’s LSOAs in the lowest 5% in 
  England and 23 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA) in the 3% most deprived nationally.

!"The Employment domain of the IMD 2010 indicates that Wirral performs poorly on this 
   indicator. This is an indication of the scale of the challenge faced in Wirral and the need for 
   a focused and coordinated approach to tackling worklessness and economic inactivity.

!"Wirral has a predominance of Mosaic groups which are at the polar extremes of the income                   
  spectrum, indicating that the differential between people on very low and very high  spectrum, indicating that the differential between people on very low and very high
  incomes is quite pronounced in Wirral.

Page 76



13

4.2 Deprivation   

The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) IMD 2010 shows that Wirral is the 60th most deprived 
of the 326 districts in the country and is therefore in the bottom 20% nationally. There has 
been no change on previous data (IMD 2007).  

The IMD places 30 of Wirral’s Lower Super Output Area’s (LSOA) in the lowest 5% in England 
and 23 LSOAs in the 3% most deprived nationally as described in the table below.

Page 77



14

4.3 Life Expectancy
In 2008-10, life expectancy in Wirral was 77.0 for men and 80.8 for women.  However life 
expectancy varies across the peninsula and an example of this is displayed by the below map 
comparing life expectancy by Wirral Railway Station for the male Wirral population.

Page 78



15

The gap in life expectancy between Wirral and England continued to widen in 2008-10. 
Amongst women in Wirral, life expectancy has actually decreased slightly for the last two time 
periods recorded (2007-09 and 2008-10)
 
The gap in life expectancy between the most and least affluent within Wirral was 14.6 years 
for men and 9.7 years for women (Marmot Indicators, 2012)
 
The Marmot Indicators (2012) also showed that Wirral had the largest gap in Disability Free 
Life Expectancy (DFLE) for males and females of any authority in England (20.0 years for men, 
17.1 years for women)
 
The main contributors to the gap in life expectancy between Wirral and England was chronic 
liver disease for men and lung cancer for women. Mortality from chronic liver disease (in both 
the under 75s and those of all ages) in Wirral men is higher than England. The main contributor 
to liver disease is alcohol.

Diversity
Wirral Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 2008/09 acknowledged a significant gap 
in knowledge about Wirral’s Black Minority Ethnic (BME) community including the lack of 
robust data on population prevalence, and information on its health and well-being needs.  
Accordingly a piece of research was commissioned to help address the lack of understanding.

A randomised survey of 1728 households has evidenced a relatively small numerical, though 
significant percentage increase in the size of the BME population in Wirral since the 2001 census 
which gave a figure of 3.56%, compared to a total today of 5.83% n = 18,291(adjusted figure) 
This survey is not able to provide a reliable account of the composition of BME population, 
while the Office for National Statistics (ONS) mid-year estimates based on the 2001 census are 
increasingly prone to error. An assessment of new National Insurance (NI) registrations tends 
to support anecdotal accounts of a recent decline of up to 50% in the numbers of Eastern 
Europeans / Poles in the Wirral.

Ethnic Group Wirral (2001) Wirral (2009) Net Change (from 2001) % Change

All Groups 315000 308500 -6500 - 2 
White: British 303800 289800 -14000 - 5 
White: Irish 3100 2700 -400 - 12 
White: Other White 2700 5500 + 2800 + 103 
Mixed: White and Black Caribbean 500 800 + 300 + 60 
Mixed: White and Black African 300 500 + 200 + 66 
Mixed: White and Asian 500 900 + 400 + 80 
Mixed: Other Mixed 500 700 + 200 + 40 
Asian or Asian British: Indian 700 1900 + 1200 + 171 
Asian or Asian British: Pakistani 100 900 + 800 + 800 
Asian or Asian British: Bangladeshi 400 500 + 100 + 25 
Asian or Asian British: Other Asian 200 500 + 300 + 150 
Black or Black British: Black Caribbean 200 500 + 300 + 150 
Black or Black British: Black African 300 900 + 600 + 200 
Black or Black British: Other Black 100 200 + 100 + 100 
Chinese or Other Ethnic Group: Chinese 1300 1400 + 100 + 8 

Page 79



16

According to 2009 ONS estimates less than 5% of Wirral’s population is from a BME group (i.e. 
not white British) see table 2.3.1

The table above shows that the ethnic population of Wirral has increased slightly, however 
overall figures mask large differences between ethnic groups.

The, ‘Asian or Asian British: Pakistani’ group for example is estimated to have increased in 
number from 100 in 2001, to 900 people in 2009 which is a 800% increase.

In contrast, the, ‘White: Irish’ group appears to have shown the largest percentage decrease, 
from 3,100 in 2001, to 2,700 people in 2009.

According to the school census, 6.5% of school children in Wirral are from BME groups. The 
number of pupils has risen from 2,526 pupils in December 2010 to 3,159 pupils, or 6.5%, in 
December 2012 that had a recorded ethnicity. This is a rise from 5.2% in 2010.

4.5 Other Key Issues

s Wirral has many very high differentials between incomes in different parts of Wirral. 
This produces very marked impact on health experiences across virtually all indicators.

s฀ 7IRRAL HAS THE LARGEST GAP IN DISABILITY FREE LIFE EXPECTANCY OF ANY AUTHORITY IN %NGLAND
for males and females.

s฀ 4HERE ARE ABOUT ������ CARERS IN 7IRRAL REPRESENTING ABOUT ��� OF THE POPULATION
compared to a national average of 10%

s฀ $EMENTIA IS A KEY AND WORSENING PROBLEM FOR 7IRRAL WITH AN ESTIMATED ����� PEOPLE
over 65 living with dementia in 2011.  This is projected to rise to almost 5,300 within the 
next 8 years.

s฀ !LCOHOL IS A SIGNIlCANT PROBLEM FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE ON 7IRRAL� $EATH RATES
from digestive diseases mainly caused by alcohol are increasing very rapidly in the most 
deprived areas.

s฀ ������ OVER ��S REPORTED IN THE ���� #ENSUS THAT THEY WERE LIVING WITH A ,IMITING ,ONG
Term Illness. 

s฀ 4HE MOST DEPRIVED AREAS HAVE MUCH HIGHER EMERGENCY HOSPITAL ADMISSION RATES THAN THE
rest of Wirral.rest of Wirral.

s฀ ,IFESTYLE BEHAVIOURS SUCH AS SMOKING AND DRINKING TOO MUCH ALCOHOL� AS WELL AS OBESITY�
contribute to health ineququalititieies s anand d ththesese e bebehahaviviouoursrs are all more prevalent in Wirirraral’l’s s 
most d depepririveved arareaeas.s.

s฀s฀ "IRKENHEHEADAD� 4RANANMEMERE� "IDSTON�N� 3E3EACACOMBEBE ANDD 2O2OCKCK &ERRY HAVEVE BEBETWEEEENN ����� AND ������
ofof o oldldldlderer people livingng i i in n n n dedeprivation.

Page 80



17

4.6 Local Health Environment and Practice Profile

NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group is a federated model comprising 3 commissioning 
consortia as follows: 

The configuration of each of the consortia is as follows with no discrete geographical boundary 

Division Number of 
Practices

Number of Patients 
(approximate)

Wirral Health Commissioning 
Consortium (WHCC)

27 165,000

Wirral GP Commissioning 
Consortium (WGPCC)

27 126,000

Wirral Health Alliance
(WHA)

7 40,000

In a addddititioion n toto t the 61 GP p praractcticiceses t thehere are:

s฀ 3333 c conontracted d opopopophththahalmic optptpticiciciaiansns
s฀ 9494 P Phaharmrmacisiststs
s฀ 4545 Dentatal l PrPrPrPractices

WeWeWe l look afafafafteter the hehehehealth neeeeeeeedsdsds of ababouout 330,0,00000 0 peoplelelele l liviving wiwiwiwiththin Wiriririrraral.

Page 81



18

4.7 Provider Profile

NHS Wirral CCG commissions its services through a range of NHS and Non-NHS providers with 
the contract monitoring and negotiation process being led by clinical commissioners.  

NHS Wirral CCG has 4 main local providers. Fuller information about the NHS Wirral CCG NHS Wirral CCG has 4 main local providers. Fuller information about the NHS Wirral CCG 
contract portfolio is included as Appendix 1.

s฀ Wirral Universrsitity y y TeTeTeacachihing Hospital Foundatitionon Trust
s฀ WiWirrrral Comommumunity N NHSHS T Trust
s฀ Cheshihirererere a and Wirral Partrtnenenenersrsrship NHS Founundadatitionon Trust
s฀s฀ ClClatteterbridge e CaCancerer C Centre

Page 82



19

4.8 NHS Outcomes Framework 2013-14 Indicators

The chart below shows the distribution of the CCGs on each Outcomes Framework indicator 
in terms of ranks. NHS Wirral CCG is shown as a red diamond. The yellow box shows the inter 
quartile range and median of CCGs in the same ONS cluster as this CCG. The dotted blue line is 
the England median. Each indicator has been orientated so that better outcomes are towards 
the right (light blue).

Page 83



20

4.9 QOF Disease Prevalence

The table below shows the prevalence (number and percentage) of diseases covered by the 
QOF for the practices in this CCG in 2010/11. The chart shows the distribution of the CCG’s 
practices’ prevalence in terms of ranks. Individual practices are shown as vertical bars with the 
height of the bar proportional each practice’s population. The blue box shows the range of the 
middle 50% of practices in the CCG. The large diamond shows the average rank for the CCG 
and the dashed blue line shows the England average

Page 84



21

5. Resources
5.1 2013-14 Financial Allocation

The financial allocation for NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group for the 2013/14 financial 
year is as follows

£ Million
PCT Baseline (CCG Element exc Running Cost)   £463.155
Less Specialised Services Adjustment    (£25.154)
Less PCT 2% Headroom Adjustment    (£2.842)

Adjusted CCG Baseline      £435.159

2.3% Uplift        £10.009

2013-14 Revenue Allocation (Commissioning)  £445.168

2013-14 Running Costs Allocation    £8.000

2013-14 Total Resource Allocation    £453.168

Plus Non-Recurrent Allocation for return of 
Historic Surplus & Lodgement     £12.395

2013-14 Resources Available     £465.563

5.2 Summary of current financial planning assumptions 2013/14 -2015/16

The tables below show a summary of the anticipated resources available and headline 
expenditure values for the CCG for the period 2013/14 – 2015/16

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Programme Budgets £000’s £000’s £000’s
NHS Contracts 319,760 315,635 315,732
Non NHS Contracts 13,471 13,471 13,471
Prescribing 59,295 60,481 61,691
Commissioned Out of Hospital 34,533 31,033 31,033
Intermediate, Social Care & Re-ablement 5,233 5,233 5,233
Other Commissioning Expenditure 8,854 7,111 7,111
CCG Reserves (Contingency / non-rec) 11,965 16,612 19,800

PROGRAMME TOTAL 453,111 449,576 454,071

Running Costs 8,000 8,080 8,161
CCG TOTAL 461,111 457,656 462,232
RESOURCE AVAILABLE 465,563 462,152 466,773
SURPLUS (1%) (4,452) (4,496) (4,541)

Page 85



22

5.3 Summary of Programme Expenditure by provider type

5.4 Programme Budgeting Spend

The bar chart below shows the PCT Programme Budgeting Spend split over the 23 categories 
using the 2011-12 gross expenditure values

Page 86



23

The pie chart below shows the PCT Programme Budgeting Spend split by care setting using 
the 2011-12 gross expenditure values

5.5 Financial Risks

In summary the key financial risks are:

s฀ Increasing secondary care activity
s฀ Increasing Prescribing costs and uplplift shshorortftfalalll
s฀ InIncreasisingng C Continuining g HeHealalthth C Care and packages of care coststs
s฀ Non-deliveryry o of f f QIQIQIPPPP target savings anand d dedemamandnd m management inititiaiatititivevess

5.6 Acttiivvityy

WiWithth o our r resesourcrceses we e cocommmmisissisionon f from m alall l our provovididerers apapproxoximimatelely:y:
s฀ 9292,000 Accccccididident and d EmEmEmEmergencncy y atatatattendanancecess
s฀ 39,0,00000 D Day Casase e prprocededurureses
s฀s฀ 1010,20000 E E E Elelective e InInInpapatienent t prprocededurureses
s฀s฀s฀ 51,0,000000000 Nonon e e elelectivive e (U(Unplalannnnnnnneded) prprprocococededureses
s฀ 106,6,0000000 0 new w ouout papatitienent atattetendananceces,s, 28585,00000 f follolow w upup o outut p patieientnt attenendadancnceses a and 
s฀ 3939,0,0,000 oututut patieientnt prorocececeduresss
s฀ PLUSUSUS a fulull range e e of comomommunitytyty baseded nursing andndnd therapepeutic s s serviceces.s. 

Page 87



24

5.7 Programme Budgeting Spend versus Outcomes

ThThe abababovove chart shshowowowows s ththe spend d vsvsvs. . ououtctcomes measure baseded o o on the compmpararararisison of progrararammmme 
bubudgdgeteting g rereturnrns s fofor 202010/11 1 (b(baseded on PCPCT T expendndititurure fofor r sameme financncial yeyearar) cocompmpareded to 
the e rerelative oututututcococome meaeaeasusususures for ththththe e e same fi finanancncial periririodododod

AlAlthththouough t t thehehehere is a rerererelative t timimimime lag g inin t the datata a anand somememe r relativivive e e e cocompararatatator issueueueues s s betweeeen n 
orororganinisasatitions ththe e ininformrmatation prprprprovovides a a a u useful guidide e tototo relatativivive e levevelsls..

Page 88



25

6. Quality, Innovation Productivity and  Prevention (QIPP)

QIPP (Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention) is a large scale transformational 
programme for the NHS, involving all NHS staff, clinicians, patients and the voluntary sector. 
The programme is designed to improve the quality of care the NHS delivers whilst making up 
to £20billion of efficiency savings by 2014-15, which will be reinvested in frontline care by the 
system

NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group will need to demonstrate achievement of cost 
efficiencies against its allocation and will need a robust monitoring system on an on-going 
basis 

Details of the original PCT QIPP plan approved by DH as part of £20 billion national requirements 
are as per below with the aggregated figure for the Wirral economy being circa £105m over 4 
years of the comprehensive spending review period (2011-12 to 2014-15) given the inclusion of 
tariff efficiency, cash releasing and cost avoidance savings.

Efficiency built into 
contracts

PCT action to reduce 
existing spend TOTAL

 £000s £000s £000s
2011-12 15,591 14,168 29,759
2012-13 15,458 8,812 24,270
2013-14 15,413 10,155 25,568
2014-15 15,295 10,084 25,379
TOTAL 61,757 43,219 104,976

Given the changes to the current healthcare system, CCG’s will be held responsible for the 
majority of the final two years (2013-14 & 2014-15) QIPP delivery and that beyond the current 
comprehensive spending review period, it is envisaged that the level of QIPP challenge shall 
increase.increase.

ItIt i is s rereasonable to expect that the e WiWirrrralal e ecocononomymy ( (ththrorougugh CCG commissioned budgegetsts a andnd 
Direct Commimissssioioniningngng f frorom m ththe National Commissioning Board) wiwillll n neeeed d toto g genenererate a further 
£2£25m5m of efficieiencncy savivingng in the 201515/1/16 6 finfinancicialal yeaear r (a(andnd the last yeyearar of ththisis 3 3 year stratetegigic c 
commisissisiononononining plan) an aggggrerereregagateted equivalentnt of circa £76m6m o ovevevever r ththe next 3 yearsrsrs....

The CCCCCCCCG G will be rererequququired to dedevevevevelolop an a apppproroprpriate QIPIPIPP P P P ststrategy fororor 2 2 2 2013-14 andnd f f f fututure 
finfinanancial p pereriodsds.  

QIQIQIQIPP savavininingsgs can t takakake e the fofoformrm of eieieiththththerer cash releasasininining g g savingngs or cost t avavavoidancnce e e (b(being a a a an n 
ececononomomicic cononceptpt o of f acactivivityty t that mamay y haveve h happepenened ififif n no o actitionon h had t takakakenen plalacece))

NHS WiWiWirral C C CCG wilill l needed t t to workrkrk with h h itits partners t t to ensusure a sususustainababable QIPIPIPP P prograramme 
and thththat any c cash rerereleasing g g savingngngs are agagreed within n n contraracting nenenegotiatatations

Page 89



26

The below calculation predicts the overall level of QIPP saving required by the CCG in the 3 years 
of the strategic planning period, given an efficiency saving of 4% on contracts / prescribing and 
a requirement to achieve the original PCT values in 2013-14 and 2014-15, with an assumption 
that the CCG will be required to achieve a similar level of savings in 2015-16 (being the 1st year 
of the new comprehensive spending period)

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Assume Overall Efficiency requirement as 
per share of PCT value (72.5%)  18.6m 18.4m 18.1m

Less Estimated Tariff Efficiency in 
Contracts (12.8m) (12.8m) (12.7m)

Less Estimated Prescribing Efficiency (2.4m) (2.4m) (2.4m)

Remaining QIPP 3.4m 3.3m 3.0m

Cash Releasing (3.1m) (3.0m) (2.7m)

Cost Avoidance (0.3m) (0.3m) (0.3m)

Initial Planning discussions regarding delivery of the CCG’s QIPP targets have produced a 
number of detailed plans that will be required to be delivered over the course of the next 
3 years in order to achieve financial balance and meeting the requirements of the system in 
achieving substantial savings

The table below defines the potential areas for savings that will need to be realised based on 
the CCG’s current commissioning plans.   

Area 2013/14 Financial year 2014/15 Financial year 2015/16 Financial year

 
Cash 

Releasing 
£ Million

Cost 
Avoidance £ 

Million

Cash 
Releasing £ 

Million

Cost 
Avoidance £ 

Million

Cash 
Releasing 
£ Million

Cost 
Avoidance £ 

Million

Urgent Care (1.75) (0.17) (1.68) 0.00 (0.50) 0.00

Planned Care (1.30) (0.10) (0.93) (0.05) (0.60) (0.08)

Cancer - End of 
Life 0.00 (0.08) 0.00 (0.05) 0.00 0.00

Procurement 0.00 0.00 (0.30) 0.00 (0.35) 0.00

Contracts 0.00 0.00 (0.10) 0.00 (0.10) 0.00

Unidentified 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.17) 0.00 (1.41)

 (3.06) (0.34) (3.00) (0.27) (1.55) (1.48)

  

Total Cash 
Releasing + Cost 
Avoidance  

(3.40)
 

(3.27)
 

(3.03)

Page 90



27

Each QIPP Scheme will be supported by a number of initiatives to support the delivery of the 
required changes.  These will be a mixture of cash releasing which will impact on contracted 
activity with providers via an anticipated reduction in activity due to redesign / more effective 
pathways or cost avoidance by preventing activity that would have happened if no changes 
had taken place

A summary of the overarching proposals are as follows and are supported by the CCG’s 
Clinical Strategy Group and supporting QIPP teams with system wide engagement with other 
stakeholders

Urgent Care
Urgent Care (often unplanned) activity provides one of the greatest risks to the CCG in terms 
of its ability to deliver its required financial responsibilities.  QIPP Delivery in this area is 
crucial and revolves around a number of key projects to prevent unnecessary and avoidable 
admissions, ensure patients are accessing the most appropriate services in line with their needs 
and facilitating discharge in most effective manner to ensure patient flow through the system

Planned Care
Planned Care is structured around two key areas of Planned Medical and Surgical Work streams.  
The QIPP initiatives in support of the planned care agenda include a number of service redesign 
projects with the objective of bringing care closer to the patient’s home with more services 
being provided in the community.  An essential part of the QIPP approach in Planned Care 
is improving the pathways for patients with long term conditions and reducing unnecessary 
steps within the surgical pathway for an improved patient experience.

Cancer and End of Life Care
The Cancer QIPP work stream is focused on improving patient pathways and outcomes for this 
cohort of patients, in particular improving standards of care across primary care and nursing / 
care homes, reducing the requirements for hospital admissions at the end of life stage

Procurement
Through its commissioned services, the CCG will hold a number of healthcare contracts and it 
is anticipated that a level of QIPP savings can be achieved through increased efficiency in these 
contract volumes and values.  In particular savings would be achieved through an improvement 
in the approach to purchasing of intermemedidiatate e / / rapid access beds which will be supported 
by impmproroveved d papathway acrorossss p plalanned and unplanned care e woworkrkstreams and jojoinint t woworking 
between all the rererelelevavavant stakeholders

Contractctss
PoPotetentntntiaial QIPP Savaviningsgsgs h have beenen i i idedentntified across a rangnge e ofof c contract arareaeas,s, in particiculularar i it t is 
anticicipateted d thatat a a revevieiew of e exixistining blocock k cocontractct a areas a andndnd a a m move totowardrds activivityty b b basased 
papaththththway syststemememems will releleaeaeaease furtherererer s s savingsgs

UnUnUnididentifiefiefiefiedd
ThThere e rereremamainins s anan elememementnt of unununididentifiefiefied d QIQIPP schchememeses at ththisis p pointnt in n the plplananniningng c c cycycle, 
thththesese wiwiwillll n need d d toto be idididenentifiefied d d asas soooon n as p posossisiblble in o ordrder to o rerealise e thththe rerequququirired Q QIPIPP 
Savingngngs

Page 91



28

Quality Premium 

Clinical Commissioning Groups can receive additional non recurrent resources in 2014-15 
subject to achieving high standards of quality in five measures (as set out in the NHS Outcomes 
Framework) in 2013-14. The measures are:

s฀ Preventing people from dying prematurely
s฀ Enhancing quality of life for people with long term conditions
s฀ Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or following injury
s฀ Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care
s฀ Treating and caring for people is a safe environment and protecting them from avoidable  
s฀ harm. 

The Quality Premium will also include three locally identified measures as identified within the 
Health & Well Being Strategy. The local measures we will be monitoring are

s฀ Emergency readmissions within 30 days of discharge from hospital (specifically for the 
     elderly population)
s฀ Number of people attending Accident and Emergency Department with alcohol related 
     conditions
s฀ Enhancing quality of life for people with dementia

Payment of the Quality Premium will also be dependent upon achieving NHS Constitution and 
the rights and pledges. 

Page 92



29

7. Partnership Working
Successful collaboration with NHS and Local Authority colleagues, other statutory agencies 
and the independent and voluntary sector is recognised as crucial in developing and delivering 
our strategy.  

System Engagement will include:

!"Patient and public engagement
!"Member Practice Engagement
!"Provider Engagement

An engagement structure (the CCG Communications and Engagement Strategy) has been 
established which ensures that key stakeholders, including patients and clinicians, have the 
opportunity to shape commissioning intentions.  

We will continue to develop relationships with the Local Authority (Adult Care, Children’s 
services, Public Health, Housing, Environmental Health etc). 

Collaboration with service providers will be essential in supporting service re-design and QIPP 
projects.

Provider services will be monitored through formal contract monitoring and performance 
review. However in taking the local health services through a period of reform and service 
transformation we will not ignore the need for provider stability. Through all our change 
programmes there will be a focus on patient safety and service quality and provider engagement.

Our core business support and intelligence will be provided by the CSU on a contract 
arrangement. 

We respect the contribution that all Clinicians can make. Our strategic plans and commissioning 
programmes and projects will: 

s฀ Be clinically driven 
s฀ EnEnsusurere c clilinician to cliniciaian n enengagagement 
s฀ Reflect best clclclinininicicicalalal p practice
s฀ PrPromomote e ththe developmpmenent ofof c clilininical networks. 

ApAppependndix 3 descrcribibeses t thehe progresess s ththusus far in terms of engngagagagagining g cliniciansns i in n ththe commisissisiononining 
and seservrvicice e reviewew prorocecess.

A nunumbmber o of f seservrvices c canan b be e bebestst c comommimissssioioned onon a a w wididerer f fooootptprirint t thahan WiWirralal a andnd w we wiwillll 
wowoworkrk with h h h otother CCCCCCCCGsGsGs in susupppppppport ofof c colololollaboboraratitiveve commimimimissssioningngngng a and in dedededevelopipingngngng Specicialalisisisist 
CoCommmmisissisioneded sererviceces.s.  

Patitienenent t and d pupupublicic i invnvolvevememement w w wilill l be e e embmbedded asas a a a conststananant inin a a allll ourur p p plalanninining g and d seservice 
develololopment t proposososals. 

Page 93



30

8. Strategic Priorities
Although a new organisation, we are not a static organisation. We have not ignored the 
positives of the past and we have ensured that a number of initiatives have been brought to 
completion in our short journey thus far. Our recent achievements include:

s฀ Continued Implementation and Mainstreaming of NHS Wirral (Primary Care Trust) 
Strategic Plan

s฀ Key Clinicians providing stability during organisational transition and remaining part of 
CCG Leadership team 

s฀ Three successful applications for Pathfinder CCGs on Wirral 
s฀ Response to patient feedback with regards to poorly performing services leading to 
s฀ service redesign / re-procurement to improvement patient care
s฀ Maintaining financial balance through a period of investment and disinvestment to 
s฀ develop the healthcare market, diversify provision and driving performance improvement. 

Our strategic challenges are:

s฀ To halt and reverse the increasing gap in health inequalities across specific health issues and 
communities.

s฀ To design and commission high quality healthcare services for the elderly and ageing 
population.

s฀ To enable fair and equal access to all services for all communities.
s฀ To shift high quality care closer to home from acute to community settings

As indicated our Strategic Objectives are to:

a) Prevent people from dying prematurely

s฀ By decreasing the potential years of life lost from causes considered amendable to healthcare
s฀ By decreasing the under 75 mortality rate from cancer, cardiovascular, respiratory and liver 

disease

b) Enhance the quality of life for people with long term conditions

s฀ By increasining g ththe e e hehehealalthth-related quality of life for people with long g tetermrmrmrm c conondidition
s฀s฀ ByBy i increasining g ththe propoporortion of pepeopoplele f feeling suppoportrteded to mananagege theirir c cononditions
s฀ By rededucucucucining g the unplannened d d d hohospitalisation n fofor r chchronic ambulalalalatototoryry care conditioionsnsnsns i i in adults 

anand fofor asththmama, , diababetetes andnd e epipilelepspsy y in under 19’9’s
s฀ By i i i incncrereasing ththe e esestimated d didiagagnosis raratete f foror p peoeople withththth d demementia

Page 94



31

c) Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or following injury

s฀ By reducing the number of emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not 
usually require hospital admission 

s฀ By reducing the number of emergency readmissions within 30 days of discharge from 
hospital

s฀ By increasing the total health gain as assessed by patients for both hip and knee replacements, 
Groin Hernia and varicose veins

s฀ By reducing the number of emergency admissions for children with Lower Respiratory Tract 
Infections

d) Ensuring people have a positive experience of care

s฀ By increasing the patient experience of primary (GP and Out of Hours) and hospital care
s฀ By improving the findings of the Friends & Family Test for all relevant commissioned services

e) Ensuring people are treated and cared for in safe environment and protected from avoidable 
harm

s฀ By reducing the incidence of healthcare associated infections in MRSA and C. Difficile

In order to improve services and deliver improvements in these outcomes we have developed 
11 strategic priorities which we believe will have the biggest impact on the future health and 
wellbeing of Wirral residents and support the strategic objectives of the organisation.  

These are:

8.1 Delivering High Quality Planned Care (including services for Older People)
8.2 Managing Urgent Care (including unplanned admissions and attendances and services 

for Older People) 
8.3 Adult Mental Health services (Including Learning Disability Services)
8.4 Children’s and Adolescent Mental Health Services (Including Learning Disability 

Services)
8.5 Dementia 
8.6 Effective Medicines Management 
8.7 ImImprprovoving Access to CoCommmmunity services
8.8 Managemementntnt o o of f f Long Term Conditioionsns a andnd C Chronic Disease Mananagagagememement
8.99 ImImprprovovining Cancer a andnd Endnd o of f LiLife care
8.10 WoWomemen’n’s and Childrdren’s’s Services 
8.8.1111 ImImproving prprprimimarary care s sererviviviceces s at practice level

ThThesesesese stratetegigigigic c c prioritieses a a a are describibibededed in morere d detail inin t t thehehe followiwingngngng pages. 

Theyey a a are notot i in n prpriorityty o ordrder.
EaEach is s eqequally imimpoportant.t.
AlAll l arare ininteter-dedependndndndenent.

These e e strategigic prioiorities t t takakake accococount ofof local needs b b but alslso relatetete to ananand supppppport the e 5 key 
domains undeder the OuOutcomomomes Frararameworkrk. 

Page 95



32

The table below outlines how the 11 strategic priorities map to the objectives (which are in 
line with the NHS Outcomes Framework for 2013 -14). Each strategic priority will be more 
fully described in detailed Programme and Project plans describing their impact, specific goals 
and their relationship with National and local outcome indicators (as illustrated). They will 
specify current baselines, map initiatives to measures, forecast impact and be monitored using 
a developed performance management framework.

Priorities

Outcomes Framework Domain

D
o

m
ai

n
 1

Pr
ev

en
ti

o
n

D
o

m
ai

n
 2

Q
u

al
it

y 
LT

C

D
o

m
ai

n
 3

R
ec

o
ve

ry

D
o

m
ai

n
 4

Ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

D
o

m
ai

n
 5

Sa
fe

ty

8.1 Delivering High Quality Planned Care (including 
services for Older People) ! ! ! !

8.2
Managing Urgent Care (including unplanned 
admissions and attendances and services fro Older 
People).

! ! !

8.3 Adult Mental Health services ! ! ! !

8.4 Children’s and Adolescent Mental Health Services ! ! ! !

8.5 Dementia ! ! !

8.6 Effective Medicines Management ! !

8.7 Improving Access to Community services. 
Commissioning services closer to home.Commissioning services closer to home. ! ! !

8.8 Management of Long Term Conditions and Chronic 
Disease ManagementDisease Management ! ! ! !

8.9 Improving Cancer & End of Life care ! !

8.108.10 Women’s and Children’s ServicesWomen’s and Children’s Services ! ! ! ! !

8.8.1111 ImImprprovoving primary care sererviviceces s atat p praractcticice lelevevel.l. !

FoFor r eaeachch we hahaveve set out: : 
! Our r ViViViVisisionon 
! ThThe key progograrammmmes andnd p prororojejectcts within each straratetegigigic c prpriority
! SpSpececific Progogrammmme targrgetets 
! Their ststrararatetegic impapapactct i in relatitiononon t to local l anand Natitionononal priorititieieiess

FuFuFuFullllll d deliverery y y y ofof thesesesese s s s strategegieieieies s s will impmpmprove s serervivicece qualilililityty a and levevevevelelels providididideded to seservrvrvrvice ususerers.s. 
ThThey w will guararanantetee a a veveryry dififfefererent s serervivice in ththe e fufuture. ThThTheyey w wilill rerequirire sosome d dififficficult t 
dededecicisions s whwhich h mamamamay nonot t t bebe uniniveveversallyly a a accccepepteted.d. T They y dododo a assumumume e resosoururururce re-e-prprprprofilingng. . 
GiGiven n thththe sisigngngnifiificacancncnce ofof t t thehe latatatteteter wewewe h h have set ouout t t bebelolow,w,w, in sususummmmarary,y, t thehe k k key plalalannnned 
investmements anand disinvnvestmtments ovevever the period of thisis p plan. W W We haveve first sususummararised ourur full 
plan on n one papage. ThThThis is fofollowededed by detatatail for each ststrategic c c objectctive.

Page 96



 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  

C
C

G
 V

is
io

n
:

   
   

  B
et

te
r 

H
ea

lth
, V

al
ui

ng
 

VV
Pe

op
le

; I
nn

ov
at

io
n;

 W
o

WW
rk

in
g 

To
ge

th
er

; Q
ua

lit
y;

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

C
C

G
 V

a
lu

e
s 

a
n

d
 P

ri
n

ci
p

le
s:

VV
  I

m
pr

ov
in

g 
H

ea
lth

. I
m

pr
ov

in
g 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
. T

ar
ge

tin
g 

In
eq

ua
lit

y.
 E

ff
ec

tiv
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e.

 E
m

po
w

er
ed

 C
lin

ic
ia

ns
. D

el
iv

er
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 P
er

so
n 

C
en

tr
ed

 C
ar

e 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

n
te

x
t:

   
   

  R
es

id
en

t p
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 3

30
,0

00
 p

eo
pl

e.
 O

ne
 C

C
G

 w
ith

 th
re

e 
st

ro
ng

 L
oc

al
iti

es
. C

C
G

 b
ud

ge
t £

46
5m

 (
20

13
-1

4)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
s:

W
ir

ra
l C

lin
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

 –
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
on

 P
ag

e 
20

13
-2

01
6

“
Yo

ur
 P

ar
tn

er
 in

 a
 H

ea
lt

hi
er

 F
ut

ur
e 

fo
r 

Al
l”

C
ro

ss
 c

ut
tin

g 
th

em
es

: H
ea

lth
 In

eq
ua

lit
y 

an
d

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n;

 S
up

po
rt

in
g 

Q
IP

P;
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

of
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
A

ge
nd

a;
 P

at
ie

nt
 a

nd
 P

ub
lic

 In
vo

lv
em

en
t;

 E
ff

ec
tiv

e 
C

lin
ic

al
 2,

3,
4,

5

1,
3,

4

1,
2,

4

1,
2,

4,
5

1,
2,

3,
4,

5

2,
4

1,
2,

3,
4

1,
2,

3,
4,

5

2,
4,

5

1,
3,

4,
5

1,
2,

3,
4

A
ge

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n

A
ge

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n

A
ge

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n

Po
ve

rt
y

A
lc

oh
ol

A
ge

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n
M

en
ta

l 
H

ea
lth

M
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth

M
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth

M
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth

A
ge

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n

M
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth

A
ge

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n

M
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth

A
ge

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n

M
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Pl

an
ne

d 
C

ar
e 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
O

ld
er

 
or

Pe
op

le
)

M
an

ag
in

g
U

rg
en

tC
ar

e
(in

cl
ud

in
g

un
pl

an
ne

d 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
an

d 
at

te
nd

an
ce

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e)

.

A
du

lt 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s)

C
hi

ld
r

A
do

le
sc

en
t M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

Se
rv

ic
es

)

D
em

en
tia

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
M

ed
ic

in
es

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 C
om

m
un

ity
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

lo
se

r 
to

 h
om

e.

M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f L
on

g 
Te

rm
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
C

hr
on

ic
 D

is
ea

se
 M

an
ag

em
en

t

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
C

an
ce

r 
&

 E
nd

 o
f L

ife
 c

ar
e

W
om

e
WW

n
r

rv
ic

es

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

at
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

le
ve

l.

Tr
a
n

sf
o

rm
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

C
h

a
n

g
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s/

P
ro

je
ct

s/
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
s/

W
o

rk
st

re
a
m

s
Li

n
k
 t

o
 

Lo
ca

l 
P
ri

o
ri

ty

Li
n

k
 t

o
 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

Fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e
s

1
. 

P
re

v
e
n

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

y
in

g
  

  
  

p
re

m
a
tu

re
ly

2
. 

E
n

h
a
n

ce
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li

ty
 o

f 
li

fe
 f

o
r 

  
  

  
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l

o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

3
. 

H
e
lp

in
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e
co

v
e
r 

fr
o

m
  

  
  

e
p

is
o

d
e
s 

o
f 

 i
ll

 h
e
a
lt

h
 o

r 
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
  

  
  

in
ju

ry

4
. 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 h
a
v
e
 a

 p
o

si
ti

v
e
  

 
  

  
e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 
ca

re

5
. 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 t
re

a
te

d
 a

n
d

  
  

  
ca

re
d

 f
o

r 
in

 s
a
fe

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

  
  

p
ro

te
ct

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

v
o

id
a
b

le
 h

a
rm

 

A
m

b
it

io
n

/O
u

tc
o

m
e
s 

(in
 te

rm
s 

of
 p

at
ie

nt
 s

af
et

y,
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t)

By
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l y

ea
rs

 o
f l

ife
 lo

st
 fr

om
 c

au
se

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
m

en
da

bl
e 

to
 

he
al

th
ca

re
By

 d
ec

re
as

in
g 

th
e 

un
de

r 
75

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ra

te
 fr

om
 c

an
ce

r,
 c

a
r

rd
io

va
sc

ul
ar

, rr
re

sp
ira

to
ry

 
an

d 
liv

er
 d

is
ea

se

By
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

he
al

th
-re

la
te

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 c
on

di
tio

n
By

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
fe

el
in

g 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

ei
r 

co
nd

iti
on

s
ir

By
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

un
pl

an
ne

d 
ho

sp
ita

lis
at

io
n 

fo
r 

ch
ro

ni
c 

am
bu

la
to

ry
 c

ar
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
in

 
ad

ul
ts

 a
nd

 fo
r 

as
th

m
a,

 d
ia

be
te

s 
an

d 
ep

ile
ps

y 
in

 u
nd

er
 1

By
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 d
ia

gn
os

is
 r

at
e 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

em
en

tia

By
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
fo

r 
ac

ut
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t 
us

ua
lly

 r
eq

ui
re

 h
os

pi
ta

l a
dm

is
si

on
 

By
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
re

ad
m

is
si

on
s 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f d
is

ch
ar

ge
 fr

om
 

ho
sp

ita
l

By
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

to
ta

l h
ea

lth
 g

ai
n 

as
 a

ss
es

se
d 

by
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

fo
r 

bo
th

 h
ip

 a
nd

 k
ne

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
, g

ro
in

 h
er

ni
a 

an
d 

va
ri

co
se

 v
ei

ns
By

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ad
m

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 L
ow

er
 R

es
pi

ra
to

ry
 

   
  T

ra
ct

 In
fe

ct
io

ns

By
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

pa
tie

nt
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
(G

P 
an

d 
O

ut
 o

f H
ou

rs
) 

an
d 

ho
sp

ita
l 

ca
re

se
rv

ic
es

By
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

in
ci

de
nc

e 
of

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
in

fe
ct

io
ns

 in
 M

RS
A

 a
nd

 C
. 

2
5

Page 97



34

 

 

 
R

eduction in outpatient 
referrals supported by G

P
 

upskilling and peer review
 

year on year 
 Im

proved choice and 
access in audiology and 
ophthalm

ology by M
arch 

2014 
 R

eferral m
anagem

ent 
schem

e to be in place by 
M

arch 2014 
 

S
hared care for review

ed 
services (inc 
gastroenterology, 
haem

atology and 
rheum

atology) 
 

M
axim

ise redesign for 
planned care year on year 
 P

athw
ays and lines of 

com
m

unication to be 
available M

arch 2014 
 C

ontinued adoption of ne
w

 
enhanced recovery 
pathw

ays

  

      
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

          T
o provide planned care, 

in the right place, at the 
right 

tim
e 

by 
the 

right 
clinicians 

w
hich 

is 
patient and prim

ary care 
centric and reduces the 
current 

dem
and 

for 
inpatient services.  
 

 
  

M
anage dem

and for planned 
care over the tim

e span of 
the plan 
   T

o enhance patient 
experience 
  T

o m
eet all national access 

and service level targets 
  T

o m
axim

ise efficiency and 
ensure a balance in health 
care investm

ent priorities 
 

    
        

 R
eduction in level of  

O
utpatient referral including 

upskilling in prim
ary care 

  C
linically led A

Q
P

 developm
ent 

to im
prove choice and access 

   T
he P

rim
ary C

are P
e

er R
eview

 
of R

eferrals 
  D

evelopm
ent of S

hared C
are 

P
lans 

   C
are pathw

ay and protocol 
developm

ent 
  Im

proved access to specialist 
advice at local level 
  D

evelopm
ent of enhanced 

recovery pathw
ays 

V
isio

n
 

Strategic Priority 8.1:  
Delivering High Quality Planned Care 
(including services for Older People) 

P
ro

g
ram

m
es/P

ro
jects 

T
arg

eted
 

P
ro

g
ress/G

o
als 

S
trateg

ic Im
p

act  

Page 98



35

  

 
   

R
eduction in non-elective 

short stay adm
issions in 

2013/14 
  

Increase in num
bers of 

adult w
alk in patients in 

A
&

E
 w

ho are discharged 
directly  

 
 E

lim
inate 4 hour 

breaches as a result of 
com

plex m
ental health 

pathw
ays 

  A
gree a new

 m
odel for 

w
alk in centre services 

across the hospital and 
com

m
unity 

     
 

   
  

 

       
A

  
  

 
 

 
 

  

           S
tream

lined provision 
w

ith the right care, in 
the right place, at the 
right 

tim
e 

leading to 
an im

proved level of 
patient experience 
 

 
M

anagem
ent 

of 
urgent 

care 
dem

and 
and 

control 
of 

expenditure 
  F

ew
er em

ergency adm
issions, 

few
er 

A
&

E
 

attendances 
and 

few
er excess bed days  

  D
elivering 

stream
lined 

patient 
pathw

ays, services and system
 

efficiency gains for Q
IP

P
.  

  A
 

sim
plified 

and 
integrated 

urgent 
care 

m
odel 

betw
een 

prim
ary 

and 
secondary 

care, 
both on the acute hospital site 
and in appropriate locations in 
the com

m
unity  

  A
n 

im
proved 

level 
of 

patient 
experience 
  

 

 
    

Integration of m
edical assessm

ent 
pathw

ay at A
rrow

e P
ark H

ospital 
   

R
edesign of m

ental health 
 

assessm
ent pathw

ay 
  D

evelopm
ent of an integrated 

urgent care centre (including 
prim

ary care) on the A
rrow

e P
ark 

H
ospital site (see and treat) 

 R
eview

 of all w
alk in centre services 

  Introduction of N
H

S
 111 

  D
evelopm

ent of N
W

A
S

 pathfinder 
pathw

ays 
  

   

V
isio

n
 

Strategic Priority 8.2: Managing Urgent 
Care (including services for Older People) 
 

P
ro

g
ram

m
es/P

ro
jects 

  

T
arg

eted
 

P
ro

g
ress/G

o
als 

S
trateg

ic Im
p

act  

Page 99



36

 

 

Im
plem

ent new
 

com
m

unity m
ental health 

service m
odel in A

pril 
2013 
 

 
 P

atients referred for 
prim

ary care m
ental health 

to receive an assessm
ent 

w
ithin 20 days 

 S
hared strategy for crisis 

and interm
ediate care 

betw
een health and local 

authority in place by A
pril 

2014 
  C

om
plex needs service in 

place by S
eptem

ber 2013 

   

  

 

       
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

          P
rovision of 

individualised evidence 
led inter agency, holistic 
interventions and 
services based on early 
identification of risk and 
need w

hich prom
ote 

em
otional w

ell being.  

  
A

 patient tailored approach 
 Im

proved access to appropriate 
services 
 S

eam
less transition betw

een 
children’s and adult services

 
 Integrated w

orking betw
een 

health and social care 
 P

artnership w
orking to support 

patients w
ith m

ental health and 
substance m

isuse issues 
 F

ocussing resources to address 
the m

ental health needs of 
patients w

ith long term
 

conditions 
    

    

 
C

are P
rogram

m
e approach in all 

com
m

unity m
ental health services 

 E
xpanding secondary care services to 

com
m

unity locations 
 T

argeted investm
ent to reduce w

aiting 
tim

es for prim
ary care m

ental health 
 R

eview
 all pathw

ays betw
een children’s 

and adult m
ental health services, and 

im
plem

ent m
odels that equip patients 

w
ith tools for self-m

anagem
ent in 

adulthood 
 R

eview
 of interm

ediate care and inpatient 
facilities to reduce the reliance on long 
term

 care and pool resources w
here 

appropriate 
  Im

plem
ent a com

plex needs service that 
w

ill support those patients w
ith 

challenging and m
ultiple diagnoses 

 Include m
ental health screening and 

intervention w
ithin integrated long term

 
conditions m

odel 

V
isio

n
 

Strategic Priority 8.3:  
Adult Mental Health Services 

 
P

ro
g

ram
m

es/P
ro

jects 
 

T
arg

eted
 

P
ro

g
ress/G

o
als 

S
trateg

ic Im
p

act  

A
D

H
D

 service and single 
point of access delivered in 
com

m
unity by A

pril 2014

Page 100



37

  

 

 
     Im

plem
ent T

ier 2 and 3 
service specifications by 
M

arch 2014. 
     Im

plem
ent A

S
C

 pathw
ay 

by M
arch 2014.  

  E
nhanced access to 

psychological therapies 
by M

arch 2016  
 S

eam
less transfer 

arrangem
ents to adult 

services by M
arch 2016.  

   
  

  

   
 

     
 

  
 

 
 

 
           

           T
he early identification of 

risk and need and the 
provision of evidence 
based interventions to build 
the self efficacy and 
em

otional w
ellbeing of

children, young people and 
their carers. 

   
P

revents people from
 dying 

prem
aturely 

  E
nhances the quality of life  

  S
upports recovery from

 
episodes of acute ill health 
  E

nsures patients are treated 
in appropriate settings in a 
safe w

ay.  
   

        

 
 

 E
xpansion of prim

ary health 
services initiative (T

ier 2 C
A

M
H

S
). 

   Im
plem

ent revised specifications for 
T

ier 3 C
A

M
H

S
 (to integrate w

ith 
adult peri-natal m

ental health to 
provide services from

 pre-birth to 19 
years). 
  D

evelopm
ent of an integrated 

screening and diagnosis 
m

anagem
ent pathw

ay for children 
and young people w

ith autistic 
spectrum

 conditions. 
   T

ransition project to support 
transition of children into adult 
services in a tim

ely fashion. 

A
 V

isio
n

 

Strategic Priority 8.4: 
Adolescent Mental Health Services  

P
ro

g
ram

m
es/P

ro
jects 

 
T

arg
eted

 
P

ro
g

ress/G
o

als 
S

trateg
ic Im

p
act  

Children’s and

Page 101



38

 
 

P
athw

ay im
plem

ented across 
com

m
unity, secondary and 

social care by A
pril 2014 

  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

.  
  C

are and support com
pact in 

place w
ith all care hom

es 
   E

nhanced training for all 
practices and care hom

es by 
A

pril 2014. 

 

       
 

  
 

 
 

 
    

          T
o im

prove the quality of 
life for older people through 
tim

ely assessm
ent and 

diagnosis and enhanced 
short term

 care enabling 
greater independence, 
reducing episodes of 
hospital adm

ission and 
providing m

ore appropriate 
long term

 placem
ents.  

    
Integrated approach to 
assessm

ent and diagnosis of 
dem

entia across all providers 
  P

eople w
ith dem

entia and their 
carers understanding the 
diagnosis and supported to live 
independently in the com

m
unity 

 N
o patients w

ith dem
entia 

staying in hospital for longer than 
necessary 
 O

ptim
um

 prescribing for patient 
w

ith dem
entia 

 
   

        

 
D

eveloping an 
 

dem
entia care p

athw
ay

.  
  D

evelop plans for com
m

unity 
dem

entia care, including crisis beds 
and hom

e treatm
ent support 

  D
evelopm

ent of a com
prehensive 

dem
entia education and training 

program
m

e for staff and carers 
 D

evelopm
ent of a single point of 

contact service for carers 
 S

econdary C
are P

roject to ensure 
patients w

ith dem
entia in acute care 

receive appropriate care and 
support on discharge.  
 A

ntipsychotic audit and training for 
all G

P
 P

ractice and C
are H

om
es 

and staff 
 

V
isio

n
 

Strategic Priority 8.5:  
Dementia  

P
ro

g
ram

m
es/P

ro
jects 

  

T
arg

eted
 

P
ro

g
ress/G

o
als 

S
trateg

ic Im
p

act  

 integrated

B
ring diagnosis of dem

entia 
in line w

ith expected 
prevalence levels by A

pril 2016

E
xpansion of dem

entia 
support and advisor 
services post-diagnosis 
by A

pril 2014

Page 102



39

 

 
A

 new
 com

m
issioner led 

system
 to introduce new

 
drugs for use across the 
W

irral health econom
y by 

M
arch 2014. 

 M
edicines optim

isation to 
ensure patient’s get the best 
possible outcom

es from
 

m
edicine use.  

 E
ffective clinical outcom

es 
in term

s of reduced 
m

ortality, m
orbidity and 

hospital episodes. 
 P

atient engagem
ent, 

education and feedback on 
their experiences 
 E

nhanced m
edicine safety 

 
R

educed prescribing cost 
grow

th 
   

 

  
 

       
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

           T
o ensure the G

P
 

w
orkforce are highly 

skilled prescribers, 
com

m
itted to achieving 

m
edicines optim

isation 
for the W

irral population 
and to ensure all patients 
have access to m

edicines 
approved by N

IC
E

, in 
accordance w

ith the 
Innovation of H

ealth and 
W

ealth directive  
 

  

  
  M

edicines optim
isation 

delivers better outcom
es 

for patients 
   M

edicines optim
isation to 

offset adverse m
arket 

factors 
. 

    
        

 
 T

he M
edicines M

anagem
ent P

lan 
includes: 
 P

rescribing efficiency projects 
 P

rojects to support the national 
prescribing Q

IP
P

 agenda  
 

M
edicines w

astage reduction 
P

rogram
m

es including: 
 P

ublic aw
areness cam

paigns 
 Im

plem
entation of good practice 

guidance to deliver safe and 
effective m

anagem
ent of repeat 

m
edication across G

P
 practices, 

com
m

unity pharm
acies and care 

hom
es. 

   
 

 

V
isio

n
 

Strategic Priority 8.6:  
Effective Medicines Management 

 
P

ro
g

ram
m

es/P
ro

jects 
T

arg
eted

 
P

ro
g

ress/G
o

als 
S

trateg
ic Im

p
act  

Page 103



40

 

 
C

om
prehensive data 

reporting for all com
m

unity 
services by M

arch 2014 
  ‘T

e
am

 A
ro

u
n

d
 th

e 
P

atie
n

t’ 
im

plem
ented by M

arch 
2014. 
  U

rgent C
are Im

provem
ent 

plan developed by M
arch 

2014 
 S

upporting A
Q

P
 

developm
ents (including 

audiology and 
ophthalm

ology by M
arch 

2014 
 Im

plem
ented by M

arch 2014 
   Im

plem
ented by M

arch 2014 
  Im

plem
ented by M

arch 2015 

  

       
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

            M
ore patients receiving 

health care w
ithin com

m
unity 

settings from
 a dynam

ic 
m

ixed econom
y of service 

provision giving rise to 
im

proved outcom
es for 

patients. 
 

 
 

Im
proved access to com

m
unity 

based treatm
ent for acute and 

chronic conditions
. 

 O
utcom

e focussed care 
provided w

ithout 
unnecessary duplication 

 
A

ccessible services 
provided closer to the 
person

 
 

P
rom

otes a m
ixed 

econom
y of care to 

im
prove access and 

choice. 
 

 
U

nderpins the C
C

G
 

financial strategy. 
 

 
E

nhanced patient 
experience

 
   

    
 

 
 

C
om

m
unity Inform

ation 
 

P
roject

 
   Integrated S

ervices 
P

roject  
 

  
 

 
U

rgent care pathw
ays project

 
(com

m
unity services focus)

 
  

A
ccess and choice project 

(com
m

issioning services 
through A

Q
P

)  
   

C
om

m
unity podiatry and 

com
m

unity appliances  
 

 C
om

m
unity neurology services 

 
 

 
C

om
m

unity G
astroenterology 

services
 

 

V
isio

n
 

Strategic Priority 8.7: Improving 
Community Services 

 

P
ro

g
ram

m
es/P

ro
jects 

 
T

arg
eted

 
P

ro
g

ress/G
o

als 
S

trateg
ic Im

p
act  

Page 104



41

 
 

 

R
eduction in unplanned 

adm
issions. 

 R
eduction of LO

S
 

(length of stay) for LT
C

 
 R

eduction in N
ursing 

H
om

e and residential 
placem

ents 
 M

axim
ise redesign for 

LT
C

 care pathw
ays year 

on year 
 R

eduction in outpatient 
attendance referrals and 
follow

-ups at acute trust 
 

  
      

  

 

 
       

 
  

 
 

 
 

  

         T
he coordinated 

m
anagem

ent of patients 
w

ith m
ultiple long-term

 
conditions w

ith patients 
involved in their care 
planning leading to 
enhanced self 
m

anagem
ent supported 

by earlier identification 
and the reduction in the 
developm

ent of chronic 
disease. 
    

 G
reater service integration 

across organisations w
ith  

a focus on services  
organised around the  
patient   
 M

eeting unm
et need now

 and 
predicted grow

th in the future, 
including 

an 
increase 

in 
dem

and in 
light of 

increasing 
elderly population  
 A

n 
im

proved 
level 

of 
patient 

experience and choice 
 M

axim
ise patient engagem

ent 
and participation 
         

   
Long T

erm
 C

onditions project 
focusing on risk stratification, 
developm

ent of integrated team
s 

and self care 
  C

ontinuing P
athw

ay 
 D

evelopm
ent  

 
 

D
iabetic C

are P
roject (transfer 

of services to the com
m

unity) 
 

  C
O

P
D

 Local E
nhanced 

S
ervice and C

are P
lans 

 P
athw

ays for Life – S
elf care 

 

V
isio

n
 
Strategic Priority 8.8: Long Term 
Conditions and Chronic Disease 

Management 

P
ro

g
ram

m
es/P

ro
jects 

 

T
arg

eted
 

P
ro

g
ress/G

o
als 

S
trateg

ic Im
p

act  

Page 105



42

 

 

 
R

educe the m
ortality rate for 

cancer on W
irral com

pared to 
E

ngland 
 Im

prove 
survival 

rates 
for 

cancer on W
irral com

pared to 
E

ngland 
 Increase 

the 
num

ber 
of 

patients 
supported 

to 
die 

in 
their place of choice 
 Increase access to 
diagnostics, ensuring faster 
access to treatm

ent and 
shorter patient journey 
 P

revention – targets for 
B

ow
el, cervical and breast 

screening 
 E

arly detection in selected
 

cancers 
 Im

prove access to diagnostics 
and treatm

ent 
 R
educing deaths in hospital 

  

  

       
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

            R
educing the m

ortality rate 
and increasing the survival 
rate for cancers in W

irral 
through early diagnosis, 
appropriate interventions 
supported by enhanced 
choice in relation to the place 
of death.  

 
        Im

pact on m
ortality 

and survival rates for cancer 
   S

ignificantly enhance end of 
life 

care 
in 

the 
com

m
unity 

across a range of services 
  

 
  

  

 
 

B
reast, bow

el and cervical screening 
program

m
es 

  
W

ork w
ith clinical netw

ork and 
public health to prom

ote national 
and local cam

paigns for early 
detection across a range of 
cancers 
   

D
evelop hospice at hom

e and a 
range of end of life pathw

ays 
  Im

proving end of life care in 
care hom

es and prim
ary care 

 
 Im

plem
ent E

lectronic P
alliative

 
C

are S
ystem

 on W
irral 

  
 

V
isio

n
 

Strategic Priority: Improving Cancer 
Services and End of Life Care 

 

P
ro

g
ram

m
es/P

ro
jects 

 
T

arg
eted

 
P

ro
g

ress/G
o

als 
S

trateg
ic Im

p
act  

8.9

Page 106



43
Page 107



44

  

 
 R

eview
 of enhanced services 

to be com
pleted by M

arch 
2013 

 
G

P
 upskilling in derm

atology, 
M

S
K

 and com
m

issioning skills 
to be evaluated by A

pril 2013. 
 

P
ractice N

urse E
ducation 

program
m

e underw
ay – for 

com
pletion by M

arch 2014. 
 

D
em

entia enhanced service to 
be rolled out to practices by 
January 2013. P

rostate 
enhanced service in progress. 
 A

ll practices to use the 
C

hoose and B
ook system

 by 
O

ctober 2013 
     R

oll out of tablet technology to 
all practices by A

pril 2013. 
T

ele-derm
atology provision 

  

  

       
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

             T
o have a broad range of 

prim
ary and com

m
unity 

care services provided at 
G

eneral P
ractice level 

w
hich supports im

proved 
access through extended 
hours and flexible m

odels 
of care.  
  

 P
rovision of additional 

services delivered closer to 
the person 

 
S

killed clinicians able to 
deliver enhanced care at 
practice level (w

here 
appropriate) w

ithout the 
need for unnecessary 
onw

ard referral 
 P

rom
otion of im

proved
 

access and provision of 
choice of services 
   

  
   

        

 
 E

nhanced S
ervices P

roject (to 
extend the scope of prim

ary 
care provision) 
 C

linical U
pskilling 

   A
ccess to training and 

developm
ent P

roject  
  D

evelopm
ent of shared care 

initiatives across prim
ary and 

secondary care (e.g. dem
entia 

and prostate care) 
 C

hoose and B
ook  

  D
evelopm

ent of P
ractice based 

services (e.g. prim
ary care 

m
ental health, physio, podiatry 

etc).  
 IT

 infrastructure im
provem

ents 
and innovate delivery of care 
through IT

 

V
isio

n
 

Strategic Priority 8.11: Improving Primary Care 
Services at Practice Level 

P
ro

g
ram

m
es/P

ro
jects 

 
T

arg
eted

 
P

ro
g

ress/G
o

als 
S

trateg
ic Im

p
act  

Page 108



45

9. Strategic Delivery
s฀฀#ONTINUITY WITH THE PAST AND THE STABILITY THIS BRINGS IS NOT TO BE IGNORED� (OWEVER ฀ ฀
    Wirral CCG is a new organisation. It is and will operate in a different way from predecessor    
    organisations. Its foundation stone is clinical leadership. GP Practices in close association 
    with professional and lay colleagues will shape and commission future health care services. 
    They will also be responsible for delivering best possible outcomes for the local population. 

s฀฀฀! FORMAL CONSTITUTION HAS BEEN AGREED AND WILL BE EFFECTIVE FROM !PRIL �����

s฀฀฀2EAL PARTNERSHIP WITH LOCAL CLINICIANS IN SECONDARY AND PRIMARY CARE� LOCAL PEOPLE AND
     partner agencies will be critical in delivering transformed services.        

s฀ Delivery of our strategy will be achieved through clear responsibilities and accountability 
described in our new organisational structure.

s฀฀฀$ELIVERY WILL REQUIRE ARTICULATION OF THE �� STRATEGIC PRIORITIES INTO A SERIES OF PROGRAMMES฀฀
     and projects with a designated clinical and managerial lead for each.

s฀฀฀! ROBUST APPROACH TO PERFORMANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT WILL UNDERPIN 3TRATEGIC $ELIVERY�฀฀

s฀฀฀!S PART OF OUR CULTURE OF INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT WE
     will develop a Strategic Plan Evaluation Framework. 

9.1 Structures

s฀฀฀4HE 7IRRAL ##' STRUCTURE IS REPRESENTED IN THE FOLLOWING DIAGRAM�

Page 109



46

9.2 Roles

s฀ The Governing Body of the CCG will be accountable for exercising its statutory functions.   
       In relation to Strategic Implementation it will:

s฀ Set the organisational framework for strategic implementation
s฀ Set strategic priorities 
s฀ Oversee delivery of the Strategic Plan through an annual high level Operating Plan. 
s฀ Review overall progress and performance at each monthly Board meeting
s฀ Commission recovery plans where necessary
s฀ Monitor the quality and safety of services commissioned by the CCG. This includes working
      with regulators of healthcare and receiving reports directly from the public and patients
s฀ Hold accountable those individulas or organisations that provide healthcare services and 

ensure that the public is protected from avoidable harm

s฀ A number of sub committees have been established. In relation to Strategic Delivery: 
operational delivery of the strategic plan will be monitored by the Quality, Performance 
and Finance Sub Committee on behalf of the Governing Body.

s฀ “Day to day” monitoring and delivery will be led by Strategic Implementation/QIPP Clinical 
Engagement Groups

9.3 Strategic Implementation Groups

Wirral CCG has established a number of QIPP Clinical Engagement Groups. 

s฀ These groups will be responsible for implementing the CCG Strategic priorities. 
s฀ They will operate as clinical strategic implementation groups. 
s฀ Each group will report to the CSG through a designated clinical lead. 
s฀ They will have clear accountability for the successful implementation of each strategic 
           priority, for patient experience, quality and safety.
s฀ These groups will develop service specific programme and project plans supported by   
           timetabled action plans.                timetabled action plans.     

99.44 DDelivering through Contraccttss

!"!"""""""ThThe CCG wiwillll c commimissssioion services f foror t thehe popululatatioion n ofof Wirral throrougugh a brbroaoad range ofof  
      contntraractctctcts s wiwith diverse serervivivivicece providers.
!"!"""""ApAppependndix 1 1 s setets out t ththe e Wirrrral CCGCG c conontrtract portrtfofolilio o for alall l majojor r cocontraractcts.s. 
!"""""A A cocococontntracting stststrarararatetetegy is currrrenenenentltltly under dedevevelolopment. T T Thihihihis s strategy w w wililill l l set out inin d d detetetetaiail 
       thehe CCGCG c conontrtracact mananagegemement a andnd m mononitoring ararrarangngemementsts. 
!""""""AlAlAlAll l contractctororors will be e rerereququired t to o susubmit p pererfoformrmance m m mananagemenenenent t informatatatioion consisistetetetent 
        with t thehehe s standarard d d teterms ofofof t thehe DH H H cocococontract.
!""""""CoContntraractcts wiwill spepecicifyfy natatioioionanal acaccecessss tarargegetsts andnd e expxpecteted d righghtsts a and p pleledgdges o of f ththe NHNHS S 
         conststititititution (2(2(2(201013-141414).).).).
        

Page 110



47

9.5 Assurance of delivery

Each clinical & management lead will be accountable for delivery of agreed strategic plans for 
their specific service area. They will report monthly to the CSG on 

s฀ Performance against key performance indicators
s฀ Delivery against key milestones
s฀ Areas of underperformance and mitigating actions
s฀ Key risks

Performance against project milestones and outcome framework indicators will be monitored 
as appropriate through the Quality Performance and Finance Committee.

9.6 Risk Management

The CCG has developed systems in place to identify and manage all key risks to ensure delivery 
of key national and local priorities. 

9.7 Supporting Delivery

The CCG recognises its responsibilities to the public of Wirral and colleague organisations. 
Delivery will be complemented by:

! Public engagement, 
! Practice engagement
! System Engagement and collaborative working
! Organisational and leadership development to support delivery  

We will engage actively with colleague CCGs, social care partners, patients, staff and the public 
through our SIG/QIPP groups. We will engage with local Providers at specific issue quarterly 
meetings as well as through the routine contract and performance monitoring processes. 

Page 111



48

Appendix 1 NHS Wirral Contract Portfolio

Provider Name Approximate Contract value

Major NHS Providers (in excess of £1m)

Wirral Hospital NHS Trust £208m

Wirral NHS Community Trust £44m

Cheshire and Wirral Partnership Trust £34m

North West Ambulance Service £9m

Royal Liverpool University NHS Trust £7m

Aintree NHS FT £3m

Countess of Chester NHS FT £2m

Liverpool Women’s NHS FT £2m

Independent / Non NHS Providers

Spire (Murrayfield) £3m

St. John’s Hospice £1.6m

Independent Midwifery £1m

Spa Medica £0.5m

Claire House £0.2m

Hoylake Cottage Hospital £0.2m

Assura £0.2m

Page 112



49

Appendix 2 The National Picture

1. NHS White Paper and Health and Social Care Bill

The NHS White Paper ‘Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS’ sets out a vision for the 
NHS that is built around patients, places clinicians at the heart of decision-making, and sees 
responsibility for healthcare budgets shift from Strategic Health Authorities and Primary Care 
Trusts, to Clinical Commissioning Groups.  The Health and Social Care Bill makes provision for 
delivery of the five key objectives within the White Paper:

s฀ strengthening commissioning of NHS services 

s฀ increasing democratic accountability and public voice 

s฀ liberating provision of NHS services 

s฀ strengthening public health services 

s฀ reforming health and care arm’s-length bodies

Emergent CCGs are currently preparing to undergo a period of authorisation, during which 
the extent to which they prepare to take on full commissioning responsibility for their patient 
population will be tested, across six domains (Developing Clinical Commissioning Groups: 
towards authorisation):

s฀ A strong clinical and professional focus which brings real added value;
s฀ Meaningful engagement with patients, carers and their communities;
s฀ Clear and credible plans which continue to deliver the QIPP (quality, innovation, productivity 

and prevention) challenge within financial resources, in line with national outcome 
standards and local joint health and wellbeing strategies;

s฀ Proper constitutional and governance arrangements, with the capacity and capability to 
deliver all their duties and responsibilities including financial control as well as effectively 
commission all the services for which they are responsible;

s฀ Collaborative arrangements for commissioning with other CCGs, local authorities and the 
NHS Commissioning Board as well as the appropriate external commissioning support; and

s฀ Great leaders who individually and collectively can make a real difference.

WiWirrrralal C CCG w wilill l only be abablele to papassss t thrhrough this authorisisatatioion prprococesess with thehe c colollaboboraratition 
of its cononststststititueuent divisionsns. .  T Thehehe Divisions a arere s supuppoportrted throughghghgh t thihis s period of trtranansfsfsfsformation 
byby t thehehe o overarchihingngng P PCTCT Clusterer: : ChChCheseshihire, Warrington a andnd W Wirral, whihichch w wilill seek assssurururanancece 
that t thehe d developopmementnt o of the e CCCCG G and ththe e DiDivivisisionons,s, and t theheheirir c commimissssioioniningng intenentitionons and 
ststrarararategic plananan, , , arare in line e e wiwiwith the a autututhohorisatitionon framewowowowork, and thththe e e e vivision eststabababablilished witititithihin 
ththe e WhWhite PaPapeper.r.    ThThe e GoGovevernrnining g BoBodydy o of f the CCCCG G wiwill b be e respspononsisiblble fofor r ovovererseseeieingng t thehe 
cococompmpletionononon o of the auauauthorisatatatatioioion prococesess.

Page 113



50

2. NHS Operating Framework

The NHS Operating Framework sets out the planning, performance and financial requirements 
for NHS Organisations, in order to meet the challenges of the White Paper, and to support 
the reforms enshrined within the Health and Social Care Bill, in what it describes as ‘a year for 
improvement and transition’.  

The four key themes are:

s฀ putting patients at the centre of decision making in preparing for an outcomes approach 
to service delivery, whilst improving dignity and service to patients and meeting essential 
standards of care; 

s฀ completion of the last year of transition to the new system, building the capacity of 
emerging clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) and supporting the establishment of Health 
and Wellbeing Boards so that they become key drivers of improvement across the NHS; 

s฀ increasing the pace on delivery of the quality, innovation, productivity and prevention 
(QIPP) challenge; 

s฀ Maintaining a strong grip on service and financial performance, including ensuring that the 
NHS Constitution right to treatment within 18 weeks is met. 

Requirements are set out in the areas of quality, reform, finance and business rules, and 
planning and accountability. 

Page 114



51

3. NHS Outcomes Framework 2013/14

The NHS Outcomes Framework provides NHS Organisations with a set of indicators that will 
enable quality and patient outcomes to be measured in a way that is meaningful, equitable 
and that allows for accountability and transparency.  These indicators are updated from those 
within the Outcomes Framework 2012/13, to reflect the changing landscape, and to drive up 
quality and performance to the level that is required from the White Paper’s vision for the NHS. 
These indicators are grouped within the five NHS Operating Framework domains.

Each of the domains contains a number of overarching indicators and improvement areas by 
which the Clinical Commissioning Group will be judged.  

A summary of these indicators are included below based on the document released by the 
Department of health on the 13th November 2013 (link below) 

https : / /www.wp.dh.gov.uk/publ icat ions / f i les /2012/11/121109-NHS-Outcomes-
Framework-2013-14.pdf

Page 115



52

NHS OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK 2013-14

Domain 1 Domain 2 Domain 3 Domain 4 Domain 5

Preventing people from 
dying prematurely

Enhancing quality 
of life for people 
with long-term 

conditions

Helping people 
to recover from 

ill-health or 
following injury

Ensuring people 
have a positive 

experience of care

Treating and caring 
for people in a safe 
environment and 

protecting them from 
avoidable harm

Overarching indicator Overarching 
indicator

Overarching 
indicators

Overarching 
indicator Overarching indicators

1a Potential Years of 
Life Lost (PYLL) from 
causes considered 
amenable to health care 
i Adults ii Children and 
Young people

2 Health related 
quality of life for 
people with long-
term conditions

3a Emergency 
admissions for 
acute conditions 
that should not 
usually require 
hospital admission

4a Patient 
experience of 
primary care

5a Patient safety 
incident reporting

1b Life expectancy at 75 
i males ii females  

3b Emergency 
readmissions 
within 30 days of 
discharge from 
hospital

i GP services ii 
GP out-of-hours 
services iii NHS 
Dental Services

5b Safety incidents 
resulting in severe 
harm or death

   
4b Patient 
experience of 
hospital care

5c Hospital deaths 
attributable to 
problems in care

   4c Friends and 
Family test  

Improvement areas Improvement areas Improvement areas Improvement 
areas Improvement areas

Reducing premature 
mortality from the 
major causes of death

Ensuring people 
feel supported 
to manage their 
condition

Improving 
outcomes 
from planned 
treatments

Improving 
people’s 
experience of 
outpatient care

Reducing the 
incidence of avoidable 
harm

1.1 Under 75 mortality 
rate from cardiovascular 
disease

2.1 Proportion of 
people feeling 
supported to 
manage their 
condition

3.1 Total health 
gain as assessed 
by patients for 
elective procedures

4.1 Patient 
experience 
of outpatient 
services

5.1 Incidence 
of hospital-
related venous 
thromboembolism 
(VTE)

1.2 Under 75 mortality 
rate from respiratory 
disease

Improving 
functional ability in 
people with long-
term conditions

i Hip ii Knee 
replacement iii 
Groin Hernia iv 
Varicose veins

Improving 
hospitals’ 
responsiveness to 
personal needs

5.2.i Incidence of 
MRSA

1.3 Under 75 mortality 
rate from liver disease

2.2 Employment of 
people with long-
term conditions

v Psychological 
therapies

4.2 
Responsiveness 
to in-patients’ 
personal needs

5.2.ii Incidence of C 
difficile

1.4 Under 75 mortality 
from cancer

Reducing time 
spent hospital by 
people with long-
term conditions

Preventing lower 
respiratory tract 
infections (LRTI) 
in children from 
becoming serious

Improving 
people’s 
experience of 
accident and 
emergency 
services

5.3 Incidence of newly-
acquired category 2, 3 
and 4 pressure ulcers

i One and ii Five -year 
survival from all cancers

2.3.i Unplanned 
hospitalisation for 
chronic ambulatory 
care sensitive 
conditions (adults) 
ii Unplanned 
hospitalisation for 
asthma, diabetes 
and epilepsy in 
under 19s

3.2 Emergency 
admissions for 
children with 
lower respiratory 
tract infections 
(LRTI)

4.3 Patient 
experience of A&E 
services

5.4 Incidence of 
medication errors 
causing serious harm

1.4.iii One and iv 
Five-year survival 
from breast, lung and 
colorectal cancer

Enhancing quality 
of life for carers

Improving 
recovery from 
injuries and 
trauma

Improving access 
to primary care 
services

Improving the safety 
of maternity services

Reducing premature 
death in people with 
serious mental illness

2.4 Health-related 
quality of life for 
carers

3.3 Proportion 
of people who 
recover from major 
trauma

4.4.i Access to GP 
services

5.5 Admission of 
full-term babies to 
neonatal care

1.5 Excess under 75 
mortality rate in adults 
with serious mental 
illness

Enhancing quality 
of life for people 
with mental illness

Improving 
recovery from 
stroke

4.4.ii NHS Dental 
services

Delivering safe care 
to children in acute 
settingsPage 116



53

Reducing deaths in 
babies and young 
children

2.5 Employment 
of people with 
mental illness

3.4 Proportion of 
stroke patients 
reporting an 
improvement in 
activity/lifestyle 
on the Modified 
Rankin Scale at 6 
months

Improving women 
and their families’ 
experience of 
maternity services

5.6 Incidence of harm 
to children due to 
‘failure to monitor’

1.6.i Infant mortality ii 
Neonatal mortality and 
stillbirths iii Five-year 
survival from all cancers 
in children

Enhancing quality 
of life for people 
with dementia

Improving 
recovery from 
fragility fractures

4.5 Women’s 
experience of 
maternity services

 

Reducing premature 
death in people with 
learning disabilities

2.6.i Estimated 
diagnosis rate 
for people with 
dementia ii A 
measure of the 
effectiveness of 
post-diagnosis 
care in sustaining 
independence and 
improving quality 
of life

3.5.i The 
proportion of 
patients with 
fragility fractures 
recovering to their 
previous levels of 
mobility / walking 
ability at 30 days 
ii The proportion 
of patients with 
fragility fractures 
recovering to their 
previous levels of 
mobility / walking 
ability at 120 days

Improving the 
experience of care 
for people at the 
end of their lives

 

1.7 Excess under 60 
mortality in people with 
learning disabilities

 

Helping older 
people to recover 
their independence 
after illness or 
injury

4.6 Bereaved 
carers’ views on 
the quality of 
care in the last 3 
months of life

 

  

3.6.i Proportion 
of Older People 
(65 and over) 
who were still 
at home 91 days 
after discharge 
from hospital 
into reablement/
rehabilitation 
services ii 
Proportion offered 
rehabilitation 
following 
discharge 
from acute or 
community 
hospital

Improving the 
experience of 
healthcare for 
people with 
mental illness

 

   

4.7 Patient 
experience of 
community 
mental health 
services

 

   

Improving 
children and 
young people’s 
experience of 
healthcare

 

   
4.8 An indicator 
is under 
development

 

   
Improving 
people’s 
experience of 
integrated care

 

   
4.9 An indicator 
is under 
development

 

     

Page 117



54

  

 
                                  

G
O

V
E

R
N

IN
G

 
B

O
D

Y
 

C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 

U
R

G
E

N
T

 
C

A
R

E
 

P
L
A

N
N

E
D

 
M

E
D

IC
A

L
 

P
L

A
N

N
E

D
 

S
U

R
G

IC
A

L
 

W
O

M
E

N
 

C
A

N
C

E
R

 /
 

E
N

D
 O

F
 

L
IF

E

D
IA

G
N

O
S

T
IC

S
 

M
E

D
IC

IN
E

S
 

M
A

N
A

G
E

-
M

E
N

T
 

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 

M
E

N
T

A
L 

H
E

A
LT

H
 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

&
 IT

 
E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 

&
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
D

ia
be

te
s 

M
S

K
 

LT
C

 
R

en
al

 

U
ro

lo
gy

 
G

en
 S

ur
g 

 
E

N
T

 
O

ph
th

 
 

G
P

 
M

em
be

rs
 

W
U

T
H

 
W

C
T 

C
W

P
 

P
U

B
LI

C
 

H
E

A
LT

H
 

LO
C

A
L 

A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

 
C

S
U

 
C

C
O

 
N

W
A

S
 

O
T

H
E

R
 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 

W
IR

R
A

L 
LI

N
K

 

W
G

P
C

C
 

W
H

C
C

 

D
em

en
tia

 
 

V
C

A
 

W
A

C
C

 

G
P

 F
or

um
s 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
N

ur
se

 F
or

um
s 

P
at

ie
nt

 C
ou

nc
ils

 
P

P
G

s 

P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 T
im

e 
 

A
cc

es
s 

A
Q

P
 

C
ar

e 
H

om
es

 
P

al
lia

tiv
e 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 
  

W
he

el
ch

ai
r 

 
M

at
er

ni
ty

 
  

W
R

O
C

S
 

 
P

re
sc

rib
in

g 
C

lu
st

er
s 

 

D
r 

M
cK

ay
 

D
r 

K
er

sh
aw

 
D

r 
S

riv
as

ta
va

D
r 

A
de

go
ke

D
r 

P
ui

g 
D

r 
F

re
em

an
 

D
r 

Le
e 

D
r 

R
ud

ni
ck

D
r 

S
al

ah
ud

di
n 

D
r W

ils
on

 
D

iv
is

io
n 

le
ad

s 

D
r

N
ay

lo
r

-
D

r
O

at
es

-
D

r
G

re
en

PA
T

IE
N

T
 

EN
G

A
G

EM
EN

T
P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

EN
G

A
G

EM
EN

T

Appendix 3 - Delivering QIPP through Clinical Engagement

Page 118



55

Appendix 4

Expected rights and pledges from the NHS Constitution 2013/14 (subject to current 
consultation) including the thresholds the NHS Commissioning Board will take when assessing 
organisational delivery 

Referral To Treatment waiting times for non-urgent consultant-led treatment 

Admitted patients to start treatment within a maximum of 18 weeks from referral – 90% 

Non-admitted patients to start treatment within a maximum of 18 weeks from referral – 95% 

Patients on incomplete non-emergency pathways (yet to start treatment) should have been waiting no more 
than 18 weeks from referral – 92% 

Diagnostic test waiting times 

Patients waiting for a diagnostic test should have been waiting no more than 6 weeks from referral – 99% 

A&E waits 

Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4hours of their arrival at an A&E department – 
95% 

Cancer waits – 2week wait 

Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient appointment for patients referred urgently with suspected cancer 
by a GP – 93% by a GP – 93% 
Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient appointment for patients referred urgently with breast symptoms 
(where cancer was not initially suspected) – 93% (where cancer was not initially suspected) – 93% 

Cancer waits – 31 days 

Maximum one month (31-day) wait from diagnosis to first definitive treatment for all cancers – 96% 

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where that treatment is surgery – 94% 

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where that treatment is an anti-cancer drug regimen – 98% 

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where the treatment is a course of radiotherapy – 94% 

Cancer waits – 62 days 

Maximum two month (62-day) wait from urgent GP referral to first definitive treatment for cancer – 85% 

MaMaxiximumum m 6262-day wait from referral l frfromom an NHNHS S screening servicice toto fi firsrst t dedefinitive treatment for alall l cacancncers – 
90% 
MaMaximum 62-dayay w waiait t for r firfirstst definitive treatatmementnt f folollolowiwingng a a c cononsultant’s decisionon t to o upupgrgradade the priority of f 
the e papatitienent (a(allll c canancers) – no o opeperationonalal s statandndard set pa (a(a ) pe

Category A A ambmbululance calls 

Categogogogoryry A A calls resultititingngng in an emergrgenenenencycycy response ararririvivingng within 8m8mininininututes – 75% (stststanananandadadard to be metetet f f f for 
both R Red 1 1 a and Reded 2 2 callsls s sepeparatatelely)y) epep y)

Catetetetegogory A callsls r r resesulting in n anananan a ambulancece a a a arriving atat t thehe s scecene withihihin n 19 minututeseses – – 95% 

MiMiMiMixexed Sex AcAcAcAccommododatatatioion Breachchchches 

MiMiMiMinimisesese b b b breachehes s 

Page 119



56

Cancelled Operations 
All patients who have operations cancelled, on or after the day of admission (including the day 
of surgery), for non-clinical reasons to be offered another binding date within 28 days, or the 
patient’s treatment to be funded at the time and hospital of the patient’s choice. 
Mental health 
Care Programme Approach (CPA): The proportion of people under adult mental illness 
specialties on CPA who were followed up within 7 days of discharge from psychiatric in-patient 
care during the period – 95%. 

Additional measures NHS Commissioning Board has specified for 2013/14. 

Referral To Treatment waiting times for non-urgent consultant-led treatment 
Zero tolerance of over 52 week waiters 
A&E waits 
No waits from decision to admit to admission (trolley waits) over 12 hours 
Cancelled Operations 
No urgent operation to be cancelled for a 2nd time 
Ambulance Handovers 
All handovers between ambulance and A & E must take place within 15 minutes and crews 
should be ready to accept new calls within a further 15 minutes. Financial penalties, in both 
cases, for delays over 30 minutes and over an hour. 

Page 120



NHS Wirral

Old Market House
Birkenhead
Wirral
CH41 5AL

intouch@wirral.nhs.uk

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
 
Meeting Date 13 March 2013 Agenda Item 9 
 
Report Title Corporate Plan 2013-16 
Responsible Board 
Member 

Leader of the Council/Chair of Health & Wellbeing Board 

 
Board development  
   

 

JSNA/JHWS  

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

Strategic Planning ü 

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No  N/A ü 

Purpose For 
approval 

 To note ü To 
assure 

 

 
Summary of Paper The Corporate Plan 2013-16 sets the strategic vision and priorities for 

the Council.  The work of the Council as described in the Corporate 
Plan contributes to the wider health and wellbeing of the Borough. 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

£ n/a £  £  

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

See report 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

The Corporate Plan has been informed by a public consultation 
exercise which reached c. 7000 local people. 

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

The Board note the Council’s Corporate Plan and its links to the Health 
& Wellbeing Strategy 

 
Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
Council 5 March Agreed 
Cabinet 18 February Agreed to recommend to Council 
List of 
Appendices 

Corporate Plan 

 
Yes ü Yes  Publish On 

Website No  
Private Business 

No ü 
  
Report Author:  Lucy Barrow 
 
Contact details: 0151 691 8006 email: lucybarrow@wirral.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 9

Page 123



Corporate Plan 2013-16 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

1.1 This report presents Wirral’s Health & Wellbeing Board with Wirral Council’s 3 year 
Corporate Plan (2013-2016) that has been approved by full Council. 

 
1.2 The proposed priorities set out in the Corporate Plan have been based on the “What 

Really Matters” consultation programme and provide a framework for delivering 
savings during 2013-2014. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 On the 5th March 2013, Council approved a year three Corporate Plan which sets out 
the vision and priorities for the Council.  

 
2.2 The Corporate Plan will be produced in two parts. Part one (appendix 1 of this report) 

provides the vision and priorities for the Council which will provide the strategic 
framework and principles for budget savings to be delivered during the 2013/14 
financial year.   

 
2.3 Part two of the Corporate Plan will outline the key deliverables and measures of 

success to ensure we are delivering against the vision and priorities as set out in part 
one.   

 
2.4 Strategic directorates will also develop plans to ensure successful delivery of the 

Corporate Plan vision and priorities. 
 
2.5 The Council has been working in close partnership with the Local Government 

Association through Wirral’s Improvement Board to oversee the delivery of the 
Council’s Improvement Plan.  The Corporate Plan will be central to the Council’s 
overall delivery framework for 2013-2016, and therefore Wirral’s Improvement Board 
will consider a draft of the 2013-16 Corporate Plan at its meeting on the 1st March 2013 
in order ensure its alignment to the Improvement Plan. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The Corporate Risk Register will be updated in line with the new Corporate Plan to 
ensure that any risks to delivering the Council’s goals are understood and mitigating 
actions are put in place as appropriate.  

 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 Not applicable. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 The priorities within the Corporate Plan will be embedded through continuous and 
extensive engagement with Council staff, our partners and Wirral residents.  The 
Council’s recent “What Really Matters” exercise has informed the Corporate Plan 
priorities to reflect the consultation that has taken place with local residents and 
stakeholders.   

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 The Corporate Plan for 2013-2016 sets a commitment in relation to working with 
voluntary, community and faith sector organisations to improve outcomes for local 
people. 

 
 

Page 124



7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The Corporate Plan informs the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the Annual 
Budget which seek to allocate available resources to deliver the priorities as set out in 
the Corporate Plan.  

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 Legal implications relating to the actions relating to priorities identified with the 
Corporate Plan will be addressed by strategic directorates as appropriate. 

 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and is published on Wirral 
Council’s website. 

 
9.2 In developing individual strategic directorate plans, strategic directorates will also be 

expected to address equalities implications as appropriate, including undertaking 
Equality Impact Assessments in line with corporate requirements. 

 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 Any carbon reduction implications relating to priorities identified with the Corporate 
Plan will be addressed by strategic directorates as appropriate. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 Any planning and community safety implications relating to priorities identified with the 
Corporate Plan will be addressed by strategic directorates as appropriate. 

 
12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1 It is recommended that Wirral’s Health & Wellbeing Board note the Corporate Plan that 

was adopted by full Council on the 5th March 2013. 

Page 125



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Plan: 
2013-2016

"Wirral should be a place where the vulnerable are safe and
protected, where employers want to invest and local businesses
thrive, and where good health and an excellent quality of life is
within the reach of everyone who lives here."

wirral.gov.uk/corporateplan 

APPENDIX 1

Page 127



 

 1 

Contents 
 
1. Foreword from the Leader and Chief Executive 
 
2. Introduction 
 
3. Ambition and vision 
 
4. Context 
 

• Wirral - the place 
• Wirral’s Economy 
• Wirral – the Council 
• Improving Corporate Governance 
• Financial context 
• Working in partnership 
• Neighbourhood Working 

 
 
5. What we will deliver over the next three years 
 

• Families and Wellbeing 
• Regeneration and Environment 
• Transformation and Resources 

Page 128



 

 2 

Foreword  
 

Wirral Council is facing unprecedented challenges. Our budget is reducing, 
while at the same time demand for our services is rising, as are residents’ 
expectations. Equally, it is difficult to remember a time when the opportunities 
for our Council, our borough and our residents were greater. We are at the 
national forefront of sector led improvement, we are delivering many 
consistently excellent services, and we are at the heart of regeneration 
projects of global significance.   
 
We should be proud of our achievements, unequivocal in our determination to 
improve and excited about the future. This Corporate Plan provides the 
platform for how we will do it. 
 
Our priorities for the next three years are clear; you will see that continuous, 
genuine and comprehensive consultation is at the core of this Corporate Plan 
– our residents have told us what they expect of us, this plan is designed to 
make sure we deliver just that.  
 
We will make sure that our first priority is to safeguard and protect as far as 
possible the most vulnerable among us. We will tackle the unacceptable 
health inequalities which exist in our borough, and use our new leadership on 
the public health agenda to drive this work. We will capitalise on the 
regeneration opportunities before us, opportunities which are the envy of the 
entire country, and we will make sure they build real, lasting growth in our 
economy, creating jobs for generations to come.  
 
We are one of the largest Councils in the UK; we are bigger than cities such 
as Newcastle, Derby and Leicester, and it is time we started to act like it. For 
too long we have failed to punch our weight and exert our influence at the 
regional and national level. This must and will be changed in the coming 
months and years; so we deliver on our duty to get the very best deal 
possible for Wirral.  
 
Our financial situation is exceptionally difficult, but it is also forcing us to 
modernise, and to look at everything we do in a new light, become more 
innovative and totally transform the way we deliver and provide services. 
Making sure we continue to improve, both our services and the quality of life 
for our residents, is the key challenge for all public servants. We will take 
pride in striving to achieve this for our residents. 
 
This is the start of a new journey, towards a high performing Council serving 
its residents with openness, honesty and pride. We pledge that: 
 
‘’We will ensure this Council is in the future focussed upon serving and 
protecting local people and in particular those who are most vulnerable 
and in need. We will do this through the engagement and empowerment 
of individuals and communities in both the design and delivery of local 
services, and by working together with partners in the public, private 
and the community, voluntary and faith and independent sectors.’’ 
 
 
Cllr Phil Davies   Graham Burgess 
Leader of Wirral Council  Chief Executive  

 

Page 129



 

 3 

1. Introduction 
 

This three year Corporate Plan will deliver a new robust approach to the 
Council’s business planning; ensuring that our vision, priorities and resource 
allocation are based on sound evidence and analysis of community needs. 
Crucially, it will ensure that the priorities identified in the Corporate Plan will 
be underpinned by a sustainable budget over the next three years and can be 
delivered from within available resources. 
 

2. Our Vision for Wirral 
 

Wirral should be a place where the vulnerable are safe and protected, 
where employers want to invest and local businesses thrive, and where 
good health and an excellent quality of life is within the reach of 
everyone who lives here.  
 
We promise to support this vision, and serve our residents, improving our 
organisation through working in partnership, and becoming the excellent 
Council that our residents deserve.  

 
3. Our Principles for the future design of services 
 

Genuine, continuous and comprehensive consultation is at the core of this 
Corporate Plan. Throughout 2012/13, we listened to everyone who relies on 
our organisation when they told us where our focus and our limited resources 
should lie.  
 

We Will: 
  

Protect the vulnerable in our borough  
by making sure that our systems and procedures help us to always identify 
and mitigate problems before they develop, safeguard the vulnerable 
effectively, working together across Council and agency boundaries and 
delivering our services with empathy at all times.   

  
Tackle health inequalities  
by embracing the Council’s new leadership role in public health and using the 
opportunities this brings to focus on improving our residents’ health and 
wellbeing, and reducing the levels of child poverty and the health inequalities 
that exist in our communities.  

 
Drive growth in our economy  
by capitalising on the unprecedented opportunities which are within our grasp; 
such as Wirral Waters, the International Trade Centre, International Golf 
Resort and our award-winning Investment Strategy.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 130



 

 4 

3. Context 
 
 Wirral – The Place 
 

Wirral is a unique place, home to a growing population of 319,800 people, 
including 190,000 people of working age and over 8,000 businesses providing 
employment for 105,800 people.   

  
The Wirral peninsula extends to 60 square miles, with 25 miles of coastline.  It 
is an area of outstanding natural beauty, packed full of spectacular scenery, 
with a rich mixture of culture and heritage. Strategically located between the 
economic centres of Liverpool and Chester, Wirral benefits from an 
infrastructure that presents significant opportunities for development. 

 
Most people who live in Wirral enjoy an outstanding quality of life, with 
excellent housing, schools and a high quality environment.  However, there is 
a strong contrast between the older, highly urbanised areas of Birkenhead 
and Wallasey, which contain some of the poorest communities in England 
and the wealthier commuter settlements in the west of Wirral.  Wirral’s 
neighbourhoods range from the some of the most deprived in the country 
(around St James Church in Bidston) to one of the most affluent, or least 
deprived, in South West Heswall less than six miles away.  21 areas in Wirral 
fall into the highest 3% in England in terms of levels of child poverty, with a 
total of 58 areas in the highest 20%. This results in serious quality of life 
issues and health inequalities, including a completely unacceptable difference 
in life expectancy of 9.7 years for females and 14.6 years for males 
depending on where a person lives in Wirral.  
 

 Wirral’s economy 
 

The global economic downturn presents challenges for all economies. Wirral 
is no different, but at the same time is at the heart of ambitious regeneration 
opportunities of global significance. 

 
Wirral Waters is a £5 billion, jobs driven investment proposal for Birkenhead 
Docks. It is the largest regeneration scheme to have received planning 
permission in the UK, and the entire area is now designated as an Enterprise 
Zone, which brings the benefit of Business Rates Relief and Enhanced 
Capital allowances on part of the site. There are several strategic proposals 
developing at pace such as the Advanced Manufacturing Supplier Park and 
International Trade Centre (ITC).  

 
Work is now underway on the International Trade Centre, which is one of the 
most exciting developments in the Wirral economy for many years. Working 
alongside our Private Sector partners, Peel Holdings, the project has secured 
major investment from China and is continually accessing new international 
markets.  

 
These opportunities will be harnessed to ensure we are in a position to 
overcome the economic challenges we face. Wirral has the lowest job density 
ratio in the Liverpool City Region, with 57 jobs per 100 residents, as well as 
the lowest GVA per resident in England and Wales. 39% of all jobs in the 
borough also come from the public sector, which is much higher than the 
national average. Although performing well against the Liverpool City Region 

Page 131



 

 5 

authorities, Wirral continues to have a higher percentage of people claiming 
out-of-work benefits than the regional and national averages. 

 
Our Investment Strategy, winner of the Local Government Chronicle 
Economic Development Award in 2012, will help to drive and embed 
developments to ensure these challenges are overcome. The strategy will 
position Wirral as a leading vibrant global location for businesses and visitors, 
improve access to employment and skills, and tackle barriers to work. Driven 
by the need to reduce and eliminate poverty and inequality in Wirral by 
providing accessible employment opportunities for local people; the strategy 
is geared towards achieving major investments in strategic sites such as 
Birkenhead Docklands and Wirral Waters Enterprise Zone. 

 
Ensuring that local housing meets the needs of the current and future 
workforce is also vital if the Investment Strategy is to be achieved. Increasing 
Wirral’s housing supply and making best use of existing housing stock is 
fundamental to attracting new economic growth and supporting existing 
businesses to develop. In its plans for housing and land development, the 
Council will also take into account issues such as the protection of Wirral’s 
Green Belt and improving the quality of the environment. 

 
Our Investment Strategy is in fact already showing results.  

 
! In contrast to 2009, when Wirral was highlighted as one of the areas most 

likely to be hit by recession, research by NESTA (National Endowment for 
Science, Technology and Arts) in 2011 identified Wirral as an area of 
great growth potential. Birkenhead was found to have a higher 
concentration of fast growing companies than cities including London, 
Cardiff and Edinburgh. 

 
! The visitor economy in Wirral is strong; and was estimated to be worth 

£289 million in 2011, up by 3% since 2010. The total number of visits to 
Wirral rose by 4% to 6.8 million during 2011, of which 753,000 were 
staying visits – the highest out of any other Merseyside district outside 
Liverpool.  

 
! Wirral currently has the lowest rate of Jobseekers Allowance (JSA) 

claimants in the Liverpool City Region at 3.9%, and is the only local 
authority in the LCR to be performing better than the regional average of 
4.2%. The number of young people claiming JSA is also reducing in 
Wirral with a 12% reduction since December 2011, there are now 2,445 
young people claiming the benefit in the borough, a rate of 9.4%.  

 
! Between 2011 and 2012 Wirral has seen an increase in its business base 

of 3.8%, which is higher than Liverpool City Region (2.7%), the North 
West (2.3%) and UK averages (3.4%).  

 
! Latest full year provisional data shows that Wirral increased its overall 

numbers of Apprentice starts by 13% from 2010/11 to 2011/12; this is the 
second highest in the Liverpool City Region and outperforms the regional 
average of 7.6%.   

 
We are also ensuring that local businesses capitalise on opportunities which 
will be created by the return of the Open Golf Championship in 2014 and a 
focus is being given to supporting our town and district retail centres which 

Page 132



 

 6 

face major challenges. Our opportunities for growth and development far 
outweigh our challenges, and if harnessed and driven in the right way will 
deliver long lasting economic growth for generations to come.  
 
Wirral – The Council 
 
Improving Corporate Governance 
 
Wirral Council is at the forefront of developing a new approach to sector led 
improvement. In partnership with the Local Government Association we are 
driving forward the much needed step change in the Council’s performance 
and corporate governance following the significant failures of the past.  We 
have the potential to be the future model for peer improvement, achieving 
changes that could not have been delivered via the old model of intervention. 
 
The Council’s Improvement Board, an innovative partnership with the Local 
Government Association, ensures that appropriate challenge and expertise is 
in place to ensure lasting improvements are made. The core purpose of the 
Board is to assure our Improvement plans, particularly where they relate to 
issues of corporate governance and leadership.  
 
The Improvement Board has worked in partnership with the Council to 
develop an Improvement Plan, which highlights specific areas of focus for the 
Council in the light of a series of critical external reports. Those areas include: 
 
! Leadership: political and managerial 
! Corporate governance and decision-making 
! A Corporate Plan with priorities that reflect customers’ views 
! A budget that delivers financial stability 
 
Improvements to governance and transparency are becoming apparent.  Our 
recent LGA Peer Review provided an independent assessment of the 
Council’s strategic approach to improvement.  The review team gave a very 
positive feedback report which, whilst confirming the scale of problems faced 
by the Council, strongly concluded the Council’s strategic approach was 
correct and that there were no alternatives.  Continued focus on the 
Improvement Plan is essential if the Council is to deliver tangible 
improvements over the coming three years, delivery of which will be 
embedded in the implementation of this Corporate Plan. 
 
To help to ensure this focus is maintained the LGA Peer Review team have 
been invited back later in the year to further assess progress.  
 
Achieving financial stability 

 
The implementation of the necessary improvements to Corporate 
Governance is made more challenging due to the Council’s significant budget 
deficit – this will result in our net budget reducing by a third - £109 million over 
the next three years. The Corporate Governance failings of the past have 
contributed to this resulting in a further challenge from previous failure to 
collect debt and a considerable number of ‘bad budgets’ that, in the past, 
were funded from one-off resources that are no longer available. 
 
Rapid increases in demand due to changing demographics in our borough, 
usually funded through government grant, is also adding pressure to our 

Page 133



 

 7 

financial situation. This challenge will remain a priority for a number of years, 
and will be particularly acute over the three year time period of this Corporate 
Plan.  
 
A clear vision and approach, strong leadership, effective and efficient use of 
resources and innovative ways of working are essential and will be in place to 
ensure we overcome the challenges we face.  
 
The Council has made rapid progress in strengthening the Council’s 
corporate leadership structure through the permanent appointment of a Chief 
Executive and three Strategic Directors.  The formation of these cross-cutting 
Directorates will enable the Council to modernise services through a 
programme of transformation and improvement, ensuring that they are 
delivering the best possible outcomes for our residents. 
 
Significant savings in buildings, senior management, IT, procurement and 
terms and conditions are planned, and the Council is quickly moving towards 
a model of shared back office services with neighbouring Authorities, with 
Internal Audit, procurement and information technology services likely to be 
the first to realise savings.  

 
Ensuring financial stability will remain a key priority and we will deal with 
these challenges head on, through making tough decisions while getting our 
own house in order, and making sure that Wirral residents get the very best 
value for every penny we spend.  Services will be reviewed ensuring that the 
following principles are adhered to: 
 

! Spend less on ourselves: Savings should primarily be taken from the 
back office administration of the Council while trying to mitigate the 
impact on the front line. 

 
! Protect the vulnerable: Where savings do impact on the front line, 

either through introducing or raising charges, or reducing service 
standards, then every step should be taken to mitigate the impact of 
this on the poorest and most vulnerable of our residents. 

 
Working in partnership 

 
Never before has partnership working in Wirral been more important to the 
delivery of tangible outcomes for residents and businesses.  The public sector 
can no longer afford to work in isolation, and we will utilise every opportunity 
to save time and resources, and to improve services for our residents, by 
removing duplication across agencies wherever it exists, joining up front line 
delivery and developing a shared understanding of the needs of local people. 
The Council will lead by example, bringing together all those with a stake in 
the future of Wirral to deliver better and more joined up services to our 
residents.   

 
A Wirral Public Service Board has recently been established to drive this work 
forward. The Board brings together senior representatives from the health 
sector, as well as Merseyside Police, Merseyside Fire and Rescue, Wirral 
Metropolitan College, Job Centre Plus, Health organisations and Wirral 
Partnership Homes etc. The Board will focus on bring the public sector 
together to realise efficiencies and integrate services in order that all can 
better focus on outcomes.  This important work will help to mitigate, where 

Page 134



 

 8 

possible, the impact of public sector funding cuts whilst maintaining the best 
services possible for local people.   
 
We will refresh Wirral’s Local Strategic Partnership, ensuring that we work 
closely with partners across all sectors to develop a longer term vision for 
Wirral, and to consider future opportunities for working together.   
 
We will embrace our new public health responsibilities to ensure that we are 
doing all that we can to improve the health of our residents. The Council will 
play a key leadership role through the Health and Wellbeing Board by 
developing and delivering a health and wellbeing strategy for Wirral which 
builds on a shared understanding of local needs. We will strengthen the role 
of our communities in health protection, and continue to work closely with our 
partner organisations to reduce the stark health inequalities that exist within 
Wirral. 
 
Wirral will play an active part in the wider Liverpool City Region, ensuring that 
the benefits of our proximity to the increasingly vibrant City Centre are 
realised and that the future plans of the Liverpool Local Enterprise 
Partnership reflect both the needs of Wirral businesses and the massive 
economic opportunities presented by our Investment Strategy.  
 
We will actively seek partnerships with other Local Authorities, including 
across Cheshire, the Northwest, North Wales, nationally and internationally 
with organisations that have the potential to deliver improved and more 
efficient shared services for our residents.  
 
Neighbourhood working 

 
The nature of local government is changing at almost unprecedented pace; 
financial challenges, increased demand and increased expectations from our 
residents mean that we must always look to new and more innovative 
methods of providing the services people rely on. 

 
Nevertheless, our residents expect, and deserve, their Council to conduct its 
business in a fashion that ensures they get the very best level of service 
possible. To ensure this, Wirral Council will guarantee that all Council 
services, business and future plans will have the following principles 
embedded within them: 

 
! Focus on Residents. Wirral Council will never invest resources into any 

project without clear evidence that the outcome will be what our residents 
want and need.  

 
! Be open and transparent: Governance, decision making and the 

operation of Wirral Council will be open to, and welcome, scrutiny from all 
stakeholders. 

 
! Be accountable: We will welcome scrutiny into all aspects of Council 

business, particularly performance. We will report on progress towards 
our vision, and we will ensure that Council Officers and Members alike are 
accountable for our successes and failures.  

 
The localism agenda means local government has a unique role to co-
ordinate and support local communities to deliver the services they need, and 

Page 135



 

 9 

to achieve the outcomes they want. In Wirral, that means an innovative plan 
to create new models of neighbourhood engagement based within the 
borough’s four Parliamentary constituencies. 
 
Alongside these, we will see the establishment of local public service boards 
– whose membership, aside from Health, will include representatives from the 
Council, Police and education. 
 
By decentralising power from Whitehall and our own Town Hall, and placing it 
in the hands of local people with local knowledge and understanding, 
communities will be strengthened by the power to develop bespoke local 
solutions to local problems. 

Local neighbourhoods, given their own budget to spend, utilising skills, 
knowledge and experience of people on the ground, will make better use of 
their resources because they can redesign them to fit local problems. It is 
clearer than ever that when it comes to public services, one size does not fit 
all.  

4. What we will deliver over the next three years: 
 

A coherent set of performance measures and targets are being developed to 
ensure priorities are achieved over the three year period. A delivery plan will 
be in place that will include measures and targets subject to regular and 
rigorous review. This will form the basis of robust performance management 
and monitoring arrangements for the three year period. 

 
The delivery of the Corporate Plan will be supported by key strategic 
documents including the Wirral Investment Strategy, Children and Young 
People’s Plan and Child Poverty Strategy.  The Council’s three Strategic 
Directors will develop three year plans that underpin the Corporate Plan and 
set out in more detail how the activities identified within the plan will be 
delivered together with the agreed resources required. 

 
This Corporate Plan will continuously be reviewed and refreshed throughout 
the three years based upon research, policy, economic development and the 
feedback and engagement of our communities.  

 
 
Families and Wellbeing  

 
The Council’s role as a champion and protector for children, families and 
vulnerable people is changing significantly. The current economic climate, 
combined with rapidly changing demographic patterns, aspirations and 
expectations is driving the Council to rethink our services entirely; what 
should be delivered, how should they be delivered and who should deliver 
them and how they can mitigate the effect of the economic climate. 
 
We have much to be proud of, and reports from Ofsted and other bodies 
regularly rate our children’s services as excellent and outstanding following 
inspections, something which again occurred in 2012. Comparison with 
similar Council’s however, highlights that certain services for young people in 
Wirral are expensive.  
 

Page 136



 

 10 

The creation of the strategic directorate area for Families and Wellbeing 
provides new opportunities to truly design services with the family at the 
centre. Ensuring that every possible opportunity for shared working is 
maximised, both across the Council, the wider public sector and our partners 
in the private, voluntary, community and faith sectors. Duplication will be 
removed wherever it exists, with a focus on improving and streamlining 
residents’ experiences of the services we provide and deliver.  
 
At all times we will maintain a focus on safeguarding children and vulnerable 
people.   
 
We will focus on developing coherent preventative services with partner 
agencies, which build on universal provision, so that we target interventions 
with children and families in order to improve outcomes and reduce the 
number of children requiring expensive and frequently reactive specialist 
services. Our role in the direct provision of universal services for children 
should be significantly diminished, or provided on a full cost recovery basis, 
since other agencies and communities may be better placed to provide these 
services. This will enable the Council to target our resources working with 
more vulnerable children and families who need our support the most.  
 
Our social care services for adults are improving.  These improvements have 
been made within a challenging environment of increasing demand from a 
growing older population and reducing Council resources. In 2010, the Care 
Quality Commission rated Wirral ‘poor’ in terms of both safeguarding and 
learning disability services, which led to the development and implementation 
of a major improvement programme for 2010-2013. 
 
During 2012, a Peer Challenge focussed on Safeguarding as well as a Peer 
Review of all social care services for adults was completed – and showed real 
progress, improvement and key achievements across the service. The 
outcomes were more recently endorsed by a national board (Towards 
Excellence in Adult Social Care) in February 2013. 
 
Personalised services continue to be strengthened; personal budgets and self 
directed assessments were rolled out for the benefit of all people using 
services; as well as an increased focus on improving the choice of 
accommodation available; including supported living and extra care housing.  
We will work to further develop the capacity of the market to ensure that the 
quality of services are maintained. 
 
Moving forward our focus will be shifted away from crisis management 
towards tackling problems early, through a prevention and early intervention – 
promoting health and wellbeing and quality of life.  
 
The services available to people will be completely transformed; we will 
commission services based on sound evidence, so that we know we are 
providing the best and most appropriate levels of care and support that is 
possible. This will help to deliver more personalised services, and make sure 
that people can control their own circumstances, meet their own needs and 
stay independent for as long as they can.  
 
Sport and leisure facilities, and the programmes of activity that use them, play 
a significant part in the health of the community and in increasing the self-
confidence of people. We will work towards adopting a more integrated 

Page 137



 

 11 

approach to wellbeing in the future which will enable the role of sport and 
leisure to be reviewed and perhaps redefined. 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
We have clear priorities for the coming year; underpinned by consultation and 
engagement with our residents, partners and staff. This year, we will: 
 

! Redesign our preventative and early intervention services to ensure 
that they are targeted at those most in need and to safely reduce the 
numbers of children in our care  

! Work with schools to ensure resources are used and shared 
effectively 

! Focus on improving how we commission services, particularly by 
working with partners in the NHS 

! Focus on commissioning for improved quality outcomes across the 
domiciliary, residential and nursing home sector 

! Make sure our transport policies are fair, accessible and provide value 
for money for all residents 

! Transform our day, residential and respite services to ensure they are 
fit for purpose, modern, and attractive to the people who rely on them 

! Review the support we provide to carers, to ensure that the vital 
contribution they make is accurately and adequately resourced 

! Transform our universal youth services; consolidating services from 
our key sites and investing in a state of the art youth zone 

! Make sure our leisure offer is fit for purpose, and delivering the best 
value for money possible as we seek to improve the health and 
wellbeing of our borough 

 
Despite the demographic and financial challenges we face, our duty to 
champion the needs of children, families and vulnerable people to make sure 
that people are protected, and ensure that services are in place to improve, 
protect and inspire all Wirral people remains as important as ever.  

 
Regeneration and Environment 

 
The quality of Wirral’s local environment and health of our economy are 
significant factors affecting the quality of life of our residents. This is 
confirmed through many public consultations which have been completed 
during the past few years; residents are clear that we should focus on 
services which ensure that Wirral is a place where businesses flourish and 
people have access to jobs and quality, affordable, homes.  

 
In order to achieve this, it is vital that the Council continues to support a 
thriving local economy which provides the bedrock for social, economic and 
environmental well being amongst all of our Communities. We want to 
continue to support business growth, but to do so in a more focused manner 
that works with and utilises the experience and resources of other key 
stakeholders. We will support the creation of jobs by the private sector 
through providing a supportive and enabling environment, not only through 
the day to day support provided by the Council, but also through speedy and 
appropriate use of the Council's planning powers. 

 
Having a quality and affordable place to live is important to ensure that all our 
residents live in a safe and appropriate home that allows them to gain 

Page 138



 

 12 

maximum benefit for access to jobs, leisure, amenities, education and to gain 
associated social and economic benefits that they both desire and deserve. 
We will continue to work with landlords in the social and private sector to 
maximise the number and range of quality homes for rent. We will continue 
our programmes to restructure the housing market and work with house 
builders to increase the number of new homes built in Wirral. 
 
We will support local people to ‘place shape’ their communities through the 
implementation of new ways of engaging and working with Neighbourhoods. 
This will include support for the four neighbourhood planning vanguards and 
support for local groups who wish to become involved in the planning of their 
local services.  
 
The importance of Birkenhead as Wirral’s key economic centre will be 
recognised with refreshed town centre plans and a focus on integrating the 
Wirral Waters Enterprise Zone into the wider town.  

 
In what are tough economic times for both the Council and the nation as a 
whole, we must ensure that the limited resources we have are targeted solely 
at opportunities to achieve our vision for Wirral. We have to make some 
difficult decisions as we simply do not have the resources to continue 
spending the same amounts to achieve these goals. However, the Council 
will continue to allocate its resources into activities that will help support 
business, create jobs, allow access to those jobs for Wirral residents and 
encourage people to live in safe, affordable and relevant housing. 

 
Wirral Council has a responsibility for commissioning or delivering a range of 
near-universal services to all households and neighbourhoods in their area.  
These include, amongst others, waste and recycling, street cleansing, 
highway maintenance and traffic management, road safety, leisure services, 
parks and open spaces. 

 
Increasingly, these functions have been carried out in various partnership or 
collaborative arrangements with other public agencies (e.g. police and fire 
service) or, where appropriate, with volunteer or other community groups. 

 
It is recognised that there is projected to be a steady decline over the 
foreseeable future in national resources to support these types of services.   

 
Increasingly, there will be a clear need to manage demand and, more 
generally, to manage public expectations of what the Council can and cannot 
do.  The role of community and other groups will increase in significance as 
the Council itself diminishes its activities in the more discretionary areas 
where it is not required by statute to provide services or functions.   

 
Many of what are now universal services are provided as a result of statutory 
requirements but where the actual level or quality of service is not closely 
defined.  Other services which people are used to seeing as universal have a 
greater or lesser degree of discretion as to whether they are provided at all 
and to what level of provision. 
It will be necessary to identify service areas that are not, as such, universal 
across the community but meet particular needs.  These more targeted 
service areas are often those where council provision sits alongside or 
competes with other providers. 

 

Page 139



 

 13 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

We have clear priorities for the coming year; underpinned by consultation and 
engagement with our residents, partners and staff. This year, we will: 

 
• Ensure that the distribution of Regional Growth Fund resources are of 

maximum benefit to Wirral’s economy. 
• Actively support the development of the International Trade Centre and 

the Wirral Waters Enterprise Zone. 
• Support the development of the growth of the offshore wind supply 

chain. 
• Ensure that Wirral’s profile continues to be raised with Government and 

other Agencies to secure support for our Investment priorities including 
the City deal. 

• Progress targeted inward investment activities to support the growth of 
Wirral’s economy. 

• Develop a workforce for the future through designing an apprenticeship 
scheme with our partners in the Liverpool City Region 

• Develop a clear master plan for Birkenhead Town Centre 
• Establish alternative delivery arrangements for a range of universal 

functions; ensuring that Wirral residents see their services maintained or 
improved while achieving better value for money 

 
We will face our challenges head on, and ensure that we use the opportunities 
before us to build lasting growth in our economy and to improve the quality of 
life enjoyed by our residents.  

 
  
Transformation and Resources 
 

The new Strategic Directorate has a crucial role in ensuring the Council’s 
corporate centre both supports and drives transformational change across the 
organisation.  
 
Good governance, transparency and accountability are essential for the Council 
and a cornerstone for improving public services.  The Council is accountable for 
ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 
standards.  We must also ensure that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. 
 
Transforming services 
 
We will only deliver our vision through a programme of radical and sustained 
change.  We will review all of our services over the course of this three year 
plan to ensure that we have explored the most appropriate method of delivery, 
and to ensure that we are meeting the needs of our residents. 
 
We will determine and be clear about which services and facilities should be 
delivered by third parties, making sure that the Council only delivers directly 
where we can be certain that it is providing the best value for money for our 
residents. 
 
We are currently investigating alternative delivery arrangements for services, 
including exploring a range of different options. We will ensure that any decision 

Page 140



 

 14 

the Council takes to transform services and deliver them through alternative 
ways is based on solid evidence, and subject to robust monitoring, contract 
management and evaluation. 
 
Leadership and culture change 

 
Essential to the implementation of the Corporate Plan is the need to ensure that 
the Council has the leadership and managerial capacity in place to deliver. A 
key priority is the strengthening of the Council’s governance arrangements, 
ensuring that a clear scheme of delegation is in place to enable effective 
decision making.  A Leaders’ Board has been established to enable all political 
group leaders to meet regularly with the Chief Executive to debate and discuss 
key corporate issues.   Elected Members from all political groups are 
represented on the Council’s Working Democracy Party which is currently 
developing a view on a new approach to Scrutiny, in order that this can shape 
and influence Council decisions.   
 
A series of visioning events have been held with Elected Members, senior 
officers and partner organisations and will continue.  These events have 
provided the opportunity to hear from external speakers and to facilitate 
discussions on the future shape of the Council.  We are visiting other local 
authorities to look at best practice as part of our commitment to learn from 
others that have made progress in areas which we are seeking to make 
changes. 
 
Support for Members 
 
We are working towards strengthening the support that our Elected Members 
receive.  We have established a dedicated independent Policy Unit to more 
effectively co-ordinate policy support.   
 
Our Elected Members are central to developing a vision which reflects the best 
interests of Wirral residents and ensuring that the Council delivers this.  As the 
Council changes from directly providing services to commissioning services for 
other parties to provide on our behalf, the role of local Councillors will become 
more important than ever.  We will ensure that we support our local Councillors 
in this vital role and equip them with the necessary skills and training. 
 
We are enhancing our IT systems to provide Elected Members with better 
accessibility and more flexible equipment.  We are also introducing a casework 
management system to enable Members to manage contacts from residents 
more efficiently and track progress on issues. 
 
The new approach to neighbourhood working will also present greater 
opportunities for our Councillors to play an important leadership role, and to 
influence local services by ensuring that they are responsive to local needs.  
 
All three political parties are committed to working towards the Elected Member 
Development Charter. This year work a Strategy and Action Plan will be 
developed with the objective of the Council receiving the Charter in 2014. 
 
The Wirral Elected Member Development Programme enables Officers and 
Members to work together, with external expertise and support when required, 
to develop both policy and organisational capacity. In addition a Leadership 
Programme for Elected Members will be in place later in the year. 

Page 141



 

 15 

 Focussing on performance 
 

A new Performance Appraisal & Development programme has commenced 
which starts with the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors, Directors and Heads 
of Service that will be rolled out to Senior Managers across the Council in the 
coming year.  
 
New leadership behaviours and expectations have been developed that 
underpin this programme.  They are -:  
 
1) Personal Performance 
 
2) Creating “Followship” and Leading Others 
 
3) Maximising People Potential 
 
4) Building Robust Relationships 
 
5) Leading Organisational Excellence 
 
A practical training programme is now in place that will ensure improvements 
are made across these key areas. Linked to the Improvement Plan we can now 
ensure that learning is targeted and meeting organisational needs.  
 
The new Council structure clarifies management levels and responsibilities 
across the organisation. Managers have clear accountabilities and will receive 
appropriate training targeted on ensuring expectations relating to good 
workforce management, governance and sound financial management are met 
and subject to performance appraisal. 
 
The Employee Engagement Survey completed in May 2012 has resulted in an 
Action Plan detailing suggested activity across the whole organisation as well 
as within specific Departments. This survey will be repeated in the autumn of 
2013 to ensure that progress can be monitored and any ongoing issues 
speedily addressed. 
 
A centralised approach to performance management will also ensure that we 
deliver what we say we will and continuously look at ways in which we can 
improve the services that the Council provides.  
 
Organisational values  
 
Data gathered from across the organisation including; the Corporate 
Governance Survey and the full Employee Engagement Survey, will be used to 
develop clear and concise organisational values which will reflect current good 
practice and provide Wirral with a contemporary framework within which to take 
the Improvement Plan forward. The values will underpin all future training and 
development across the organisation and will be vital in the roll out of 
Performance Appraisal and Development. 
 
Culture Development Programme 
 
A programme to roll out the new Organisational Core Values will commence 
this year. Workshops will be underpinned by an e-learning module and 
supporting communications and promotional features that demonstrate how 

Page 142



 

 16 

current employees are already delivering the values of the organisation, in their 
everyday work. In addition the values will be underpinned by a set of Employee 
and Managers Expectations that outline what is expected in terms of activity 
and behaviours at all levels across the organisation. 
 
Managing our finances 
 
We have taken significant steps to improve the way we manage our budget.  A 
Budget Steering Group has been established with representatives from all 
Council departments to undertake a review of base budgets and to prepare 
regular financial monitoring information. 
 
Monthly monitoring has also been introduced to ensure that our Members are 
kept fully informed of the Council’s financial position and to enable effective 
decisions to be taken. 
 
In relation to the 2013/15 budget, the approach has been developed which fully 
engages with Elected Members at both Executive and Scrutiny level.  The 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy will provide a solid foundation for 
determining how the Council spends its money over the course of this 
Corporate Plan, ensuring that resources are fully aligned to the Council’s 
priorities. 

 
We will significantly strengthen our approach to commissioning through the 
establishment of a combined intelligence, performance management and 
commissioning based in the corporate centre of the organisation.  This will 
ensure that the services the Council spends money on are based on robust 
evidence of community needs and subject to regular evaluation. 

 
Addressing the challenge of welfare reform 

 
The Welfare Reform Act represents the biggest change to the benefits system 
for over 60 years.  These changes, including the introduction of universal credit 
and changes to council tax and housing benefit, will be challenging for many 
our residents and we are committed to supporting them through these changes 
by providing appropriate advice and guidance. 

  
We are working with partners to ensure that we are playing a key leadership 
role to ensure that Wirral is fully prepared for the changes, and to plan what 
advice and support is needed for local residents.  Additionally, we are hosting a 
welfare reform event on behalf of the Liverpool City Region to ensure that we 
are working closely with other Merseyside Authorities to understand the impact 
of the changes. 

 
Access to online services will be crucial for our local residents ahead of the 
changes to the benefits system.  We are therefore also taking steps to increase 
internet access across Wirral through the launch of ‘Go ON Wirral’ and other 
initiatives to support digital inclusion. 

 
 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

  
There are clear priorities in place for the coming year; underpinned by 
consultation and engagement with our residents, partners and staff. This year, 
we will: 

Page 143



 

 17 

 
• Deliver 2013/14 savings through a clearly defined programme 

management approach 
• Develop a robust process for dealing with our financial challenges in 

2014-16, ensuring service transformation and innovative delivery is at 
the heart 

• Develop a corporate approach for commissioning services 
• Improve governance and decision making through adopting a revised 

constitution and scheme of delegation 
• Establish new arrangements for neighbourhood working 
• Review the Council’s assets maximising both efficiency and savings 
• Establish business unit functions to support strategic directorates and 

transform business support 
• Put in place a robust system to make sure that where we charge for 

services, those charges are assessed fairly and equitably, ensuring 
people are able to pay and we are able to collect 

 
Through clear direction, innovation, learning, scrutiny and challenge, a culture 
of high performance, accountability and continuous improvement will be 
embedded across the organisation.  

 
 
 
 

Page 144



 1 

WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
 
Meeting Date 13 March 2013 Agenda Item 11 
 
Report Title Development of Wirral Healthwatch 
Responsible Board 
Member 

Director of Adult Social Services 

 
Board development  
   

 

JSNA/JHWS  

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

� 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

  

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes � No  N/A  

Purpose For 
approval 

 To note � To 
assure 

� 

 
Summary of Paper The development of Wirral Healthwatch is a statutory 

requirement.  A decision on the future organisational model is 
now required to enable a Wirral Healthwatch to be put in place for 
April 2013.  This paper is to inform and assure the Shadow 
H&WB that the development is advanced and of the most 
appropriate model for a successful Wirral Healthwatch 
organisation.   
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

£  £  £  

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

Failure to develop a Wirral Healthwatch Service poses a risk. 
Section 221 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act is amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012 to 
place the following additional duties on a local Healthwatch in 
addition to those duties already undertaken by LINk; 
 

• Providing advice and information about access to 
local care services and about choices that may be 
made with respect to aspects of those services. 

• Reaching views on the matters mentioned in 
subsection 3 and making those views known to the 
Healthwatch England committee of the Care Quality 
Commission. These matters are; (a) the standard of 
provision of local care services; (b) whether, and 
how, local care services could be improved; (c) 
whether, and how, local care services ought to be 
improved. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 145



 2 

• Making recommendations to that committee to 
advise the Commission about special reviews or 
investigations to conduct (or where the 
circumstances justify doing so making such 
recommendations direct to the Commission). 

• Making recommendations to that committee to 
publish reports under section 45C(3) of the Health 
and Social Care Act 2008 and about particular 
matters  

• Giving that committee such assistance as it may 
require to enable it to carry out its functions 
effectively, efficiently and economically 

Procurement advice has been sought given the governmental 
advice that in relation to the evolution of one organisation (LINk’s) 
into the new organisation which may be contradictory to the 
council’s standing orders in relation to procurement and 
tendering.  
 
It was agreed that given the somewhat unique circumstances 
surrounding this project and the fact that as we have a start date 
of 1st April 2013 that the time restrictions involved meant that 
there was not an appropriate opportunity in which to enter into a 
full tender exercise.   
 
In addition, there was risk that a suitable organisation may not be 
found leaving the Council failing in its statutory duty to deliver a 
local Healthwatch for Wirral on time.  
 
Other Local Authorities have chosen the tender option, however 
this decision was made at a very early stage in the process, 
Wirral was unable to do so for a variety of structural and 
operational reasons. 
 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

Widespread public consultation has taken place, this focussed on 
the delivery and accessibility of Wirral Healthwatch rather than 
the model and management.  The decision on model needs to be 
made by the Council to enable them to manage risk and have 
confidence that the model can deliver.  
 

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

The challenge of implementing a local Healthwatch that fits the 
unique requirements of each local authority has been complex 
and many different approaches have been adopted.   
 
Local North West Local Authority approaches  
 

• Warrington:  Transition from LINk to Healthwatch  
• Liverpool:  Breaking up the service functions  
• Sefton: Transition from LINk to Healthwatch  

Page 146



 3 

• Halton:  Transition from LINk to Healthwatch  
• Cheshire W:  New service provider  
• St Helens:  Transition from LINk to Healthwatch  
• Trafford: Transition from LINk to Healthwatch  
• Manchester:  New service provider  
• Wigan: Transition from LINk to Healthwatch  
• Knowsley:  Transition from LINk to Healthwatch  
• Tameside: Fund parent org to set up Healthwatch  
• Salford: Fund steward org to set up Healthwatch  
• Bury:  New service provider  

 
Wirral Council’s Cabinet will be requested to agree to build upon 
on the legacy built by Voluntary Community Action Wirral in 
partnership with LINk and using this experience to develop Wirral 
Healthwatch as a subsidiary company, which is the most suitable 
model for Wirral. 
 
The development of Wirral Healthwatch is a statutory 
requirement. It is vital that the council supports the development 
of the most appropriate model for a successful Wirral 
Healthwatch organisation. A decision on the future organisational 
model is now required to enable a Wirral Healthwatch to be put in 
place for April 2013.  Members are asked to support the 
development of the most appropriate model for a successful 
Wirral Healthwatch organisation 
 

 
Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
N/A   
   
List of 
Appendices 

None 

 
Yes � Yes  Publish On 

Website No  
Private Business 

No � 
  
Report Author:  Christine Beyga 
 
Contact details:  0151 666 3624 christinebeyga@wirral.gov.uk  

Page 147



 4 

Wirral Healthwatch  
 
1. Background 
 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 places local government at the centre of 
ensuring their communities receive the care they deserve.  Together with new 
responsibilities for Public Health and Health and Wellbeing Boards, Healthwatch 
represents an important opportunity for local people to influence the decisions being 
made about their services, across the NHS and social care. 
 
The vision is for the NHS to be genuinely centred on patients and carers giving 
citizens a greater say in how the NHS is run. One of the main ways the Government 
intends to do this is by creating a new consumer champion – Healthwatch. 
 
Healthwatch will strengthen the collective voice of local people across both health 
and social care, influencing Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNA) and joint 
health and wellbeing strategies – on which local commissioning decisions will be 
based – through its seat on every statutory health and wellbeing board 
 
A requirement of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act (2007) 
was that Local Involvement Networks (LINks) should be established.  Each Local 
Authority contracted an organisation to establish and then support a LINk.  In Wirral, 
Voluntary Community Action Wirral (VCAW) was the successful bidder to host the 
Wirral LINk and has provided excellent support and guidance for the activities of the 
Wirral LINk to date. The Health and Social Care Act (2102) now makes provisions for 
the establishment of existing LINKs into local Healthwatch organisations. 
 
 
The relationship between VCAW and the Wirral LINks has been very productive.  All 
LINk members are volunteers and have been able to concentrate on the areas of 
interest whilst the business function has been overseen by VCAW.  The relationship 
with the Department has also functioned very well, whilst not compromising the 
ability of LINks to operate as an independent champion for continually improving the 
quality and standards of health and social care provision for the people of Wirral. 
Local Healthwatch organisations will maintain all existing LINk functions, such as 
their powers of ‘Enter and View’, and will continue to have a role in influencing the 
provision of local services and monitoring any concerns about services but in 
addition will have a seat at the Health and Wellbeing Board and take on 
responsibility for advocating for individuals who wish to make a complaint about 
healthcare.  
The key functions are described as: 
 

• Influencing, by helping shape the planning of health and social care service 

• Signposting, by helping people to access and make choices about care 

• Advising, by advocating for individuals making complaints about healthcare   

 
The key issue for the development of a Wirral Healthwatch service is the form of the 
organisation that will enable these functions.  The Government’s ‘Healthwatch 

Page 148



 5 

Transition Plan’ states clearly that there should be an evolution from the current 
LINk’s organisations to the new Healthwatch organisations.  
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

A central government grant has been made available which will fund the 
Healthwatch Service and the Independent Healthwatch Advocacy service: as 
follows: 
 
Proposed HealthWatch Budget    
 £                  Plus 3%                        
                 Pensions  
Staff Costs 
Full time HealthWatch Manager 38,800  39,964 
Part Time Volunteer Co-ordinator  14,283 14,711 
Full Time Information & Intelligence  
Officer  27,414 28,236 
Full Time Facilitator  27,414 28,236 
2 x Full Time Navigator  47,598 49,026 
Admin Support  8,944                  9,212 
 
Delivery 104,471 104,471 
Building  15,000                          15,000 
   
Total 283,924 288,856 

 
Staff Costs 
 
Salary costs are based on VCA Wirral’s salary scale and include on-costs. Team role 
information is provided in a separate document. VCA Wirral will need to factor in 
pension contribution from 2013. 
 
Delivery 
 
Delivery costs are based upon actual delivery costs for LINk 2011/12 plus 3%, 
totalling £76,060. This includes: 

• volunteer expenses and training 

• meeting room hire and events 

• production and printing of publications in appropriate formats 

• stationary and postage 

• capital costs for equipment purchase and/or maintenance 

• website maintenance 

• insurance 

• professional fees 

• IT and telephone infrastructure 

Page 149



 6 

• Communications and marketing support and materials 

• Memberships and subscriptions 

The remaining £28,411 included within delivery costs will be used for: 
• Support services such as finance, HR and data management 

• Staff training budget of £500 per person per annum 

• Staff expenses based on 2011/12 figures of £420 per person per annum 

Building 
 
Building costs have been estimated on the average commercial rental for a space 
required for 7 staff, plus volunteers and meeting rooms. If office space is given in 
kind by Wirral Council or NHS Wirral, this cost can be removed from the budget. 
 
Independent Healthwatch Advocacy Service  
 
The new Independent Healthwatch Advocacy service will ensure that independent  
advocacy skills are used to provide practical support and direction to Clients, in order 
to assist them in finding a resolution to their complaint about Health Services in the 
following local authority areas :  
 

• Liverpool  
• Halton  
• Knowsley 
• Sefton  
• St Helens  
• Wirral  
• Cheshire East  
• West Cheshire and Chester  
• Warrington  

 
The Independent Healthwatch Advocacy service will be fully compliant with all 
relevant Regulations of the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 
 
 
Authority Population  1st year cost Subsequent 

annual cost  
Knowsley 145,900 £26,650 £24,832 
Liverpool 466,400 £85,191 £79,382 
Sefton 273,800 £50,011 £46,601 
St Helens 175,300 £32,020 £29,837 
Wirral 319,800 £58,413 £54,431 
Cheshire East 370,100 £67,601 £62,992 
Cheshire West & 
Chester 

329,600 £60,203 £56,099 

Halton 125,800 £22,978 £21,411 
Warrington 202,200 £36,933 £34,415 
Total 2,408,900 £440,000 £410,000 
 

Page 150



 

Wirral Health & Wellbeing Board 

Spotlight 
On…Series ASSET BASED COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 

WHEN? 
1:30-4:30 pm 
Thursday 16 May 2013 
  
WHERE? 
The Floral Pavilion, New Brighton 
  
WHAT? 
A session focussing on Asset Based Community Development, with 
key speaker Cormac Russell. Cormac invites us to revisit the role of 
public services and explains how an assets approach can improve 
community health, safety, and economic and environmental well 
being. 
  
WHO? 
Cormac Russell is the Managing Director of Nurture Development, 
Director of ABCD Europe and a faculty member of the Asset Board 
Community Development (ABCD) Institute at Northwestern University, 
Chicago.  
  
He has trained communities, agencies and governments in ABCD and 
other strengths based approaches in the UK, Ireland, Sweden, the 
Netherlands, Canada and Australia.  
  
“Cormac Russell and Nurture Development have made Asset Based 
Community Development come alive in Ireland as a basic community 
building strategy” John McKnight, ABCD Institute 
  
HOW? 
Further details on how to book your place will follow shortly. 

SAVE THE DATE 

Agenda Item 12

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Revised Terms of Reference/Memorandum of Understanding (For Approval)
	AGENDA 4A Health and Wellbeing Board MOU Ver3 March 2013

	5 Health and Wellbeing Strategy (Draft for Approval)
	AGENDA 5A HWB Strategy 06032013 ver1

	6 Proposal for the Development of a Food Plan for the Borough
	8 Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group - Strategic Plan
	AGENDA 8A WirralCCG_Strategic Plan 2013-161

	9 Wirral Borough Council - Corporate Plan
	AGENDA 9 Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan

	11 Update on the Development of Healthwatch
	12 For Information

